
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  
Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk

12 July 2022

Committee Audit and Governance Committee

Date Wednesday, 20 July 2022

Time of Meeting 2:00 pm

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn Room

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED 
TO ATTEND

Agenda

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by 
the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to 
the visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further 
instructions (during office hours staff should proceed to their usual 
assembly point; outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). 
Please do not re-enter the building unless instructed to do so. 

In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.  

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions. 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 
Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare 
any interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to 
which the approved Code applies.

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Item Page(s)

2

4. MINUTES 1 - 13

To approve the Minutes of the meetings held on 24 March and 17 May 
2022.

5. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 14 - 21

To consider the Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme.  

6. EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S AUDIT PLAN 22 - 46

To consider the external auditor’s Audit Plan 2021/22.

7. INFORMING THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE RISK ASSESSMENT 
2021/22

47 - 77

To consider the external auditor’s report on informing the Audit and 
Governance risk assessment for Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22.

8. ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 78 - 92

To consider the adequacy of the Council’s health and safety 
arrangements.  

9. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 93 - 118

To consider the risks contained within the Corporate Risk Register and 
assurance that the risks are being effectively managed.  

10. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN MONITORING REPORT 119 - 132

To consider the Internal Audit work undertaken and the assurance given 
on the adequacy of internal controls operating in the systems audited.  

11. COUNTER FRAUD AND ENFORCEMENT UNIT REPORT 133 - 142

To consider the annual update on the work of the Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit. 

12. COUNTER FRAUD AND ENFORCEMENT UNIT FRAUD RISK 
STRATEGY

143 - 173

To consider the Fraud Risk Strategy and associated work streams. 

13. COUNTER FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY 174 - 192

To recommend to the Executive Committee that the Counter Fraud and 
Anti-Corruption Policy, attached at Appendix 1, be approved and to 
delegate authority to the Head of Finance and Asset Management, in 
consultation with the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit, One Legal 
and the Lead Member for Corporate Governance, to approve future 
minor amendments to the Policy.



Item Page(s)

3

14. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 193 - 199

To consider the limitation of scope regarding independent assurance 
from internal audit on the adequacy of the Council’s governance, risk 
management and control environment for 2021/22 and to note that the 
Internal Audit team is now operational and a meaningful audit opinion 
will be reached for 2022/23.  

15. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 200 - 213

To approve the Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 
2021/22. 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2022

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE
Councillors: C M Cody, P A Godwin, D W Gray, H C McLain (Vice-Chair), P D McLain, J P Mills, 
H S Munro, P E Smith and V D Smith (Chair)

Substitution Arrangements 

The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting.

Recording of Meetings 

In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chairman will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with. 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting will 
not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting. 



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held at the Council 
Offices, Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Thursday, 24 March 2022 commencing 

at 10:30 am 
 

 
Present: 

 
Chair Councillor V D Smith 
Vice Chair Councillor H C McLain 

 
and Councillors: 

 
C M Cody, D W Gray, H S Munro and P E Smith 

 

A&G.41 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

41.1 The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was advised to those present. 

A&G.42 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

42.2  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P A Godwin and P D McLain.  
There were no substitutes for the meeting.  

A&G.43 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

43.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Code of Conduct 
which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 July 
2012.  

43.2 There were no declarations made on this occasion. 

A&G.44 MINUTES  

44.1 The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2021, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

A&G.45 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

45.1  Attention was drawn to the Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme, 
circulated at Pages No. 12-18, which Members were asked to consider.  

45.2  Accordingly, it was 

RESOLVED That the Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme be 
NOTED. 

 

 

 

1

Agenda Item 4



AUD.24.03.22 

A&G.46 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21  

46.1 Attention was drawn to Grant Thornton’s annual report 2020/21, circulated at Pages 
No. 19-53.  Members were asked to consider the report. 

46.2  The representative from Grant Thornton explained that there had been some 
changes to the value for money assessment with the scope being much broader 
than in previous years.  There was no longer a requirement to give a specific formal 
opinion on the arrangements, instead the external auditor’s reported in more detail 
on the authority’s overall arrangements focusing on three areas: financial 
sustainability, governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  
The report before Members was a high-level summary of work undertaken as part of 
the broader scope review.  In terms of the outputs from that assessment, under the 
new Code of Audit Practice, there were three types of recommendations that could 
be issued: unsatisfactory opinion - where real concerns had been identified in the 
authority’s arrangements which required prompt action; key recommendations – if 
significant weakness was identified; or, improvement recommendations – an 
opportunity to look at ways the authority could improve and strengthen the 
arrangements already in place.  An overall summary in relation to Tewkesbury 
Borough Council’s value for money arrangements and key recommendations was 
set out at Pages No. 21-22 of the report.  In terms of financial sustainability, no 
significant weaknesses had been found but four improvement recommendations 
had been identified.  With regard to governance, two improvement 
recommendations had been identified along with one key recommendation in 
relation to delivery of the Internal Audit Work Programme for 2021.  This had been 
discussed at a number of previous meetings of the Committee and, clearly, there 
had been a need to resource the response to the pandemic; however, this had been 
looked at across all authorities and, whilst a lot had scaled back internal audit 
resources to redeploy staff and support the wider Council response, Tewkesbury 
Borough Council was the only one that Grant Thornton was aware of so far which 
had not delivered any of its Internal Audit programme.  There was a lot of evidence 
of reduced programmes of work but others had delivered at least the minimum core 
programme in order to give assurance on systems of internal control.  The 
representative from Grant Thornton advised that, in a crisis situation, it was more 
important than ever to have a programme in place to ensure checks and balances 
were maintained as this was when authorities were more prone and susceptible to 
those controls being overridden and challenged.  There was now an opportunity to 
think about how to maintain a minimum level of resource for internal audit going 
forward and, as the Council began to move out of the emergency response and into 
the recovery phase, it was evident from the additional papers in today’s Agenda that 
internal audit was focusing on the future in terms of reinstating resources in the 
service and reinstalling the normal programme.  With regard to improving economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness, it was noted there were no significant weaknesses but 
two improvement recommendations had been made.   

46.3 A Member drew attention to Page No. 41 of the report and indicated that she would 
like to see the environmental emergency and its associated risks included as the 
economy would be more efficient and effective if more thought went into the 
reduction of carbon etc.  She was surprised it was not included as she felt this 
should be at the heart of every Council decision.  The representative from Grant 
Thornton absolutely agreed and indicated that planning for the response to the 
climate change emergency and environmental aspects was something she believed 
would come into the programme going forward.  Grant Thornton had to operate 
within a specific framework to assess authorities on a level playing field and there 
were specific criteria based on National Audit Office guidance; however, that was 
not to say there was no discussion of the climate agenda, just that it was not a 
specific sector-wide requirement currently. 

2



AUD.24.03.22 

46.4 The Head of Finance and Asset Management advised that the management 
response to the key recommendation was set out at Pages No. 24-26 of the report.  
He explained that Tewkesbury Borough Council was a small rural authority with 
limited levels of staffing in comparison to most other authorities.  Delivery of the 
Government business grants scheme was a significant task which needed to be 
done quickly and required individuals with a certain skill set, as such, there had 
been no choice but to redeploy the Internal Audit team to assist with that - if the 
Council was in that situation again, it was likely the decision would be the same.  
What had not been foreseen was the length of the pandemic and the ongoing 
nature of business grants delivery throughout 2021, and into 2022, which had meant 
that the internal audit function had not operated for the duration of 2020/21.  
Notwithstanding this, a lot of the audit plan was based on risk and, with almost 
£31m business grants paid out, that scheme was by far the largest area of financial 
risk for the Council, particularly as it was open to fraud and abuse.  Therefore, the 
redeployment of the Internal Audit team had been critical and was now paying 
dividends as there was a high level of compliance and low levels of fraud which was 
much better than a number of other local authorities.  Nevertheless, it was accepted 
there had been no internal audit function during that period and a plan was being 
put in place to deliver an Internal Audit Plan over the next three years 
encompassing the first year of the pandemic and the coming year.  Resources were 
being reinvested into internal audit in order to increase capacity to deliver more in 
year three.   

46.5 Whilst he accepted the external auditors’ recommendation, the Chair supported the 
action which had been taken by Officers and felt it was the right decision based on 
the situation at the time.  He wished to put on record his thanks to the Internal Audit 
team for the work they had done to ensure grants were delivered to the public.  
Another Member agreed that what had been done was completely understandable 
but also that Grant Thornton had to highlight it.  He asked whether anything had 
slipped through the net as a result of the absence of an internal audit function, and if 
Officers would even be aware of that, and if there were any potential areas of 
concern which would need to be focused on during the first 100 days of the plan.  
The Head of Finance and Asset Management indicated that it was unfortunate that 
the Head of Corporate Services was unable to attend today’s meeting as he would 
have a better idea of where resources were likely to be placed.  A lot of Council 
services were still in response mode and therefore could not be available to internal 
audit, as such, the first part of the plan would pick up areas that were available for 
review – if there had been any major failings or breakdowns in control it was likely 
Officers would already know about them.  During the second half of the year, when 
services were hopefully back to normal, there would be more detail on specific 
cases that would be picked up by internal audit and taken into 2023/24. 

46.6 A Member drew attention to improvement recommendation 8, set out at Page No. 
43 of the report, which related to benchmarking and he asked if this was something 
which other Council’s did and whether there was a comprehensive database 
available to use for those purposes – it was a good idea but he wondered if it was 
practical and whether the information was available to allow meaningful 
comparisons to be made.  In response, the Head of Finance and Asset 
Management agreed that, in principle, it was an excellent idea but it was important 
to take care with benchmarking as it could only give an overview of what might need 
to be investigated and it was necessary to have the resources in place to look into 
the issue in detail.  The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) had previously published statistics and was a highly reliable resource but 
the number of local authorities participating had reduced therefore the reliability had 
also decreased.  Notwithstanding this, local authorities still provided returns to 
Government so statistics could be produced in relation to revenue outturn etc.  He 
undertook to look into this further to see if good data was available for 
benchmarking which could be incorporated into financial reporting to relevant 

3



AUD.24.03.22 

Committees going forward.  The representative from Grant Thornton advised that 
benchmarking was a useful tool to support medium term financial planning; whilst 
the current financial position of the authority was looking healthy, it was important to 
think about the longer-term, especially whilst waiting for a decision about 
Government funding streams.  Comparisons against nearest neighbours and those 
authorities with a similar set-up would help to understand what others did well and 
gave scope for future opportunities, savings and efficiencies.  A Member expressed 
the view that, if benchmarking did exist then Tewkesbury Borough Council ought to 
be contributing so the fact it was not raised the question of how meaningful the 
available data was.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management felt this was a 
good point as qualitative information was needed to gain a full picture of what was 
going on, for instance, if there was the same level of outputs/quality etc.  

46.7 With regard to improvement recommendation 3, set out at Page No. 33 of the 
report, a Member noted that the Council’s cashflow forecasting was for four months 
and at the same time he noted there was only an annual settlement which made 
forecasting into the future extremely difficult.  Although he appreciated the 
recommendation and accepted it was sensible to forecast, he suggested either a 
rolling cashflow forecast or planning for one year ahead.  The representative from 
Grant Thornton explained that a rolling cashflow position was fine.  Some decisions 
the authority made were in response to an immediate requirement and reports were 
taken to the Executive Committee on the treasury management position and how 
that was being delivered against but it was important to supplement so that, if the 
need arose later down the line, Members had the information to understand the 
expectation.  She appreciated that a lot of estimation was required but it would give 
a medium-term view of the Council’s liquidity position.  The Member asked if 
outcomes would be set-up and measured against that and was advised that no 
specific key performance indicators were being proposed, the recommendation was 
simply saying that a very short term view was being taken on the cashflow position 
and there would be merit in looking at a slightly longer-term horizon.  The Head of 
Finance and Asset Management advised that, from an Officer perspective, cash 
flow was set at the start of the year for a 12 month period based on the information 
available but he was happy to do this on a rolling basis, although it was more 
difficult given the constantly changing economic situation.  The level of investments 
which were call-able, and the ability to borrow from those investments in the event 
of cashflow difficulties, meant that the Council was able to respond quickly to any 
issues.  Ideally, forecasting would be further into the future but he did not think there 
was a serious financial risk from not being able to do that. 

46.8 In respect of improvement recommendation 4, set out at Page No. 34 of the report, 
which stated that consideration should be given to making a clear distinction 
between statutory and discretionary spending in budgetary information provided to 
Members and published on the Council’s website, a Member asked what was the 
norm in other authorities.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management advised 
that, in his experience, Councils reported in a number of different ways and, from 
Tewkesbury Borough Council’s point of view, there had never been a call to report 
this from key stakeholders, such as Members, so it did not differentiate between 
statutory and discretionary spending – there was an element of discretionary 
spending within statutory services so if this recommendation was implemented it 
would be necessary to break down services into statutory and discretionary and to 
do something with support services as these were in groupings currently which 
allowed more scrutiny.  Making this change would result in a lot more work for 
something which had not been requested by stakeholders.  The representative from 
Grant Thornton advised that the recommendation was trying to highlight the fact that 
decisions were getting harder for authorities as the financial position was becoming 
more uncertain, for instance, identifying alternative ways of delivering services or 

 

4



AUD.24.03.22 

  not continuing with services etc. so when the Council was setting its budget Officers 
should think about how to inform Members to make the decisions they needed to 
make when approving the budget – this was hard without knowing the ‘must-do’s’.   

46.9 Turning to improvement recommendation 5, set out at Page No. 35 of the report, 
which suggested that savings plans over the life of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy should be formalised and approved by Council with any savings being 
monitored to ensure the required amounts were being met, a Member noted from 
the management comment that consideration was being given as to how individual 
reporting could be formally collated, and what the most appropriate level of reporting 
was, and she asked what the timescale was for this.  The Head of Finance and 
Asset Management advised there was currently no timetable but it would be picked 
up in quarter one 2022/23 as a specific recommendation.  The authority currently 
reported to different Committees and Working Groups including Executive 
Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Transform Working Group so 
this information was available but was not collated into one report for the benefit of 
the Executive Committee as the budget holder for the Council.  Officers needed to 
look at the best way to bring the information together and the level of reporting – it 
was intended to look at 2023/24 and the difficulties which might be faced that year 
and an appropriate savings plan that could be put in place.  The team was striving 
to generate more income and become more efficient but this was the twelfth year of 
austerity so savings plans were not as easily deliverable as they had once been 
with fewer areas to target for savings each year.  A lot of the Council’s future 
financial sustainability was based on growth and the targets the Government put in 
place in terms of housing and business growth.  The Member asked whether a 
report would be brought back to the Audit and Governance Committee and 
clarification was provided that the report was intended for the Executive Committee 
as the budget holder for the Council. 

46.10 A Member made a general comment about the photographs which had been used 
in the report - which she assumed were generic - in particular the photograph on the 
front of the report at Page No. 19 and pointed out that, as a woman, she did not feel 
particularly included.  The representative from Grant Thornton undertook to feed this 
comment back. 

46.11 It was 

RESOLVED That the external auditor’s annual report 2020/21 be NOTED. 

A&G.47 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  

47.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 54-77, 
asked Members to consider the risks contained within the corporate risk register 
and assurance that the risks were being effectively managed. 

47.2  The Corporate Director advised that the key updates since the last report to the 
Committee in December were set out at Page No 56, Paragraph 3.1 of the report.  
With regard to Ref. 3 ICT Network Security, she explained that, given the recent 
national and local incidents, it was intended to recruit to a newly created cyber role; 
Ref 5. General Data Protection had been given more resource and all staff would 
be properly trained; the Carbon Reduction Programme Officer had commenced his 
role on 22 February which would assist with Ref. 15 Climate Change; and, in terms 
of Ref. 17 Waste Transfer Station, Grundon had gained planning permission in 
January 2022 which was good news from a management perspective as this was a 
serious risk which had been identified last time that had now been mitigated.   

47.3 At the last Committee meeting, a Member had questioned whether two additional 
potential risks should be included within the corporate risk register – the planning 
improvement plan and the five year land supply.  The Corporate Director advised 
that her view was that the planning improvement plan did not hold a high level of 

5



AUD.24.03.22 

corporate risk in the same way as those listed in the Appendix to the report.  In 
terms of the five year land supply, it was not considered to be a risk for inclusion in 
the corporate risk register on the basis that the issues surrounding planning 
applications were dealt with on their own individual merits.  Notwithstanding this, it 
was felt that a risk ought to be included in relation to the review of the Joint Core 
Strategy which had been delayed more than anticipated so that would be included 
in the corporate risk register going forward.  A Member indicated that she 
perceived the lack of a five year housing land supply as a high risk to residents as 
well as a financial risk to the Council if applications were overturned at appeal.  
The Corporate Director explained that was a risk of the planning system - planning 
was a regulatory service and decisions could be challenged by the operation of law 
which may result in the Council paying costs for that, sometimes even when it was 
successful; her view was that this was a service risk but not a strategic corporate 
risk.  The Head of Development Services pointed out there was a risk of appeal 
against refusal of planning permission even with a five year supply but that was the 
nature of the planning process.  The Member asked whether the five year supply 
would stop being a risk once the Borough Plan had been formally adopted and the 
Corporate Director explained that, whilst it should mean there was a five year 
supply, that did not stop applications being permitted which people did not want to 
be permitted but the tilted balance would not apply.  The Head of Development 
Services clarified that, once adopted, the Council would state there was a five year 
supply but that would always be challenged by developers. 

47.4 With regard to Ref. 3 in relation to cyber security, set out at Pages No. 61-62 of the 
report, a Member asked if cyber training was compulsory for staff and Members 
and how much it actually reduced risk.  In response, the Head of Finance and 
Asset Management advised that training was mandatory for all staff and there was 
additional high-level training for management.  A Member training session was 
taking place on 29 March 2022 and, whilst there was an expectation that all 
Members would attend, they could not be forced to.  The biggest risk to cyber 
security was people which was why all staff were required to undergo training.  The 
Member asked to be provided with the number of Councillors who attended the 
training.  Another Member expressed the view that it was a risk if not all Members 
had received some sort of cyber training; it had been stated that it could not be 
made mandatory but she was aware that other organisations did make it 
mandatory.  The Corporate Director explained that political groups had the power 
to mandate and that was the appropriate place for it to happen in her view. 

47.5 In relation to Ref. 6 Emergency Planning, set out at Pages No. 64-65 of the report, 
the Member asked if there was a list of emergencies, for instance, flooding, 
chemical weapon attack etc.  The Head of Community Services indicated that the 
nature of emergency planning meant it was about unforeseen events.  There were 
some things which could be planned for, such as flooding, and the Local 
Resilience Forum offered training exercises for certain events with one being run 
the following month in relation to what would happen if there was a national power 
outage.  In terms of the pandemic, there was a plan in place for the flu but not one 
for COVID-19 and there were some things which just could not be anticipated.  He 
was unsure if there was a list but, if not, he would be happy to compile one to 
demonstrate what plans were in place.  A Member drew attention to Ref. 7 
Swindon Road Depot, set out at Pages No. 65-66 of the report, and asked whether 
there was any indication that Cheltenham Borough Council was minded to 
terminate the lease agreement.  The Head of Community Services advised that 
there was no indication of that but there was always a risk that it could choose to 
do so. 

47.6 With regard to Ref 8 Safeguarding Arrangements, as set out at Pages No. 66-67 of 
the report, a Member expressed the view that all Councillors should be subject to 
Disclosure and Barring Services (DBS) checks given the role they played in their 
communities.  The Head of Community Services indicated that he did not think all 

6



AUD.24.03.22 

Members could be required to undergo DBS checks; however, staff and Members 
did receive safeguarding training and certain staff were required to undergo DBS 
checks as part of their roles.  The Corporate Director confirmed that had certainly 
been the case but it had not been checked recently so she was happy to look into 
it and report back to Members outside of the meeting.  In terms of Ref. 11 Brexit, 
the Member asked for an explanation of what was meant by ‘election – impact on 
resources’ and whether the Government funding of £52,000 was an annual amount 
or a one-off.   She noted that wholesale prices had risen over the past couple of 
years but a lot of businesses had not passed this on to customers, however, she 
felt that was likely to happen soon and there may be issues with freedom of 
movement.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management clarified that it was one-
off funding which had been received a couple of years ago to address the impact 
of extra resources that had to be put in place.  The Head of Community Services 
was of the view that the full impact of Brexit had not yet been felt and there could 
be a risk in terms of not being able to get hold of resources so he undertook to 
discuss this with the Head of Corporate Services following the meeting. 

47.7 In relation to Ref.12 Garden Town, set out at Pages No. 69-72 of the report, a 
Member was interested to read about the challenges as these had not been raised 
at the Tewkesbury Garden Town Member Reference Panel.  She was particularly 
concerned about the fact that a business case needed to be submitted to the 
Government by summer 2022.  The Head of Development Services explained that 
this related to the work which was being led by the County Council on the J9/A46 
project.  The Garden Town Team bid to Homes England was a separate issue and 
she confirmed that, as of today, Officers had still not received the outcome of that 
bid.  The Member went on to draw attention to Ref. 13 Ashchurch Bridge, set out at 
Pages No. 72-73 of the report, and noted that a Parish Council was taking 
Tewkesbury Borough Council to Court; however, it appeared the work was 
continuing regardless of that and she asked if that could go ahead without a 
decision on the appeal.  In response, the Corporate Director explained that the 
Judicial Review had ruled in the Council’s favour in January and all challenges had 
been dismissed but the Parishes had now lodged an appeal which had been taken 
to the High Court.  It made sense for work to go ahead as the Council had been 
successful in the first instance; however, nothing was being done that could not be 
stopped and no work would be formally contracted until the outcome of the case 
was known.  A Member raised concern that the grant which was underwriting the 
building of the bridge may not be enough going forward if costs continued to 
escalate and she asked whether there was a contingency built-in.  The Head of 
Finance and Asset Management advised that a sizable contingency had been 
included when the bid was submitted and the contractor had previously indicated 
that there was still sufficient budget; however, he recognised that costs were 
increasing almost daily so he would discuss this with the Garden Town Programme 
Director and ask the contractor to do a more detailed exercise to understand if the 
costs were still feasible within the current parameters. 

47.8 In relation to Ref. 15 Climate Change, as set out at Pages No. 74-76 of the report, 
a Member noted that grant funding was now being used for the solar canopy and 
she asked whether the report needed to be updated as she understood that the 
cost had increased considerably.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
explained that the £284,000 funding that had been secured from the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) had been realigned to support the delivery of a 
solar canopy in the Council car park, rather than replacement of the heating 
systems within the Council Offices as originally intended.  A recent tender for the 
solar canopy had shown that total costs were now in the region of £533,000 rather 
than £303,000 as per estimates in autumn 2021 therefore a report was being taken 
to the Executive Committee meeting at the end of the month to request approval to 
utilise existing reserves in order to deliver the project.  Whilst there was a risk of 
losing the PSDS funding, he felt there was a valid case for the project to go ahead 

7



AUD.24.03.22 

as it would be a visible sign of the Council’s carbon reduction ambitions and a way 
to address the rising costs of energy.  Members were informed that the Council’s 
bid for a further £700,000 to support the replacement heating system had been 
unsuccessful as the scheme had run out of funding but the Council was now in a 
good position to go ahead if there was another round of PSDS funding or another 
opportunity to support that scheme – Officers were keen to secure external funding 
for the project as soon as possible. 

47.9 With regard to Ref. 17 Waste Transfer Station, as set out at Pages No. 76-77 of 
the report, a Member noted that, at the time of writing the report, the County 
Council had not renewed the contract and she asked for an update in relation to 
this.  The Head of Community Services explained that Grundon’s had gained 
planning permission which was in place until July 2022 but not beyond that so it 
needed to submit another planning application.  The County Council may consider 
signing another contract but it was not able to do that until a planning application 
had been submitted.  This was a massive risk to Tewkesbury Borough Council and 
would have a significant financial impact. 

47.10 Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED  That the risks and mitigating controls within the corporate risk 
register be NOTED. 

A&G.48 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

48.1  The report of the Financial Services Manager, circulated at Pages No. 78-96, set 
out the main changes in accounting policies under the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom in 2021/22.  Members were asked to 
approve the accounting policies to be used in the preparation of the 2021/22 
financial statements. 

48.2 The Trainee Accountant advised that there were no major changes to the Code of 
Practice for the financial year beginning 1 April 2021.  The new standard IFRS16, 
which was a major change in the way leases were treated, had been deferred for 
another year until at least 2022/23.  It was noted that the Council had changed the 
depreciation on waste bins to 10 years rather than seven years in line with the 
manufacturers’ warranty.  A Member asked what the carrying value of the bins was 
and how the impact would be spread over 10 years rather than seven years and the 
Trainee Accountant undertook to provide that information following the meeting.  A 
Member drew attention to Page No. 82 of the report which referenced pensions and 
she pointed out that the County Council had recently reallocated 10% of its Brunel 
Pension Partnership fund to the newly formed Paris-Aligned Investment Initiative - a 
collaborative investor-led global forum enabling investors to align their portfolios and 
activities to the goals of the Paris Agreement - and, whilst she would like to see 
more progress in this regard, she felt this was a good start. 

48.3 It was 

RESOLVED  That the accounting policies to be used in the preparation of the 
2021/22 financial statements be NOTED. 

A&G.49 CIPFA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE  

49.1  The report of the Financial Services Manager, circulated at Pages No. 97-111, 
asked Members to approve the Assessment of Compliance with the Financial 
Management Code and to agree to receive an annual monitoring report on progress 
against the Code. 

 

8



AUD.24.03.22 

 

49.2  Members were advised that the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) had published the new Financial Management Code in 
October 2019 which was designed to support good practice in financial 
management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial 
sustainability.  In terms of background, the Trainee Accountant explained that, in 
July 2018, an independent inspection of Northamptonshire County Council had 
found that failures at the Council were not due to a lack of funding but a result of 
poor management, a lack of budgetary control and a culture which discouraged 
challenge.  CIPFA had subsequently developed the Financial Management Code to 
align the Prudential Code, treasury management and the Code of Practice.  The 
Financial Management Code was based on six principles, as set out at Page No. 
99, Paragraph 2.2. of the report, and beneath those were 17 standards which all 
authorities had to comply with as a minimum.   

49.3 The Financial Management Code had been due to come into effect from 1 April 
2020; however, after further consideration of the ambitions within the Code and the 
wider resource challenges facing local authorities, particularly during the pandemic, 
CIPFA had concluded that, by 31 March 2021, local authorities should be able to 
demonstrate that they were working towards full implementation of the Code and 
the first full year of compliance would therefore be 2021/22.  Due to unprecedented 
pressures on Council services, the decision had been taken to delay full 
implementation of the Code until 2022/23; notwithstanding this, work had 
commenced and the self-assessment had been completed which had shown that, in 
comparison to other authorities, Tewkesbury Borough Council was performing well 
in terms of its day-to-day actions.  Appendix A to the report attached a draft 
Assessment of Compliance which included a number of identified actions to be 
taken forward to assist with the Council’s compliance with the 17 standards within 
the Code.  This would continue to be reviewed and refined and a formal assessment 
would be presented to the Committee on an annual basis. 

49.4 A Member drew attention to Code Ref 1A on Pages No. 101-102 which referred to 
the Council having the sixth lowest Council Tax in England and questioned whether 
this was supposed to be viewed as a positive given that Cheltenham Borough 
Council received £2.5m more than Tewkesbury Borough Council because it had a 
“normal” Council Tax rate.  In response, the Head of Finance and Asset 
Management explained that was in the context of value for money for the taxpayer; 
the Council provided a good level of service at a very cheap price.  The Member felt 
it was important to take the opportunity to educate people and raise awareness of 
the implications of the low Council Tax rate.  Another Member indicated that she 
could not see any mention of training for Members and budget holders within the 
Assessment and she raised concern that she had no financial background training 
but was expected to understand local government finance.  The Finance Manager 
indicated that she would circulate a Member Update attaching the CIPFA 
Introductory Guide to Local Government Finance which aimed to help local 
Councillors, those working with and for local Councils, and anybody with an interest 
in the sector to understand the complexity of local government finance.  The Head 
of Finance and Asset Management pointed out that, unfortunately, the current 
Council term had been very much disrupted by the pandemic so Members had not 
received the financial training that would normally be offered following the Member 
induction programme in 2019.  He provided assurance that Officers would be 
looking at how better financial training could be delivered as part of the induction 
programme for 2023.  A Member expressed the view that training often needed to 
be repeated so it was important that the training programme was ongoing 
throughout the course of the Council term and not just during the induction. 

 

9



AUD.24.03.22 

 

49.5 With regard to Code Ref 5L, set out at Page No. 108, a Member noted that a 
Citizens’ Panel was used for targeted engagement on issues and she indicated that 
she had previously been on that Panel but had removed herself when she became 
a Member so it would be worth checking there were no other Members on the 
Panel.  She suggested that introducing a Citizens’ Panel for other elements, such as 
the environment, may be beneficial.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
undertook to feed these points back to the Head of Corporate Services following the 
meeting. 

49.6 It was 

RESOLVED          1. That the Assessment of Compliance with the Financial 
Management Code be APPROVED. 

2.That it be AGREED that an annual monitoring report be 
brought to the Audit and Governance Committee in order to 
consider progress against the Code. 

A&G.50 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN MONITORING REPORT  

50.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 112-119, 
summarised the work undertaken by the Internal Audit team following release of 
resources from the COVID-19 business cell.  Members were asked to consider the 
audit work completed and in progress and the assurance given on the adequacy of 
internal controls operating in the systems audited. 

50.2  Members were advised that, now the Internal Audit team was back up and running, 
a number of actions had been implemented since the last Audit and Governance 
Committee in December 2021 and these were outlined at Pages No. 113-114, 
Paragraph 2.2 of the report.  The actions centred around the people and processes 
to support the re-establishment of the Internal Audit team.  Two audits had been 
completed to date and full details were attached at Appendix 1 to the report – the 
main audit was in relation to the creditors system and the overall level of control had 
been found to be reasonable.  In terms of the recommendations arising from that 
audit, it had been found that purchase orders for some goods or services were 
being raised after receipt of the creditor invoice which could lead to understatement 
of commitments against service budgets and no documentation to match to the 
invoice to check the price etc. which required additional administration and delays in 
payment.  The second audit was in relation to the local authority COVID-19 
compliance and enforcement grant to provide assurance that the monies had been 
spent in accordance with the grant conditions and in a timely manner.  The audit 
had confirmed a substantial level of control and a declaration form signed by the 
Chief Audit Executive had been issued.  Other corporate improvement work 
undertaken was detailed at Page No. 118 of the report and one outstanding 
recommendation arising from the risk management audit 2019/20 had now been 
implemented as set out at Page No. 119 of the report.  In terms of work in progress, 
the debtors audit had shown substantial compliance but three or four grant 
applications required sign-off by the Chief Audit Executive and that was currently 
being worked on. 

50.3 Accordingly, it was 

RESOLVED That the Internal Audit Monitoring Report be NOTED. 

 

 

 

10



AUD.24.03.22 

A&G.51 INTERNAL AUDIT SIX MONTH PLAN 2022/23  

51.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 120-127, set 
out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for April-September 2022.  Members were 
asked to approve the six month plan as set out at Appendix 1 to the report. 

51.2  The Head of Finance and Asset Management advised that, in normal 
circumstances, the plan would be delivered by two full-time equivalent members of 
staff.  Currently the team was resourced with 1.5 full-time equivalents due to the 
redeployment of resources to the business cell and information governance.  Plan 
delivery was based on 1.5 full-time equivalents plus additional resource from 
budget reserves which was ringfenced for technical ICT audit work which brought 
that up to 1.7 full-time equivalents.  From July, it was hoped that the work of 
business cell would come to a conclusion and the Internal Auditor could return to 
her team.  In addition, a new Information Governance Officer post had been 
approved as part of the 2022/23 budget so, as soon as that had been recruited to, 
a further 0.5 full-time equivalent could be returned to internal audit.  The Head of 
Finance and Asset Management indicated that he was also looking at new burdens 
funding to see if that would allow further investment in internal audit.  Taking all of 
this into account, it was hoped there would be 4.2 full-time equivalents delivering 
the Internal Audit Plan as opposed to the normal two which demonstrated the level 
of investment into the Internal Audit team which he hoped to see continue into the 
following financial year.  The Internal Audit Plan took into account several key 
aspects which were detailed at Pages No. 122-123 of the report.  It was noted that 
a number of days had been allocated for follow-up reviews - these had been 
somewhat neglected in recent months so it was necessary to pick up those 
recommendations and report back to Members as to whether they had been 
delivered. 

51.3 The Chair welcomed the plan and the resources that were being put into its 
delivery.  He had recently had a positive meeting with the Internal Audit team and 
was confident that progress would now be made.  A Member recognised that 
internal audit cost money so it was a question of balancing risk against the cost of 
risk management – the pandemic had inadvertently meant that the Council had 
functioned without internal audit for the last year and, based on that, he asked 
whether 4.2 full-time equivalents was sensible and if the balance was right.  In 
response, the Head of Finance and Asset Management explained that the 4.2 full-
time equivalents was a temporary measure in order to help with recovery and that 
would go back to the normal level of two going forward.  In his view, this was the 
right amount of resource to adequately inform the internal audit function and gain a 
sense of reassurance.  A Member expressed the view that the plan ought to 
include something environmental as the Council had been doing so much work in 
that regard and the Head of Finance and Asset Management indicated that he was 
sure audits of the solar canopy and delivery of the carbon reduction plan would be 
included in future plans. 

51.4 It was  

RESOLVED That the Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2022/23 (April-
September) be NOTED. 

 

 

 

 

 

11



AUD.24.03.22 

A&G.52 INTERNAL AUDIT QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  

52.1  The report of the Chief Audit Executive (Head of Corporate Services), circulated at 
Pages No. 128-135, provided Members with the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme.  Members were asked to consider the report. 

52.2  The Internal Auditor advised that, in line with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Chief Audit Executive must develop and 
maintain a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.  The proposed 
Programme, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, was split into two parts – the first 
section provided a summary of the Council’s internal audit process and assessed its 
efficiency and effectiveness and the second section set out the improvement 
programme for the next 12 months highlighting the areas where internal audit 
resources would be focused.  The programme must include both internal and 
external assessments and, as the last external assessment was undertaken in 
November 2017, a further assessment was due in 2022.  It was proposed this be 
carried out in the latter quarter of 2022/23 in order to allow the internal audit function 
to fully recover from redeployment to the Council’s COVID-19 response. 

52.3  Accordingly, it was 

RESOLVED That the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme be NOTED. 

A&G.53 MONITORING OF SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES  

53.1 The report of the Corporate Director, circulated at Pages No. 136-141, set out the 
Significant Governance Issues identified in the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement and the action taken to address them.  Members were asked to consider 
the progress made against those actions. 

53.2 Members were advised that three of the six actions had been completed and two 
had been started but the final action in relation to developing a new Local Code of 
Corporate Governance had been delayed due to resources being deployed to the 
COVID-19 response.  In relation to the governance arrangements for Community 
Infrastructure Levy, it was noted that the three Joint Core Strategy authorities were 
in the process of reviewing and confirming formal arrangements but assurance was 
provided that there was governance already in place, just not joint governance.   

53.3 Accordingly, it was 

RESOLVED That progress against the Significant Governance Issues 
identified in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement be 
NOTED. 

 The meeting closed at 12:10 pm 

 
 

12



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held at the Council 
Offices, Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 17 May 2022 commencing at 

6:15 pm

Present:

Chair Councillor V D Smith
Vice Chair Councillor H C McLain

and Councillors:

P A Godwin, D W Gray, J P Mills, H S Munro and P E Smith

A&G.1 ELECTION OF CHAIR 

 1.1 The Mayor opened the meeting by seeking nominations for the Chairmanship of 
the Committee. 

1.2 It was proposed and seconded that Councillor V D Smith be nominated as Chair of 
the Committee. Upon being put to the vote it was 
RESOLVED That Councillor V D Smith be elected as Chair of the Audit and 

Governance Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year.   

A&G.1 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 

2.1 Councillor V D Smith took the chair and invited nominations for Vice-Chair of the 
Committee.

2.2 It was proposed and seconded that Councillor H C McLain be nominated as Vice-
Chair of the Committee.  Upon being put to the vote it was
RESOLVED That Councillor H C McLain be appointed as Vice-Chair of the 

Audit and Governance Committee for the ensuing Municipal 
Year. 

The meeting closed at 6:30 pm

13



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Additions to 20 July 2022 

• Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Fraud Risk Strategy 

• Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 
Deletions from 20 July 2022 

• Local Authority Serious and Organised Crime Checklist – this will be included as an appendix to the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit 
Update 

• Audit Fee 2022/23 – moved o 22 March 2023 as the fee will not be set until the end of November. 

 
 

Committee Date: 28 September 2022 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

External Auditor’s Findings To consider the external auditor’s findings 
2021/22. 

External Auditors. No. 

Internal Audit Six Month Plan 
2022/23 

To approve the Internal Audit Six Month 
Plan 2022/23 (Oct-Mar). 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Monitoring of Significant 
Governance Issues 

To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified in 
the Annual Governance Statement and to 
review progress against the actions. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risks contained within the 
Corporate Risk Register and assurance 
that the risks are being effectively 
managed.   

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Letter of Representation To consider the S151 Officer’s Letter of 
Representation on the closure of the 
accounts for the year ended 31 March 
2021. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No. 

14

A
genda Item

 5



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 28 September 2022 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Statement of Accounts 
2021/22 

To approve the Statement of Accounts 
2021/22. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No.  

Annual Governance 
Statement 2021/22 

To approve the Annual Governance 
Statement 2021/22. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

 
 
 

15



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 
 

Committee Date: 23 November 2022 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

External Auditor’s Annual 
Report 

To consider the external auditor’s annual 
report. 

External Auditors No. 

External Auditor’s Progress 
Report 

To consider the external auditors’ report 
on progress against planned outputs. 

External Auditors. No. 

Internal Audit Plan 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Monitoring of Significant 
Governance Issues 

To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified 
in the Annual Governance Statement and 
to review progress against the actions. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit Update 

To consider the six monthly update from 
the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit Manager. 

No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risks contained within the 
Corporate Risk Register and assurance 
that the risks are being effectively 
managed.   

 

 

 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

16



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 23 November 2022 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Annual Update on Council’s 
Safeguarding Arrangements 

 

Annual report to give assurance as to the 
level of the Council’s compliance with its 
safeguarding duty. 

(To include Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding Children Board Section 11 
Self-Assessment) 

Head of Community Services. No. 

Annual Report on the 
Council’s Arrangements for 
General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) 

To receive the annual report on the 
adequacy of the Council’s GDPR 
arrangements. 

Borough Solicitor No. 

 

17



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 

Committee Date: 22 March 2023 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Local Authority Serious 
and Organised Crime 
Checklist 

To consider progress made against 
the action plan. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Counter Fraud 
and Enforcement Unit Manager. 

No. – Will form part of the Counter 
Fraud and Enforcement Unit 
Update 

External Auditor’s Annual 
Report 

To consider the external auditor’s annual 
report. 

External Auditors No. 

External Auditor’s Progress 
Report 

To consider the external auditors’ report 
on progress against planned outputs. 

External Auditors. No. 

External Auditor’s Audit 
Plan 2022/23 

To consider the external auditors’ Audit 
Plan 2022/23. 

External Auditors. No. 

Audit Fee 2023/24 To consider the audit scale fee for 
2023/24. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

Yes – moved from 20 July as the 
fees will not be set until the end of 
November 2022. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies 

To approve the accounting policies to be 
used during the preparation of the 
2022/23 financial statements. 

Finance Manager. No. 

Internal Audit Plan 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Six Month 
Plan 2022/23 

To approve the Internal Audit Six Month 
Plan 2022/23 (Apr-Sept). 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Monitoring of Significant To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

18



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 22 March 2023 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Governance Issues in the Annual Governance Statement and 
to review progress against the actions. 

 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risks contained within the 
Corporate Risk Register and assurance 
that the risks are being effectively 
managed. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Quality 
Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 

To consider the outcome of the external 
assessment and the recommendations 
arising and to approve the agreed action 
plan for delivery of those 
recommendations.  

Head of Corporate Services No. 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code – 
Assessment of Compliance 

To consider progress made against the 
actions within the Assessment of 
Compliance (annual report). 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

 

19



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 

Committee Date: July 2023 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

External Auditor’s Audit Plan 
2022/23 

To consider the external auditor’s Audit 
Plan 2022/23. 

External Auditors. No. 

External Auditor’s – Informing 
the Risk Assessment 

To consider. External Auditors. No. 

Annual Report on Health and 
Safety Activities 

To consider the adequacy of the 
Council’s health and safety 
arrangements. 

Head of Community Services. No. 

Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit Report 

To consider the annual update on the 
work of the Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit team. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit Manager. 

No. 

Internal Audit Plan Monitoring 
Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
2022/23 

To consider the Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2022/23 and the assurance from 
the work undertaken during the year on 
the level of internal control within the 
systems audited during the year. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risk register and the risks 
contained within it. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

 

Audit and Governance 
Committee Annual Report 
2022/23 

To approve the Audit and Governance 
Committee Annual Report 2022/23. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

20



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Comments   

NONE    

 
 
 
 

21



22

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

23



Commercial in confidence

24



Commercial in confidence



25



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

27



Commercial in confidence

28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

29



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

31



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

33



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

34



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

35



Commercial in confidence

36



Commercial in confidence

16

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

•

•

•

•

37



Commercial in confidence

38



Commercial in confidence

39



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

40



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 
2019)

41



Commercial in confidence

42



Commercial in confidence

43



Commercial in confidence

23

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 
information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 
purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 
management

Effective management and oversight of 
requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 
complete data populations

44



Commercial in confidence

TBC As part of our related parties testing we identified that not all councillors 
had provided a declaration during the period, and the related parties note 
was being compiled from prior period disclosures. We recommend that the 
council ensures all councillors complete a declaration on an annual basis.

We will confirm progress in implementing these recommendations as part of 
our audit fieldwork stage and report our findings in the Audit Findings 
Report.

TBC As part of our work on the closing balance of assets, we identified that the 
council has over £2m of fully depreciated assets on its balance sheet. We 
recommend that the council reviews its assets, removing those that are no 
longer in use from it’s balance sheet and considering whether the useful life 
originally assigned to those assets was appropriate. As part of the council’s 
findings, we recommend considering whether there is any impact on the 
useful lives assigned to other assets, and amending these as necessary.

We will confirm progress in implementing these recommendations as part of 
our audit fieldwork stage and report our findings in the Audit Findings 
Report.

45



46



Informing the Audit and 
Governance risk assessment for 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 
2021/22

Julie Masci
Director
T 029 2023 5591
E Julie.masci@uk.gt.com

Liam Royle
Manager
T 0117 305 7687
E liam.c.royle@uk.gt.com

47

A
genda Item

 7



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our Audit and Governance process.  It is not a 
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 
particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 
your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared 
solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 
consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 
or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

2

48



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

49



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Tewkesbury Borough Council's external Auditors 
and Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Audit and Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas 
of the Auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee under Audit standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Audit (UK), (ISA(UK)) Auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit and Governance 
Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the Auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee and also 
specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the Auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the Audit and 
Governance and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the Auditor to obtain information relevant to the Audit from the Audit 
and Governance Committee and supports the Audit and Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting 
process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 
following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

50



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Tewkesbury Borough Council’s 
management. The Audit and Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether 
there are any further comments it wishes to make. 

5

51



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues 
that will have a significant impact on the financial 
statements for 2021/22?

The main issue during the whole of 2021-22 was the continuing response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. During the year we paid out over £5m of COVID business grants and over £300k of 
Self Isolation payment to individuals. We also gave awarded over £4m of COVID business rate 
reliefs which was compensated by s31 grants.

Due to events such as Brexit, COVID-19, war in Ukraine or rise in inflation there is a risk of 
material misstatement within property, plant & equipment. However, we mitigate this risk by 
having our assets valued every year.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by Tewkesbury 
Borough Council?
Have there been any events or transactions that 
may cause you to change or adopt new accounting 
policies? If so, what are they?

The accounting policies are reviewed annually for appropriateness. There are no changes to 
accounting policies but we have changed the estimate of useful life for bins in line with the 
warranty offered by manufacturers.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, 
including derivatives? If so, please explain

The accounts contain financial instruments including debtors, creditors, investments and 
borrowing. The council does not use and derivatives.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction 
outside the normal course of business? If so, what 
are they?

Apart from the COVID related transactions the main project outside the normal course of business 
is the Ashchurch Bridge project which is worth £8.5m over the lifetime of the project.

6

52



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances 
that would lead to impairment of non-current assets? 
If so, what are they?

No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 
please provide further details

None that we are aware of.

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss 
contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that may 
affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 
further details

No

8.
Other than in house solicitors, can you provide 
details of those solicitors utilised by Tewkesbury 
Borough Council during the year. Please indicate 
where they are working on open litigation or 
contingencies from prior years?

Pinsent Mason – specialist legal advice for the Garden Towns work including Ashchurch Bridge

Mr Richard Atkins QC – H&S legal prosecution against WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC

Mr Mark Jackson – Tradeteam prosecution

Mr Horatio Waller – Planning appeal high court case Piffs Elm

Cornerstone Barristers – Challenge appeal decision on a development in Gotherington

Mr James Pereira QC - Planning appeal high court case Piffs Elm

Mr Meyric Lewis – Planning appeal on land at Coombe Hill

Government Legal Department - Challenge appeal decision on a development in Gotherington

Gary Spencer – s106 work in respect of appeals at Oakley Farm, Alderton, Fiddington 2 and Fleet lane, 
Twyning.

Martin Evans - general legal advice

Josef Cannon – Planning appeals in Alderton & Fiddington.

Rowan Clapp - Planning appeal Fleet Lane, Twyning.

7

53



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Council’s service providers reported 
any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws and 
regulations or uncorrected misstatements which would 
affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 
further details

None that we are aware of.

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 
during the year and the issue on which they were 
consulted?

Treasury Management Advisors – Arlingclose Ltd

Local authority tax advice – PsTax Ltd

Financial accounting advice - CIPFA

Specialist consultants for Garden Towns projects – Colin Molton Consultancy Ltd, Arup Ltd

Planning service review – POS Enterprises Ltd

One Legal structure review – Cadence Innova

Heating replacement & Solar canopy – McCann and Partners

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 
expected credit loss provisions may be required under 
IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 
investments? If so, please provide further details

These will be considered as part of the year end process. Our Treasury Management Advisors provide data 
for any treasury investments we have at year end.

8

54



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers Auditors’ responsibilities relating to fraud in an Audit and Governance of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Governance Committee and management. 
Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit and Governance Committee should 
consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Tewkesbury Borough Council’s external Auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the Audit and 
Governance, considering the potential for management override of controls.

As part of our Audit and Governance risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the 
arrangements management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit and Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit and Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 
of both management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These
areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Tewkesbury Borough Council’s 
management. 

9

55



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
1. Has Tewkesbury Borough Council assessed the risk 
of material misstatement in the financial statements due 
to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 
the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 
results of this process?

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 
financial reporting?

The Council has a robust financial control framework, supported by financial regulations, standing orders, scheme of 
delegation and an independent and objective Internal Audit function and Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit. This 
mitigates the significant risk posed by collusion.

Responsibility for ensuring that fraud and corruption risks are addressed sits with the Head of Finance and Asset 
Management (S151 Officer). The CFEU/internal audit/finance/corporate – there are a plethora of mechanisms in place 
from corporate policies such as anti-fraud and corruption, whistleblowing, money-laundering etc. to operational work 
programmes of the CFEU and internal audit. There are also service related controls such as HR recruitment and 
vetting and ICT related policies. The council’s fraud risk is deemed low as we no longer have direct responsibility for 
housing stock, leisure or waste services.

The finance team comprises skilled, qualified accounting officers responsible for regular monitoring of management 
accounts to report actual income and expenditure against budgeted and forecast performance. This process includes 
discussions with service leads and review of variances to identify any instances of fraud and error. The annual budget 
is risk assessed and reported, and then monitored as part of the revenue and capital budget monitoring process. All 
reports to Executive Committee include a section on financial implication and risk assessment to ensure that members 
are aware of the financial risks of making a decision.

The Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy, the Corporate Enforcement Policy, the Whistleblowing Policy, and the 
Internal Audit Charter are formally agreed by the Council (at a meeting of the appropriate Committee/Executive). 
These documents set out the role of Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit in the prevention and 
investigation of fraud. 

The Audit and Governance Committee also approves the annual audit plan and counter fraud plan which includes 
allocation of resources to respond to fraud allegations and prepare audits to consider possible areas where fraud may 
be a risk.

The work of the Counter Fraud Team is reported to the Audit and Governance Committee on a biannual basis. The 
overall remit is to prevent, detect and deter the abuse of public funds within the Council by working closely with other 
public sector organisations. The team can undertake reactive investigation work where a referral is received and where 
necessary, proactive fraud drives in high risk areas. Internal investigations have taken place by the Counter Fraud Unit 
and appropriate action has been taken and reported where appropriate.

10

56



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessmentQuestion Management response
3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other 
irregularities either within Tewkesbury Borough 
Council as a whole, or within specific 
departments since 1 April 2021? If so, please 
provide details

Any instances of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, error or other irregularities that are identified are reported to Corporate Management 
and the Audit Committee (see CFEU reports for full details). Benefit fraud investigation is the responsibility of the DWP.  Abuse of the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme is supported by the Revenues and Benefit staff.

The CFEU investigate all allegations of wrongdoing in relation to the abuse of public funds. These matters are managed in line with 
Council’s policies, including disciplinary policy, and will be reported to the police where appropriate.  

4. As a management team, how do you 
communicate risk issues (including fraud) to 
those charged with governance?                                                                                         

In some instances recommendations have been made in respect of control procedures and reports are issued to the appropriate Service 
Leads and Governance Group.

The Audit and Governance Committee i.e. ‘those charged with governance’ receive regular reports including:

- - Six monthly updates on the work of the CFEU.

- - internal audit (re-deployed in 21/22) provide quarterly monitoring reports on finalised audit assignments incl updates of whether 
recommendations have been updated or not

- - corporate risk register is presented at each committee meeting

- - annual overview of serious and organised crime checklist

- - all related risk and governance type policies are considered by the A&G cttee prior to approval by the Executive Committee

The CFEU has a similar annual plan for its work which includes an allocation of resources to investigate any alleged fraud. Performance 
against the Internal Audit Plan and Counter Fraud Plan and any specific issues identified are reported quarterly/half yearly to the Audit 
Committee. 

CFEU have prepared a Counter fraud and anti corruption policy for approval in the new financial year.

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? 
If so, please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that 
are at risk of fraud?

The main areas of abuse relate to fraud associated with benefits to include the Councils Council Tax Reduction Scheme although reviews 
and verification processes within the department keep this to a minimum. In addition abuse relating to Council Tax and Business Rates 
avoidance / evasion affects a main revenue stream and due to the pandemic, abuse of Business Grants is a significant fraud risk area.

Some high risk areas are no longer within the domain of the Council - depot services are managed by Ubico, leisure matters are 
contracted out and the Council does not retain housing stock therefore Tenancy Fraud is not a concern although Housing Application 
abuse remains an area that requires monitoring. 

11

57



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
5. Have you identified any specific 
fraud risks? If so, please provide 
details

Do you have any concerns there 
are areas that are at risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within 
Tewkesbury Borough Council
where fraud is more likely to  
occur?

There are low risk internal areas such as mileage expense abuse but this is not significant due to the pandemic. Recruitment and 
payroll are also areas which are open to abuse. Procurement fraud, specifically within property services departments, remains an area 
susceptible to abuse because of the significantly high levels of expenditure. 

Regarding external fraud, both Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud Unit have undertaken work around serious and organised crime 
and continue to promote awareness and tackle any areas affecting Tewkesbury Borough.  

Cyber related crime remains a significant risk for the Council and this is managed and reported on by the ICT Team.

Procurement fraud, specifically within property services departments, remains an area susceptible to abuse because of the significantly 
high levels of expenditure. 

Regarding external fraud, both Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud Unit have undertaken work around serious and organised crime 
and continue to promote awareness and tackle any areas affecting Tewkesbury Borough.  

Cyber related crime remains a significant risk for the Council and this is managed and reported on by the ICT Team.

It cannot be stated that fraud will not occur, but I would not consider one area being significantly at risk. I would add that there is a 
current increased risk of fraud across the Council due to the pandemic, especially with the payment of NNDR and Community Grant 
payments.

6. What processes do Tewkesbury 
Borough Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of 
fraud?

The existence of the CFEU as a permanent dedicated service significantly mitigates fraud risk generally.  The overall remit is to 
prevent, detect and deter the abuse of public funds within the Council by working closely with other public sector organisations and 
referring to recommendations by the Home Office and other professional bodies.  The team undertakes reactive investigation work 
where a referral is received and where necessary, proactive fraud drives in high risk areas.

The CFEU have promoted and introduced processes for internal and external reporting for both staff and by members of the public.
Whistleblowing is becoming more effective as a result. 

There are many financial controls around the validity and payment of invoices and work with HR re recruitment controls in place to 
ensure all new employees are vetted properly and that staff recognise fraudulent qualifications. Work has been completed in relation to 
gifts and hospitality procedures and is underway in relation to conflicts / declarations of interest by staff. The CFEU assist with NFI data 
matching and undertake our own data matching exercises where risk has been identified. The Council also employs a number of
Enforcement Officers within the various service areas who undertake work to tackle abuse of public funds.

12

58



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
7. How do you assess the overall control 
environment for Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
including:

• the existence of internal controls, including 
segregation of duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the 
system of internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective 
where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions 
have been taken?
What other controls are in place to help prevent, 
deter or detect fraud?
Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)? If so, please provide details

The focus of the internal team has been on the very high risk areas relating to business grants with a reduced focus 
on normal council services. Given reduced focus, management assurance statements will go to A&G later this year.  
The Corporate Governance Group (comprising senior officers) undertake a high level review of the council’s 
governance arrangements which will touch upon the system of internal control. 

There is a good working relationship between the CFEU and Internal Audit, which ensures that internal control 
weaknesses identified through counter fraud activities are followed up, following management action to address the 
weaknesses by internal audit reviews. External Audit also report their findings and recommendations to Audit and 
Governance Committee, which is subject to the same process of monitoring and challenge.  Outcomes of audit work 
feed in to the Annual Governance Statement which is considered by the Management Team and Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Awareness training on a regular basis reduces the risks associated with internal abuse and fraud. The promotion of 
integrity and whistleblowing channels also mitigates this. Conflict of interest / declaration of interest processes also 
help identify those staff who are a potential risk so that appropriate training and management controls can be put in 
place.  The CFEU submits data for the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and assesses all matches for review and, 
where appropriate, mitigation. On occasions such issues have been raised by both internal and external audit as part 
of the audit work. Appropriate recommendations for changes to internal controls are made on these occasions for 
management to implement. 

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for 
misreporting? If so, please provide details

The financial reporting process is subject to review and challenge by both the Finance Manager and the Head of 
Finance and Asset Management. 

There is always the potential but we believe appropriate checks and balances are in place within the shared Finance 
Team to ensure mis-reporting does not occur. The Council monitors budgets to cost centre level which would 
highlight any unexpected variances for further investigation. Financial rules govern what is required to be reported 
and controls the rules surrounding ‘virement’. Reports produced by the CFEU are subject to auditable case files held 
on the case management system.

13

59



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
9. How does Tewkesbury Borough Council
communicate and encourage ethical 
behaviours and business processes of it’s 
staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report 
about fraud? Have any significant issues been 
reported? If so, please provide details

The Council communicates and encourages ethical behaviour and business processes of its staff and contractor through its 
policies and strategies including the Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy, Employee Code of Conduct and 
Whistleblowing Policy all of which are available on the intranet site. Updates are communicated through induction and 
refresher training and other internal update channels, emails or staff training events. Staff and Member awareness sessions 
have been provided by the CFEU. Provision of refresher information and literature for new starters is being developed as 
are online training modules 

Significant contracts are let following a robust process which seeks assurance from the potential contractor that the 
organisation has appropriate policies and processes in place. The Council monitors performance and quality and 
adherence to standards of service delivery. The Procurement Team have included statements on all tender / quote 
documentation detailing the Councils approach to modern slavery, ethical procurement and supporting local businesses. 

Publicity with regard to identified fraud and error will also be encouraged to act as a deterrent generally. Through the 
continued work the CFEU have delivered across the Council relating to awareness and through reputation, staff are 
encouraged to approach the team. HR colleagues would also ensure fraud reports come to the CFEU for assessment. No 
significant issues have been reported in 2021/22. Staff are expected to report any concerns they have about fraud or the 
misuse of public funds. Any allegations received are referred to the CFEU for investigation. These matters are managed in 
line with the Council policies, including disciplinary policy, and will be reported to the Council’s Management Team where 
appropriate. In some instances, recommendations will be made in respect of control processes.

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, 
what are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts 
identified, assessed and managed?

Contract procurement posts, high level budget controllers/approvers, ICT staff with high level system access,. Officers with 
significant operational financial responsibilities, such as roles in Treasury Management, Chief Finance Officer/Deputy 
Finance Officer, and roles in Revenues and Benefits are subject to regular security checks, at recruitment and then 
regularly every three years. Each role is assessed for the requirement to undertake post holder security checks. Also never 
underestimate those lower paid jobs where access to all services ‘out of hours’ i.e. cleaners – hence why controls such as 
‘clear desk policy’ are in existence. 

Many Local Government staff are susceptible to duress and corruption due to the nature of their duties - housing teams, 
council tax officers, planning staff; however there must be a level of trust within the organisation to promote a healthy 
working environment. Conflict of interest / declaration of interest process development to make it a more risk based one -
identifying high risk staff and ensuring the correct controls are in place. Better recruitment checks to vet staff and prevent 
them entering the workplace - prevention is always the best control. 

14

60



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 
or transactions that could give rise to instances of 
fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

Organisations such as Ubico give rise to fraud risk which may affect the Council. The risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and transactions are mitigated through the requirement within the Constitution 
for members to make declarations of all relevant relationships and transactions and update their declarations on a 
quarterly basis. They are also required to disclose any relevant interests at Committee meetings and where 
appropriate withdraw and disclose any gifts and/or hospitality received via the Council register. Officers are also 
required to declare any related party transactions. Prevention methods for bribery and corruption form part of the 
CFEU work stream and are detailed within the Counter Fraud and Anti Corruption Policy.

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Audit and Governance 
Committee? 

How does the Audit and Governance Committee 
exercise oversight over management's processes 
for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 
breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 
so far this year?

On a quarterly basis, the Audit and Governance Committee receives monitoring reports from Internal Audit regarding 
work carried out by the internal audit team note: the internal audit team were redeployed during 21/22. The report 
details the work carried out compared to the plan, the level of assurance resulting from the audit, the key issues 
regarding internal controls or fraud including any breaches. Reporting includes the outcome of internal audit follow-
up reviews of the implementation of audit recommendations. 

In addition, the CFEU report biannually to Committee. The Audit and Governance  Committee approves the risk 
based Annual Audit Plan which includes a risk based system audit of core financial systems and resources for 
auditing non financial systems on a risk basis. The CFEU has a similar annual plan for its work which includes an 
allocation of resources to investigate any alleged fraud. 

Performance against the Internal Audit Plan and Counter Fraud Plan and any specific issues identified are reported 
quarterly/half yearly to the Audit and Governance Committee. The Committee is consulted on any proposed changes 
to relevant Council Policy – e.g. Whistle Blowing Policy, Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy, Money 
Laundering Policy, RIPA Policies etc. Changes to the Council’s Corporate Risk Register are also reported to the 
Audit and Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee also 
receives the Council’s quarterly performance reports, which includes changes to the Council’s risk registers and 
details of financial performance. The Audit and Governance Committee exercise oversight over management 
processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal control through challenge of 
internal audit and counter fraud, monitoring the implementation of recommendations and seeking additional 
assurances from operational management. See reports presented to Audit and Governance / Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

15

61



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 
what has been your response?

The CFEU has not received referrals via whistleblowing. Should the team receive any such referrals, reports are 
dealt with correctly and in line with the Whistleblowing Policy and with due consideration to sensitive referral sources. 
Once the investigation is complete, appropriate recommendations are made for action which may include 
prosecution, civil penalties, improvements to internal controls, and (where an employee is the subject), consideration 
of disciplinary action. 

If warranted a report would be made to the Audit and Governance Committee and recommendations for 
improvements to internal controls issued to Management Team to be followed up by internal audit. 

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act? If so, please provide details

None.

16

62



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an Audit and Governance of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Tewkesbury Borough Council's 
operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As Auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud 
or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 
inquiries of management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 
become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect 
on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

17

63



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response
1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Tewkesbury Borough Council have in 
place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 
financial statements?

All reports for decision contain a section considering legal implications and all reports for 
Executive or Council are considered by the Corporate Leadership Team (the Monitoring 
Officer is a member).

Senior Officers have sufficient knowledge and experience of their service areas to ensure 
compliance plus they have access to One Legal or professional advisers as needed. One 
Legal team are included in the draft distribution network.

We are not aware of any changes in the Council’s regulatory environment that may have a 
significant impact on the Council’s financial statements.

2. How is the Audit and Governance Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

The Audit and Governance Committee gains assurance that all laws and regulations have
been complied with through the work of Internal Audit and also by exception reporting from
the Chief Finance Officer or Monitoring Officer.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 
April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details

None that we are aware of.

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that 
would affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 
details

Any that are will be disclosed in the financial statements.18

64



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response
5. What arrangements does Tewkesbury Borough 
Council have in place to identify, evaluate and 
account for litigation or claims? 

There are solid working relationships between service areas and business partnering 
arrangements within finance, which means there are good levels of communication to identify, 
report and account for such issues. Any instances of litigation or claims are brought up at 
Management Team so the Head of Finance and Assets is aware from the start and reports 
these to the Finance Manager at weekly meetings. These are then assessed and further 
information from the relevant department is requested. 
These would also be reviewed as part of the Corporate Governance Group remit and added to 
the Corporate Risk Register if necessary.  

Insurance – all managers are aware that at any risk of litigation or a claim must be reported to 
the Insurance Officer as soon as possible.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 
details

None in the year.

19

65



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties

Tewkesbury Borough Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These may 
include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Tewkesbury Borough Council;

■ associates;

■ joint ventures;

■ a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 
Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council’s 
perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

20

66



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Question Management response
1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in Tewkesbury 
Borough Council’s 2020/21 financial statements?
If so please summarise:
• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Tewkesbury Borough 
Council

• whether Tewkesbury Borough Council has 
entered into or plans to enter into any 
transactions with these related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions

All senior managers and councillors have been sent a related party form to complete so this will be 
compared to 2020-21 to identify and potential changes or omissions and summarised in our working 
papers.

2. What controls does Tewkesbury Borough Council 
have in place to identify, account for and disclose 
related party transactions and relationships?

Annual return at year end for the accounts, members must keep their register of interests up to date with 
Democratic Services and declare any interests in committee items at the start of any meetings.
Also staff must report any gifts, hospitality or outside commitments to Human Resources and second 
jobs/voluntary roles must be signed off by the Monitoring Officer.

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and arrangements 
with related parties?

Significant transactions must be approved in accordance with the financial procedure rules and in line 
with authorised signatory limits.
Members also must withdraw from any business which is a conflict of interest with a related party.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business?

Significant transactions outside the normal course of business requires member approval.
Financial sign off limits dependent on level within authority.
The management team sign off approval for anything that does not require member approval.

21

67



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Matters in relation to Going Concern

The Audit and Governance approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit 
and Governance of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account 
the National Audit and Governance Office's Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public 
bodies.

Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 
significant focus of the Auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 
for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 
to going concern is unlikely to exist. 

For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies.
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 
line with Practice Note 10, the Auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 
financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector Auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 
underlying services will continue. 

For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 
is through such work that it will be considered. 

68



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Question Management response
1. What processes and controls does management have in place to 
identify events and / or conditions which may indicate that the 
statutory services being provided by Tewkesbury Borough Council 
will no longer continue?

A rolling Medium Term Financial Strategy is kept as a live document and updated with 
known changes which will impact on the council finances.  The s151 Officer produces a 
Going Concern Assessment on an annual basis, sits on the Corporate Leadership 
Team, and is in place to identify any changes to services or funding.

Regularly budget monitoring also takes place to identify areas of over and underspend 
which allows corrective action to be taken if necessary.

2. Are management aware of any factors which may mean for 
Tewkesbury Borough Council that either statutory services will no 
longer be provided or that funding for statutory services will be 
discontinued? If so, what are they?

Central government funding of statutory services is reducing given the cash flat 
spending review and impact of inflation on the cost of delivering services. This shortfall 
in government funding will be met locally to maintain statutory service provision. 

3. With regard to the statutory services currently provided by 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, does Tewkesbury Borough Council 
expect to continue to deliver them for the foreseeable future, or will 
they be delivered by related public authorities if there are any plans 
for Tewkesbury Borough Council to cease to exist?

Yes we do expect to continue to deliver them for the foreseeable future.

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting framework 
permits Tewkesbury Borough Council to prepare its financial 
statements on a going concern basis? Are management satisfied 
that preparing financial statements on a going concern basis will 
provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial 
statements?

Management are satisfied that Tewkesbury Borough Council can prepare their financial 
statements on a going concern basis and that it provides a faithful representation of the 
items in the statements.

69



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires Auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 
including:

• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 

• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process Auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 

Specifically do Audit and Governance Committee members:

• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 
management; and

• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

We would ask the Audit and Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

24

70



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, 
events and conditions, that are significant to 
the financial statements that give rise to the 
need for, or changes in, accounting estimate 
and related disclosures?

The main classes are:

- property, plant and equipment valuation 

- pension fund net liability valuation

- Estimates of provisions 

- Fair value estimates of financial instruments

2. How does the Council’s risk management 
process identify and address risks relating to 
accounting estimates?

Risks are identified and addressed  through:

- Committee report reviews

- Use of experts to inform the calculation of accounting estimates e.g. calculating property valuations and pension 
liability

- Updates and bulletins from professional bodies, e.g. CIPFA 

- Discussions with service managers throughout the year

3. How does management identify the 
methods, assumptions or source data, and 
the need for changes in them, in relation to 
key accounting estimates?

We always use professional valuers and get all our assets valued annually to ensure that they are carried at
fair value. We instruct our valuers by ensuring we have all the up to date information on assets passed to
them to ensure the data is as accurate as possible.
With the pension funds we complete an annual return to the actuary to ensure they have the most up to date
information possible to value our element of the pension fund.
We review all the asset values to ensure we understand the estimation techniques involved and challenge
any we are unsure of. Also we read the accompanying information from both the property valuers and
actuary to understand the estimation techniques involved in the valuation to ensure we are comfortable with
them.

4. How do management review the outcomes 
of previous accounting estimates?

When we look at the estimates for the current year we assess those we used the previous years to ensure
they were justified and robust.

We also take note of any recommendations from the prior year audit.

71



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 
accounting estimates?

We identify the high value and high risk transactions in our accounts and look at our skill sets in house. If
we do not have the expertise in house we ensure we use a qualified and competent professional, e.g. RICS
qualified valuers etc.
The main two areas identified are property valuations and the pension liability.

7. How does the Council determine what control 
activities are needed for significant accounting 
estimates, including the controls at any service 
providers or management experts? 

Controls include clear instructions to experts on scope of work, checking information used in final reports
matches what we have given them and thoroughly reviewing reports, issuing challenges where necessary.

8. How does management monitor the operation of 
control activities related to accounting estimates, 
including the key controls at any service providers or 
management experts? 

We document and review any challenge provided or evidence required for our material accounting
estimates. 
For external experts like our actuary and valuers we provide the base data along with any other 
relevant information they would require then we review the final data and challenge/justify and 
estimates used to ensure they are robust and verified.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

The nature and extent of the oversight in relation to accounting estimates includes:
• The agreement of assumptions in advance, including their appropriateness
• Verification of the underlying data in advance
• The methodology to be used to determine the value of estimates and its appropriateness
• Review of the results for reasonableness, including comparative analysis with previous years
• Sensitivity of the results to the key assumptions to assess materiality

72



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 
what are they?

These are detailed in the critical judgements note within the statement of accounts.

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

Management is satisfied that arrangements for the accounting estimates are reasonable, as they 
are compliant with accounting standards and CIPFA’s Code of Practice plus 
have been reviewed by the Council’s finance team.
Where applicable, estimates are obtained from qualified, external (and therefore independent) actuaries
and property valuers, providing further assurance that the estimates are reasonable. 

12. How is the Audit and Governance Committee 
provided with assurance that the arrangements for 
accounting estimates are adequate ?

Accounting policies were taken to Audit and Governance Committee for approval prior to the preparation 
of the statement of accounts.

27

73



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Land and 
buildings 
valuations 
including 
Investment 
Properties

Valuations are based on the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and 
made by a RICS qualified 
valuer.

Letter of engagement 
sets out detailed 
information and basis of 
estimations.  All 
valuations are 
thoroughly reviewed 
and challenged by the 
accountants.

We use Wilks, 
Head and Eve 
for all 
valuations.

The valuers issue a formal certificate
which includes a summary of any
estimation uncertainty.  
We review and challenge all information 
provided.

No

Depreciation Useful life is detailed in our 
accounting policies dependent 
on asset types.  We use 
straight line depreciation over 
the asset’s useful economic 
life.

We review these 
annually.

We speak to 
service 
managers about 
specialized 
assets or use 
the valuers 
estimates in 
their reports.

We review and challenge any 
assumptions made.

We have 
extended the 
useful life waste 
and recycling 
bins so it is in 
line with the 
warranty issued 
by the 
manufacturers.

28

74



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Valuation of 
defined benefit 
net pension 
fund liabilities

We commission the
Gloucestershire Pension Fund
actuary to undertake this work
on our behalf, in accordance
with the Code and accounting
Standards.

We review the 
estimates used by the 
actuary and challenge 
any large movements.

The actuary of 
the 
Gloucestershire 
LGPS pension 
scheme is 
Hymans 
Robertson.

We rely on the expertise of the actuary
who produce a report on Tewkesbury’s
results which we review for
reasonableness and a sensitivity analysis
is provided by the actuary as well to
assess the likelihood the estimates may
be wrong.

No

Financial 
instruments

All models for valuations for
financial instruments are
reviewed annually. We use
expert advice where needed
however we also rely on the in
house knowledge of the
relevant officers, e.g. Treasury
Officer for investments.

We use specialist
Treasury Advisers who
provide us with the fair
value of our
investments and
borrowings, assessment
of credit losses and an
analysis of any risks
surrounding our
financial instruments.

Arlingclose
provide all the
information for
valuing treasury
investments.

Sensitivity analysis is undertaken on
material valuations where there is some
degree of uncertainty.

No

29

75



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Tewkesbury Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Provisions Provisions are made whenever 
an event takes place that give 
the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that 
probably requires settlement 
by a transfer of economic 
benefit or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount. 

Each provision is 
separately reviewed by 
the accountants and in 
conjunction with the 
service area experts.

Internal legal 
advice is sought 
when 
necessary.

Each provision is assessed on an 
individual basis to ensure that it meets the 
criteria of a provision per IAS 37. The 
degree of uncertainty is assessed when 
determining whether a provision is the 
correct treatment for an item.

No

Accruals Standard accruals accounting 
is used.  Many of these are 
captured through our 
Purchasing system.

At year end accountants 
work closely with 
individual service areas 
to ensure accruals are 
accurate.  Post year 
end invoices are also 
reviewed to ensure 
none are missed.

Budget holders 
and accountants 
work together to 
calculate any 
accruals.

Experienced finance staff review the
assumptions and methodology used.
This includes assessing the
estimation uncertainty.

No

30

76



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 
provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

77



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Annual Health and Safety Report 

Report of: Environmental Safety Officer 

Corporate Lead: Head of Community Services 

Lead Member:  Lead Member for Organisational Development 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

Best practice recommends that organisations produce and publish an annual health and safety 
report.  This report summarises Tewkesbury Borough Council’s health and safety performance 
during the year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and looks forward to work proposed in the next 
year. The aim is to provide information to demonstrate how the Council fulfils its legal 
responsibilities to protect its employees, volunteers, contractors, service users and members of 
the public and to show the processes in place to identify a wide range of health and safety 
risks and the controls in place against the identified risks. 

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the adequacy of the Council’s health and safety arrangements 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Health, Safety and Welfare Policy of Tewkesbury Borough Council states that “elected 
Members have a responsibility for ensuring that the Chief Executive and Head of Community 
Services are adequately resourced and supported in achieving compliance with the legal 
requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and regulations made under it”. The 
attached report has been written to assist Councillors in carrying out this responsibility. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

As detailed in the report at Appendix 1. 

Legal Implications: 

Tewkesbury Borough Council is responsible for the health, safety and welfare of its staff, 
contractors and, where relevant, members of the public in accordance with the Health and 
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974.  All statutory guidance and other legislative requirements must 
be followed. 

Risk Management Implications: 

Risk management is an integral part of the Health, Safety and Welfare Policy and the work-
plan detailed at Appendix 1 of the report will help mitigate related business risks. 

78

Agenda Item 8



Performance Management Follow-up: 

Performance management issues are detailed within the report. 

Environmental Implications:  

None 

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council recognises and accepts its responsibilities to secure the 
health, safety and welfare of staff and, where relevant, members of the public. It also 
recognises the importance of good communications in making sure this is effectively 
carried out. 

1.2 As part of securing and ensuring compliance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 
1974, it has been identified that Members, as well as staff and the public, should be well 
informed about the work carried out. 

1.3 The Health and Safety Executive provide excellent guidance in both leading and 
managing health and safety. The attached report provides a good way to deliver on their 
recommendation to establish an effective ‘downward’ communication system and 
management structure. 

1.4 Corporate Health and Safety is managed via the Keep Safe Stay Healthy Group, chaired 
by the Head of Community Services and attended by senior managers and staff from the 
organisation together with the Lead Member for Organisational Development having a 
standing invitation.  The group considers health, safety and welfare issues across the 
organisation and has achieved areas of good practice across all Council services as 
detailed in the progress section of the work plan, for example, the planning and 
implementation of the Wellbeing Programme and the health and safety training that has 
taken place this year. 

2.0 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

2.1 The Council is committed to the management of health and safety for both Council client 
officers and all contractors engaged by the Council. The health and safety report sets out 
the health and safety framework that all parties must follow to ensure health and safety is 
managed during the course of business. 

2.2 The purpose of the annual report is to provide an open and transparent way of reporting 
the work carried out and progress with all matters relating to health and safety in 
accordance with good practice from the HSE.   

2.3 The report attached at Appendix 1 summarises Tewkesbury Borough Council’s health 
and safety performance during the year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and looks forward 
to work proposed in the next year. It is intended to be both a reflection on the 
performance and activities from the previous year, but also a projection of the planning, 
organizing, checks and actions for the future. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None 

79



4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Management team have been consulted on the contents of the annual health and safety 
audit report. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Health, Safety and Welfare Policy. 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES 

6.1 Leading Health and Safety at Work (INDG417) and Managing for Health and Safety 
(HSG65). 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 As detailed in the report at Appendix 1 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None 

9.0 

 

IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 None 

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Environmental Safety Officer 
 01684 272225 kay.meddings@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 - Corporate Health & Safety Report – April 2021-March 

2022 

80

mailto:kay.meddings@tewkesbury.gov.uk


1 

Corporate Health and Safety 

Report 

April 2021 – March 2022 

Appendix 1

81



2 
 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an open and transparent communication on 

all matters relating to corporate health and safety in accordance with good practice 

from the HSE. The report is both a reflection on the performance and activities 

from the previous year, and for the next financial year. 

 
Tewkesbury Borough Council is committed to maintaining a healthy and safe place of 

work for all its employees, including contractors and volunteers as well as taking all 

reasonable steps to ensure that the public and the environment are exposed to the 

lowest practicable level of risk. 

 

Best practice recommends that organisations produce and publish an annual health 

and safety report. As such, this report summarises Tewkesbury Borough Council’s 

health and safety performance during 2021-2022 and looks forward to work proposed 

in the next year. 

 

We have throughout 2021/22 worked closely with Public Health and other districts 

within Gloucestershire to maintain and support the covid-19 response whilst at the 

same time sought to implement our previous years workplan. 

 

The last two years have shown us that flexibility in terms of where we work is 

possible and can be beneficial for staff, the council, and customers. However, it has 

also highlighted some of the things we miss as an organisation when only working 

remotely. These include building team cohesiveness and effectiveness, making 

personal connections, opportunities for learning from each other, developing less-

experienced team members and creating an organisational culture which is 

ambitious, committed to delivering excellent service and at the same time friendly 

and supportive. 

 

Now Covid-19 restrictions are lifting, our customers’ expectations in terms of being 

able to access our services are starting to change and of course we need to be 

mindful of this. We provide public services and the community and their 

representatives, including our own councillors, who expect to be able to access 

those services via personal contact when that works best. 

 

From 1 June 2022 we will be operating in accordance with the following principles: 

82



3 
 

• For all staff, other than those with specific job locations in other premises, the 

council offices remain the primary working location.  

 

• All services will be required to maintain their focus on excellent customer care and 

service delivery. 

• All services and teams will maintain a full operational presence in the council offices 

during opening hours. 

• Customers will continue to be encouraged to make appointments, but services will 

be available to meet drop in customers. 

• Hybrid working arrangements (a mix of working from home and from the office) for 

staff are subject to the needs of the service and management agreement. 

• Hybrid working is contingent upon the conditions for working in a remote location 

being met. 

• The actual amount of time spent in the office each week will be determined by 

service needs and will depend on the requirements of a job role. 

 

We will also be following the public health principles for reducing the spread of 

respiratory infections, including COVID-19, in the workplace which are as follows: 

• Encourage and enable vaccination 

• Bringing in fresh air to occupied spaces to reduce the concentration of respiratory 

particles, lowering the risk of airborne transmission of respiratory viruses. 

• Maintaining a clean workplace, in particular highly touched areas. 

• Management of members of staff who are at risk of serious illness from COVID-

19. 

 

Corporate Structure for Health and Safety 
 

The Management Team 

 

Ultimate responsibility for the health, safety and welfare of staff and the public 

who use council services lies with the Chief Executive and the Management 

Team. The Head of Community Services has specific responsibilities for leading 

on corporate health and safety matters and chairs the Keep Safe Stay Healthy 

Group (KSSH). 

 

Keep Safe Stay Healthy Group (KSSH) 

 

The objective of the KSSH group is to bring together Management, Staff, Elected 

Members and Trade Union representatives to: 

(a) Consider matters relating to the health and safety of all employees 

83



4 
 

 

(b) Provide a forum on a regular basis for consultation 
 

(c) Ensure issues are reported to the Management Team. 
 

(d) Oversee the Health & Safety annual Work Plan. 
 

 

 

Promotion 

 

Internal Health and safety and wellbeing matters are reported via the intranet, the 

monthly News4U staff newspaper and regular council-wide staff briefing sessions 

Risk Assessments 

 

A generic health and safety risk assessment is available for use by all services to 

assist with the annual review of service risk assessments. In 2021/22 risk 

assessments were reviewed and updated to include the additional risks presented by 

the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

Training 

 
Health and safety training is encouraged, and the council training budget helps 

to overcome any funding challenges faced by the individual council teams. A list 

of health and safety training that has been undertaken and more is planned for 

the coming year, all of which is contained in the work plan in appendix 1. 

 

Achievements in the last 12 months 

 
The Keep Safe Stay Healthy group have an annual work plan of priorities for action. 

This report covers April 2021 to March 2022. These are detailed in appendix 1 

 

Proposed Health and safety Work Plan 2021–2022 

 
The 2021-2022 workplan is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
In line with the Health and Safety Work Plan 2021-2022 we will continue to carry 

out/action identified rolling health and safety reviews and adopt further tasks in 

accordance with the outcome of quarterly Keep Safe Stay Healthy meetings: 

 

Accident and Incident Reporting 

 

All accidents/incidents and near misses are reported under the council's procedures. 

to enable appropriate remedial action to be identified and preventative measures to 

84



5 
 

be put in place. 

 

TBC Accidents/Incidents reported April 2021 to March 2022 

➢ TBC staff - 1 reported  

➢ Members of the public - 0 reported 

 

Staff Safety Register (members of the public that pose a risk to council officers) 

➢ 1 inclusion in the time period of this report. 

 

                          
RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations 2013) 

 

➢ No reportable accidents or incidents were reported in the time period of this 

report. 

 
UBICO (Waste, Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance Services) contract 

plus Mixed Recycling Facility (MRF) Contract As a requirement under these 

contracts quarterly health and safety reports are provided by the contractors which 

include accident and incident statistics/data. This information is reported to the 

Gloucestershire Waste Safety and Health (GWASH) meetings. Every quarter the 

countywide collections and disposal authorities (TBC plus Stroud District Council and 

Gloucester City Council) meet with the contractors and the HSE (Health and Safety 

Executive) to discuss health and safety campaigns plus incidents and accidents 

statistics and the controls required to reduce the likelihood of recurrence. The waste, 

street cleansing and ground maintenance quarterly health and safety reports are also 

taken to the Ubico Board of Directors meetings on a bi-monthly basis. Accident and 

Incident data analysis/trending is also undertaken by the Environmental Services 

Team and if a trend is identified it is queried with Ubico.  

 
Tewkesbury Leisure Centre Contract (Contractor: Places for People) 

 
A quarterly report is provided by the contractor to the Asset manager of Property 

Services who manages and monitor this contract. The report provided covers the 

performance, operations and health and safety which includes accident/incident 

statistics. Accident/Incident trend analysis is undertaken by Places for People which 

is a contractual requirement. All health and safety matters related to this contract is 

reported to the Strategic Leisure Partnership Group on a quarterly basis. 

 

 

85



6 
 

Conclusion 

Progress has been made this year as detailed in the plan in appendix 1. The 

proposed planned actions contained in the 2021 -2022 annual work plans have also 

been achieved or were on a rolling programme and included in the proposed Health 

and safety Work Plan 2022–2023 as detailed in appendix 1. 

 
The Covid-19 pandemic did initially dictate the health and safety work plan 

2021-22 meaning some of the proposed tasks contained within the 2021- 2022 

work plan have not yet been actioned. Moving forward the outstanding tasks 

have been incorporated in the work plan for the coming year which will be 

actioned and reviewed quarterly by the Keep Safe Stay Healthy group. 

 

References 

Health and Safety Executive’s (HSE) guidance document HSG65 ‘Managing for 

Health and Safety’.

86



7 
 

Appendix to Annual Report 

 

Corporate Health and Safety Report April 2021 – March 2022 

Work Plan 2021/2022 
1. Response to Covid 19 Pandemic 

Areas Identified Status Progress on 2021/2022 actions Actions for 2022- 2023 

 
Offices and related business 
settings 

☺ 
 
Now Covid-19 restrictions are lifting, our customers’ expectations 
in terms of being able to access our services are starting to change, 
therefore we are accommodating this by staff safely returning to 
the office in accordance with public health guidelines.  
 
Agile hybrid working will continue in line with agile working policy 
and an on-line hybrid workstation training and risk assessment 
module has been implemented to cover the requirements under 
this policy. 

 
Continue to deliver and implement 
changes to office management 
systems in line with public health 
guidelines. 
 
On-line workstation module will be 
monitored to ensure hybrid 
working is being carried out safely 
ongoing. 

  
  

2. Staff wellbeing 

Areas Identified Status Progress on 2021/2022 actions Actions for 2022- 2023 

Workplace wellbeing 

programme 
☺ 

Posted on the council’s Intranet 

• Health and Wellbeing Support 

• Pre-Retirement Finance Session  

• GMB Wellbeing Survey  

• Mid-Career Seminar  

• Stress Awareness Month  

• Staff Yoga online sessions 

• On Your Feet Britain  

• Mental Health Awareness Week 

• Diabetes Awareness Week  

• Stress Awareness Month 

• On your feet Britain 

• National Walking month 

• Sun Awareness Week 

• Mental Health Awareness 
Week 

• Retirement Session 

• Diabetes Awareness Week 

• Men’s Health Week 

• Talk to us 

87



8 
 

• The Big Listen (annual campaign dedicated to raising 
awareness of The Samaritans’ 24-hour service across 
the UK) 

• Pre-Retirement Training  

• Migraine Awareness Week  

• Flu vaccinations  

• World Suicide Prevention Day  

• Healthy Lifestyles Gloucestershire (free referrals Weight 
Watchers and Slimming World)  

• Stoptober (Stop Smoking advice) 

• World Mental Health Day  

• Pre-retirement online training  

• Alcohol Awareness Week  

• Cycle scheme webinar 

• 16 Days of Action (Action against domestic violence) 

• Careline Mental Health Services  

• Brew Monday (Samaritans campaign to address 
loneliness) 

• Healthy Lifestyles Gloucestershire Weight Watchers 
Referral  

• Time to Talk Day  

• National Heart Awareness Month  

• Living with Covid  

• Focus on your Finances  

• Retirement Session  

• On Your Feet Britain  

• National Walking Month 

• Mental Health Awareness Week  

• Sun Awareness Week 
 

Wellbeing information/articles contained in the News4U 
(council internal monthly newsletter for staff) 

• Wellbeing Update/Yoga Sessions  

• Step Challenge 

• Flu Jabs 

• Cycle to work day 

• World Suicide Prevention Day 

• Macmillan coffee morning 

• Stoptober 

• World Mental Health Day 

• Alcohol Awareness Week 

• 16 Days of Action  

• Focus on your finances 

• More will be added to 

the list as the year 

progresses and some 

will also be promoted 

in the News4U 

monthly newsletters 

88



9 
 

• Retirement Training 

• Isolation and Covid update  

• Free flu vaccinations - News4U  

• Domestic Abuse and Stalking 

• Cycle scheme 

• Healthy Workplaces Award  

• Careline  

• Supporting Attendance Policy 

• Disability Confident  

• Nutrition and Hydration Week 

• Focus on your Finances  

• Menopause 

 

3. Training and Development 

Areas Identified Status Progress on 2021/2022 actions Actions for 2022- 2023 

H&S training 
☺ 

• Playground Inspection Training  

• Tree Inspection Training 

• Level 3 in Inspecting Licensable Activities Involving Animals  

• Strategic Emergency Management  

• Mental Health First Aid Refresher  

• First aid at work  

• Legionella Risk Management  

• Asbestos Awareness 

• IOSH (Institution of Occupational Safety & Health) 
certification 

• Fire Safety  
 

• Mental Health Awareness 
Sessions  

• Working at Heights  

• Manual Handling  

• Defib Training for First 
Aiders  

• IOSH Training  

• Fire Warden 
 
 

4. Healthy Workplaces Gloucestershire Award 

Areas Identified Status Progress on 2021/2022 actions Actions for 2022- 2023 

89



10 
 

Assessment against criteria 
across all services 

☺ 
The workplace wellbeing charter demonstrates the council’s 
commitment to the health and wellbeing of the workforce and the 
following was achieved two years ago: 

• Leadership: Excellence 

• Absence Management: Excellence 

• Health and Safety: Excellence 

• Mental Health: Excellence  

• Smoking: Excellence 

• Physical Activity: Achievement 

• Healthy Eating: Achievement 

• Alcohol and Substance Misuse: Achievement 

Maintain excellence standards and 

improve areas reaching achievement 

to excellence. 

This year the council engaged in the 

Gloucestershire Healthy Workplace 

Award scheme that follows broadly 

the same principals as the Workplace 

Wellbeing Charter and achieved 

foundation award level in June 2022. 

Feedback from the assessor was very 

positive. We are now working 

towards achieving the enhanced 

accreditation, which has only been 

achieved by one organisation in the 

County so far. 

5. Service Reviews Health and Safety 

Areas Identified Status Progress on 2021/2022 actions Actions for 2022- 2023 

As contained in the Keep Safe 
Stay Healthy Group plan 
which is continually updated 
and discussed at quarterly 
meetings. 

 
• Health & Safety corporate/service risk assessments 

reviewed on annual basis or when changes are made 
including covid risk assessments. 

• Health, Safety & Welfare overarching HSG65 Health & 
Safety Management System review to be undertaken 
when services resume to normal post covid-19 pandemic 

• Managing Contractors Safely policy reviewed and 
revised. 

• A review of the online workstation training and risk 
assessment module was undertaken which resulted in a 
new hybrid course being launched in line with agile 
working policy which covers office/home and remote 
working.  

In line with the Health and Safety 
Work Plan 2022-2023 the following 
will continue to be carried 
out/actioned plus further tasks will 
be added to this plan in accordance 
with the outcome of quarterly 
Keep Safe Stay Healthy meetings: 

• Covid-19 office arrangements 
will continue to follow Public 
Health guidelines. 

• Service risk assessments and 
corporate risk assessments will 
be reviewed on an annual basis 

  

  

  

  

 

90



11 
 

  • A review of the Staf Safety Register policy and procedure 
was undertaken which resulted in a request for this 
process to go digital. 

• Review of the Dealing with Abuse, Threatening 
Behaviour and Violence policy undertaken which is 
referred to in the Staff Safety Register policy. 

• Online workstation training and risk assessment review 
undertaken, the result being a new hybrid course was 
launched to cover office, home, and remote working in 
line with the Agile working policy. 
 

or when changes occur. 

• Continuing to work with the 
transformation team to 
achieve a digital process for 
the Staff Safety Register. 

• Continuation of Health & 
Wellbeing programme, plus 
further engagement in the 
Gloucestershire Healthy 
Workplace Award scheme as 
detailed in section 4 of this 
report. 

• H&S information is provided by 
Ubico and reviewed by the 
Waste Team regularly and will 
be provided in the annual 
Ubico report to Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. 

• H&S information will continue 
to be provided by the 
contractor (Places for People) 
to the Asset Manager of 
Property who manages and 
monitors the Tewkesbury 
Leisure Centre contract. All 
health and safety matters 
related to this contract is 
reported to the Strategic 
Leisure Partnership Group on a 
quarterly basis. 

• Environmental Safety Officer 
attending departmental 
meetings once a year (or when 
requested) in an H&S advisory 
capacity. 

• Review of all council health and 

91



12 
 

safety policies which is an 
ongoing process. Lone working 
policy will be the first policy to 
be reviewed and a lone 
working audit undertaken 
across all services.  

• Continue to monitor the online 
workstation risk assessment 
outcomes to ensure staff are 
working safely. 

• Further tasks will be added to 
the plan throughout the year in 
accordance with the 
requirements of the Keep Safe 
Stay Healthy Group. 

 

92



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Corporate Risk Register 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The Council has a risk management framework and this is set out in the Council’s approved 
Risk Management Strategy. Risk management is an intrinsic element of good, effective 
management and should not be seen as a ‘bolt on’. The strategy sets out the risk management 
approach around the identification, analysis, prioritisation and management of risk. A key 
element of the strategy is capturing key corporate risks through a Corporate Risk Register. 
This register is presented at each Audit and Governance Committee. The latest register can be 
found at Appendix 1.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the risks contained within the Corporate Risk Register and assurance 
that the risks are being effectively managed.   

Reasons for Recommendation: 

Risk management is an integral part of the Council’s overall governance framework. It is within 
the Terms of Reference of the Audit and Governance Committee to gain assurance that key 
risks are effectively managed.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising directly from this report.   

Legal Implications: 

None arising directly from this report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

If the Council does not have in place a Corporate Risk Register then it cannot demonstrate that 
corporate risks are formally considered, scored and managed.  

 
 
 
 

93

Agenda Item 9



Performance Management Follow-up: 

The Corporate Risk Register is considered at each Audit and Governance Committee and prior 
to this by Corporate Management Team.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy formalises the Council’s risk management 
arrangements and sets out the risk management approach around the identification, 
analysis, prioritisation and management of risk. A key element of the strategy is the 
maintenance of a Corporate Risk Register that captures the Council’s key corporate 
risks.  The register is a high-level document to record in a proportionate manner the key 
risks facing the Council, their risk score and high level management controls that are in 
place to manage individual risks. The scoring matrix within the strategy provides 
guidance on scoring those risks. The latest register can be found at Appendix 1.  

2.0 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

2.1 The register is a useful tool to demonstrate in a concise manner that corporate risks are 
being considered and managed. The headings within the register and the scoring of risk 
are all detailed within the risk management strategy. Succinctly, the scoring is based 
around three stages: 

- Gross risk score (the inherent risk without any mitigating controls in place). 

- Current risk score (the assessed risk after the application of controls). 

- Target risk score (proposed risk score by applying future controls, if the current 
risk score is deemed to be too high). 

It should be noted that the main focus should be on the risk description and the 
mitigating controls rather than to challenge the risk scores as these are only indicative. 
It is the assurance on the management of the controls which is important.  

2.2 The format of the register is one which is commonly used throughout local government. 
There is no statutory requirement to have a register in place but is seen as good 
practice. It also helps the Audit and Governance Committee fulfil its risk management 
responsibilities. Internal audit support the Audit and Governance Committee in gaining 
assurance that the risks are being effectively managed. Days are allocated within the 
Internal Audit Work Plan to review the register and give assurance to the Committee 
around such things as: 

- Is the register complete? Are there any risks missing? 

- The controls detailed in the register – are they actually in place and working 
effectively? 

- Future actions – is there assurance they will be implemented within appropriate 
timescales? 

Once the Internal Audit team is fully operational following redeployment to deal with the 
impact of COVID-19, it will resume the audit of these risks as part of its work 
programme.   

 

94



2.3 The risk register template includes a ‘comments’ box below each risk. This provides 
opportunity for each risk owner to provide an update on the status of that risk. For 
example, if the risk score has been downgraded as a result of effective control action 
being implemented or, alternatively, if the risk score has increased. An increase could 
happen through a number of scenarios, for example if an internal audit concluded that a 
mitigating control is not effective.   

2.4 The risk register is presented at Corporate Management Team on a regular basis and 
further reviewed by the Corporate Governance Group; this group is chaired by the 
Corporate Director.  

3.0 KEY UPDATES ON THE REGISTER 

3.1 Summarised below are key updates arising since the register was last presented at 
Committee on 24 March 2022: 

Risk identified  Key update arising  

Ref 6. – Emergency planning As discussed at the previous Audit and Governance 
Committee meeting it is proposed to remove this risk 
from the register. Whilst emergency planning 
incidents will remain a risk, the Council can 
demonstrate that arrangements to manage this risk 
are effective.  

Ref 9. – Asset management    Another significant surplus at year end means some 
will be re-directed to asset management reserves to 
support the need over the medium term. This top up 
of reserves is crucial given the financial support to 
the solar canopy project and likely need for financial 
support towards the replacement of the heating 
system. Workload over the last year has meant that 
the planned production of an updated asset 
management strategy has been postponed to late 
2022/23.  

Ref 11. – Brexit  It is proposed to remove this risk from the register as 
it largely remains outside of the Council’s control. 
Any financial impact resulting from Brexit, 
compounded by the global effect of COVID-19 and 
the Ukrainian crisis can be picked up through the 
financial sustainability risk.  

Ref. 14 – COVID-19 recovery   To note that the COVID-19 recovery plan actions 
have been transitioned back into the refreshed 
Council Plan which will be considered by Council on 
26 July 2022. Whilst the majority of services are in 
recovery mode, this recovery is compounded by the 
additional pressures of other activities such as the 
energy rebate scheme and support to the Ukrainian 
refugee scheme.  

 

 

 

95



3.2 In terms of emerging risk, one which is an issue rather than a risk is that of recruitment 
and retention of staff. Whilst it is an issue, it is felt important enough for inclusion in the 
register and will be scored and evaluated accordingly for when the register is presented 
next. As Members are acutely aware, there are recruitment issues across a number of 
professional posts, particularly within Development Services and One Legal and 
specialist posts such as cyber security.  

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None. 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 None. 

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Risk Management Strategy.  

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  None.  

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 None.  

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 None. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 Mitigation of risk will help the Council achieve its objectives. 

11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11.1 None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register (July 2022) 
                                        

96

mailto:Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

1 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

1 The uncertainty and 
volatility of council 
funding streams, 
including Business 
Rates Retention, 
New Homes Bonus 
and needs based 
funding, means that 
long term business 
planning is difficult 
and subject to 
significant change 

The Council received 
£3.3m from NHB, £0.7m 
from retained business 
rates and £1.85m from 
needs based grant in 2019-
20. 
 
It has been indicated by 
central government that 
NHB will continue to be 
withdrawn in 22-23 and 
may or may not be 
replaced with an alternative 
scheme for incentivising 
housing growth. 
 
Business rates is a volatile 
income stream as a result 
of successful appeals. In 
addition, a planned move to 
a 75% retention scheme 
has been delayed for a 
year and there is a lack of 
detail around the new 
scheme. A planned reset of 
the system to redistribute 
growth has again been 
delayed. 
 
In Autumn 2020, a one year 
only Spending Review was 
again announced giving no 

5 5 
 

25 
 
 

Council does 
not use 100% 
of NHB to 
support base 
budget. 
 
Accumulated 
provisions 
within existing 
retained rates 
scheme. 
 
Development of 
other funding 
streams such 
as Council Tax 
and 
Commercial 
properties. 
 
Revised MTFS 
highlighting size 
of impact and 
potential 
measures to 
bridge the 
deficit. 
 
Significant 
MTFS reserve. 
 

Head of Finance 
& Asset 
Management 

25 
 
 
 

Further 
development of 
alternative income 
streams to reduce 
dependence on 
these funding 
streams. 
 
Detailed planning 
around major cost 
saving areas 
identified in the 
MTFS. 
 
Government 
clarification on 
future of local 
government finance 
including: 

• Spending 
Review 

• Fair Funding 
Review 

• 75% business 
rates retention 

• Future of NHB 
and whether an 
alternative 
scheme will be 
brought forward 

 

9 
 
 

97



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

2 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

certainty beyond March 22. 
As with business rates, the 
Fair Funding Review was 
also delayed by a further 
year leaving councils 
uncertain as to how funding 
will be distributed to 
individual authorities. 

 

Comments:  

As at the time of writing, the Government have failed to engage the sector in meaningful discussion over funding reform and as a consequence it is 
now assumed that the 23/24 settlement will once again be based on a one year roll over of current funding arrangements which, for Tewkesbury, is 
likely to mean a further fall in central funding. Many alternative income streams are now restricted, subject to high risk or with a delay between 
investment and return leaving little scope for expansion. However, a draft deficit reduction programme has highlighted a potential £m benefit from 
income generation or efficiency savings to meet our current projected financial gap.  
 
2 Failure to see the 

delivery of residential 
and business growth 
within the Borough 
will have a significant 
impact within the 
MTFS planning  

Growth within the Borough 
will attract significant 
additional funding streams 
by means of Council Tax, 
NHB and retained business 
rates. 
 
Given the reductions in 
core government grant and 
the increasing cost of 
delivering services, the 
income from growth is 
imperative to ensure a 
balanced MTFS and the 
ongoing delivery of services 
within the Borough. 

5 4 20 Growth strategy 
set out in Joint 
Core Strategy. 
 
 
Efficient 
management of 
DM process 
 
Programmes 
for the delivery 
of significant 
infrastructure 
 
 
 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

15 Approval of Borough 
Plan.- Adopted on 
8 June at Full 
Council. 
 
Review of the Joint 
Strategic Plan (JSP) 
 
Implementation of 
DM improvement 
action plan 
 
 
Business case 
developments for 
J10. 

10 

98



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

3 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
 
Strong 
relationships 
with key 
agencies such 
as Homes 
England and 
GFirst LEP 
 
 
Economic 
Development 
Strategy 
 
 
 
Establishment 
of Growth Hub 

Development 
consent order for 
Junction 10 of the 
M5 works was 
consulted on in 
December and 
finished on 15 
February 2022.   
 
Full delivery of the 
Ashchurch Bridge 
project and 
associated link road.  
 
Development and 
delivery of 
Gloucestershire rail 
strategy. 
 
A46 realignment 
business case 
development. 
 
 
Tewkesbury Garden 
Town is part of the 
government’s 
Garden Community 
programme and we 
are actively 
engaged with HE on 
this project.  

99



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

4 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
Identification of 
opportunities to use 
business rate reliefs 
to support and 
attract business 
 
 
 

Comments: The strategic allocations are beginning to deliver reserved matters applications, which will see growth in the borough. The Local Plan was adopted 
at Council on 8 June 2022. A revised timetable for the review of the JSP was presented to Members at Executive Committee on 30 March 2022. A 
preferred options draft will be published for public consultation in Spring 2023.  

The benefit of this will be undermined by the withdrawal of NHB and the lack of clarity around its replacement. The future of business rates retention also 
remains unknown.  
3 If the ICT network is 

not adequately 
protected then there 
is a potential risk that 
it could be subject to 
a cyber-security 
attack leading to loss 
of systems and 
significant downtime.   

Phishing attacks/Spear 
phishing – untargeted mass 
emails sent to many 
recipients to acquire 
sensitive 
information/targeted emails 
designed to look like its 
been sent from a trusted 
person. 
 
Denial of service (DoS) – 
hacker floods a website 
with more traffic than it can 
handle. Legitimate users 
are denied access to 

5 5 25 Patch 
management. 
 
Penetration 
testing. 
 
Internal 
phishing 
awareness 
exercises. 
 
PSN 
compliance.  
 
Firewall 
management. 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services  

12 Finalise and test 
cyber response plan  
 
 
Network 
segmentation  
 
Cyber essentials 
accreditation  
 
Recruit to cyber 
post.  

9 

100



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

5 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

services, downtime of 
systems. 
Malware – forms of harmful 
software executed when it 
is mistakenly downloaded.   
 
Ransomware – denies 
access to systems until a 
ransom is paid. 
 
Reusing credentials on 
multiple systems makes it 
easier for a hacker to move 
around the network 
 
All or combination can lead 
to; 
 

• Loss of reputation 
and trust 

• Financial loss – 
disruption to 
service delivery, 
cost of restoring 
systems  

• Legal implications 
– personal data 
breach could lead 
to a significant fine 

 
Cyber 
insurance. 
 
Cyber specific 
post created 
within ICT 
Team. 

Comments: A network and security infrastructure role (with cyber responsibility) has been created – this needs to be recruited to but has seen two unsuccessful rounds of 
recruitment. Recruitment is now underway but through a recruitment agency. Technical work includes the segmentation of the network to make it less ‘flat’ and therefore more 

101



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

6 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

resilient. The team were close to obtaining cyber essentials accreditation – a standard of good practice. In January, the format of the accreditation was amended and the team is 
now working on a resubmission.  
 

4 If business continuity 
planning is not in 
place then there is a 
risk the council would 
struggle to deliver its 
services in the event 
of an incident 

Does the council 
understand the major 
threats and risk to the 
business operations? 
Is a business continuity 
plan in place? 
 
Is the plan tested for 
various scenarios? 
 
Have priority systems been 
identified? 
 
A BC incident could be any 
of the following; 

• ICT downtime 

• Major staff 
absence 

• Property access 

• Supply chain 
failure 

4 4 16 Individual 
service 
continuity 
plans. 
 
Draft corporate 
plan. 
 
ICT disaster 
recovery.  
 
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

12 Finalise and test 
draft plan. 
 
Review of individual 
service plans.  

9 

Comments: As reported previously it was expected that a review of business continuity arrangements would commence in quarter 4. This has started with a short 

business continuity awareness session undertaken with operational managers. This will now be followed up with a business continuity impact session facilitated 
by the Civil Protection Team and a full review of service plans. This review will take place in the latter part of quarter two (2022/23). 
 
5 If the council is not 

compliant with 
General Data 

Reputational – adverse 
publicity and internal impact 
on service and individuals  

4 4 16 Data Protection 
Policy.  
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services  

12 Rollout of e-learning 
module 
 

9 

102



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

7 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

Protection 
Requirement then 
there is a risk of 
financial penalties 
and adverse 
publicity. 

 
Financial – potential fines 
from ICO or compensation 
claim from individuals  

 
Resource – time 
consuming to report, 
investigate and mitigate 
data breaches  
 
Staff morale – in case of 
data breaches, potential 
disciplinary action 

Governance 
structure in 
place eg 
Information 
Board, Data 
Protection 
Officer 
appointed, 
designated 
Senior 
Information 
Risk Owner, 
SpoC. 
 
Breach 
reporting 
framework. 
 
Staff 
awareness 
training. 
 
GDPR action 
plan. 

Implementation of 
related audit 
recommendations.  
 
Implementation of 
GDPR action plan  

Comments: An annual report on the adequacy of the council’s GDPR arrangements was presented to Audit and Governance Committee in December 2021. A 
new Information Governance Officer role was approved as part of the 2022/23 budget setting. The e-learning training comprising both GDPR and cyber security 
modules has been rolled out with over 70 staff completing to date. This will shortly be rolled out to Members.  
 
6 Ineffective 

Emergency 
Planning  

Failure to deliver support 
to the community in the 
event of an emergency. 

4 4 16 Trained and 
willing 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

8 Develop further 
capacity within the 
organisation to 

4 

103



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

8 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

  
Public not warned and 
informed 
in the event of an 
emergency 
 
Negative perception of 
the 
Council by external 
parties / 
partners/local businesses 
 
Failure to deliver critical 
services in the event of a 
declared emergency or 
event. Could result in 
significant extra cost over 
the long term  

volunteers / 
staff. 
 
Up to date 
emergency / 
business 
continuity 
plans. 
 
Regular 
reviews of EP 
RAG Status 
(quarterly) 
 
Partnership 
working with 
the LRF and 
other partners 
e.g. Severn 
Trent Water. 
 
Sufficient 
equipment for 
rest 
centres/sand 
bag policy  

assist in the case 
of an emergency.  
Additional staff 
have volunteered 
 
Undertake a 
lessons learnt 
exercise of our 
Covid-19 
response. 
Reported to O&S 
committee 7 
September 2021  

 
Formal training 
programme to be 
developed.  
 
Review of sandbag 
policy – to be 
undertaken by 
Climate Change 
and Flood Risk 
Management 
Group. The Policy 
was approved at 
Executive 
Committee on 5 
January 2022.  
Review of flooding 
incident which 

104



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

9 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

occurred 
December 
2020/January 2021.  

Comments: 
 

Risk to be removed from the register. As agreed at Audit and Governance Committee in March 2022.  
 
7 Use of Swindon 

Road depot. 
Our waste services are 
currently based at the 
Swindon Road Depot in 
Cheltenham.  The depot is 
currently leased to Ubico by 
Cheltenham Borough 
Council.  If CBC were 
minded to terminate this 
arrangement then we may 
need to identify a suitable 
depot for Ubico to operate 
of waste services from. 

5 2 10 Lease 
agreement in 
place. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

8 Elements of the 
lease arrangement 
of the depot have 
been reviewed and 
changes made to 
formalise the 
arrangements with 
Cheltenham BC. 
 
Consider where a 
temporary depot 
could operate from 
in an emergency. 
 

5 

Comments:  

A new lease fee for the depot has been agreed.  Cheltenham Borough Council are in the process of developing a maintenance plan for the depot 
which will be agreed ahead of the next round of budget setting.  This will ensure that the depot remains fit for purpose wherever possible. 
 
8 Safeguarding 

arrangements  
 

That the arrangements and 
implementation of policies 
and procedures by the 
Council (and its partners) 
are not adequate to protect 
vulnerable adults and 

5 2 10 Staff 
awareness of 
safeguarding. 
 
Safeguarding 
policy in place. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

6 Raising awareness 
of safeguarding 
policies and 
procedures with 
staff through staff 
briefings, one to 

4 

105



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

10 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

children who may be at risk 
of significant harm.  The 
damage to the Council 
would be mainly 
reputational. 

Feedback from 
S.11 annual 
audit. 
 
Partnership 
working though 
the District 
Safeguarding 
Network. 
 
Taxi driver DBC 
checks carried 
out.  Street 
Trader DBS 
checks 
implemented. 
 
Safeguarding 
policy has been 
reviewed and 
adopted.  

ones, PPDs and 
training. 
 
Adopt the quality 
assurance 
framework for 
safeguarding. 
 
 
Robust checking 
system in place.  
 

Comments: Officers are continuing the meet with county and district colleagues to review safeguarding arrangements via the District Safeguarding Subgroup which 
considers both children’s and at risk adults safeguarding issues.  We are awaiting feedback from our adults S.11 self-assessment. 
 

9 Failure to maintain 
council assets and 
ensure ongoing 
tenancies could 
result in significant 
cost and lost income 

The council has a 
significant property portfolio 
encompassing both 
operational and investment 
assets. For example, the 
total commercial portfolio is 
£60m producing an annual 
gross income of £3.4m. 

5 4 20 Recent 
refurbishment 
of service-
related 
property. 
 
Establishment 
of annual 

Head of Finance 
and Asset 
Management 

6 Establishment of 
long term asset 
maintenance 
programme, 
including allocation 
of required funding. 
 
 

3 

106



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

11 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 contribution to 
Asset 
Maintenance 
Programme. 
 
Commercial 
investment 
reserve. 
 
Trained and 
experienced 
staff. 
 
Appointment of 
external 
investment 
support. 
 
Recruitment of 
additional 
Property 
Officer. 

Comments: Given the constraints on our budget and demand from growth from across the council, an annual contribution to planned asset maintenance is not 

possible at the current time. We are fortunate to see another significant surplus at year end and some of that surplus will be re-directed to asset management reserves 

to support the need over the medium term. This top up of reserves is crucial given the financial support to the solar canopy project and likely need for financial support 

towards the replacement of the heating system. Workload over the last year has meant that the planned production of an updated asset management strategy has been 

postponed to late 22/23.  

 

10 If the Growth Hub 
fails to deliver the 

• Financial risk 
(£500k) 

3 3 9 Performance 
monitoring 

Head of 
Development 

4  4 

107



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

12 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

outputs as specified 
within the LEP 
agreement then 
there is potential that 
the capital grant 
would have to be 
repaid. 

• Reputational 

• Wider impact on 
economic delivery 
in the borough 

through CRM 
system 
Partnership 
working and 
effective 
governance 
with LEP 
 
Dedicated staff 
to manage hub 
and outputs 
e.g. manager 
and navigator 
 
Promotion 
through 
business 
networks 
 
 

Comments:  
Growth Hub has now been operating for over 3 years. Due to Covid-19 and government guidelines the Growth hub facility closed to the public at the end of 
March 2020 and moved to an online service. Government guidance allowed for a phased return to the hub from July 2021. This has understandably impacted on 
the attainment of some outputs, such as visitor footfall. Output discussions have been undertaken with the LEP, who understand the situation as the other 
Network Hubs in Gloucestershire also closed to the public for a similar period. During Covid, significant support was also given to the business cell, particularly 
around business grants. Since reopening in July 2021 the hub has taken a phased return to ‘in person’ service delivery, being mindful of guidance and staff and 
client safety. Following a further relaxation of Government guidance in February 2022, regular in person events and meetings are now returning to the hub. An 
annual presentation on hub performance will not be required moving forward, as members of O&S are satisfied with the Growth Hub delivery. A report on the 
performance of the Growth Hub is presented at Overview and Scrutiny Committee – given the positivity of performance they have asked for this to be removed 

108



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

13 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

from their work programme.  Future funding to develop the Growth Hub Network is being explored through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF). An 
Investment Plan for the UKSP is currently being developed for submission in early August. 
 
11 The uncertainty over 

Brexit leads to an 
adverse impact on 
council services and 
its communities.  

• Potential fuel 
shortages 

• Data transfer 
implications 

• Supply chain 
delays  

• Economic impact  

• Election – impact 
on resource   

4 4 16 Business 
continuity and 
contingency 
planning. 
 
Intelligence and 
networking eg 
Local 
Resilience 
Forum, 
government  
agencies.  
 
Government 
funding of £52k. 

Corporate 
Management 
Team  

16  On-going 
participation in multi-
agency network  
 
Potential support to 
small businesses 
through Growth Hub 
 
Glos LRF 
undertaking an audit 
of countywide fuel 
storage capacity 
 
Data storage 
assessment  

212 

Comments:  

A trade deal was reached between the EU and the UK, however what this means locally this remains an evolving picture.  Consider removing this risk as it is 
largely outside of our control. 
 

12 Garden town status Failure to deliver Garden 
Town project will have an 
impact on the Council in  

• Reputation - 
Confidence from 
Government of TBC 
ability to deliver 
programme (planning 
stages) 

5 5 25 
 

Tewkesbury 
Borough 
Council are 
holding 
regular 
meetings with 
the Project 
Assurance 

Garden Town 
Programme 

Director/ Head 
of 
Development 
Services 

12 Programme Board 
meetings provide 
regular and robust 
challenge/review. In 
addition, the TBC 
communications 
team now have in 
place a 
communication 

9 

109



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

14 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

• Financial (loss of NHB 
from assumed delivery 
of homes)  

• Non Delivery of homes 
and jobs required for 
community (delivery 
stages) 

 

Group which 
is attended by 
a Homes 
England (HE) 
representative
.   
 
The project is 
being 
managed 
through the 
standard HE 
Project 
Delivery Plan 
(PDP). 
 
Project Team 
in place.  
 
Completed 
update of the 
evolution of 
the 
masterplan to 
inform the 
JSP Review. 
 

officer specifically to 
aid the Garden 
Town team in the 
coms for the 
programme, plus 
wider growth 
matters for the 
Council. 
 

 
Capacity funding 
award from 
Government this 
year also included 
£1.5m towards the 
County run J9/A46 
project to assist with 
the ongoing 
business case 
development, plus 
£500k for 
assessment of 
options for 
establishing a 
delivery vehicle 
which is underway 
with consultancy 
ARUP. 
 
Work continues on 
this commission with 
a tight timeline 

110



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

15 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

The Council 
has been 
successful in 
receiving 
extra funding 
from MHCLG 
now DLUHC 
and Homes 
England (HE).  
Regular 
review 
meetings with 
representative
s from HE and 
Ministry of 
Housing, 
Communities 
& Local 
Government 
(MHCLG) 
(now 
Department 
for Levelling 
Up, Housing 
and 
Communities 
(DLUHC)).  
 

requiring the 
submission of a 
business case back 
to Government by 
Autumn 2022. 
  
The TGT team 
summitted a bid to 
Homes England for 
the next round of 
garden communities 
capacity funding and 
were successful in 
receiving further 
seed corn funding 
for West 
Cheltenham Garden 
Village and 
Tewkesbury Garden 
Town. 

111



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

16 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

Comments:  Delivery of the programme will potentially be over a 25-30 year period. During that time, there will be many challenges and risk elements to be 
mitigated. At this early formation stage, the team are focusing on getting the key foundations in place in terms of clarifying the forward strategy and ensuring the 
council has the capacity and capability to start delivery. The highest risk in this regard, is further delay to the JSP Review. The review is vital in providing an 
important policy context for the Garden Town and the means to safeguard the programme’s future. In particular, the role it will be able to play in helping bring 
forward sustainable and well managed growth. A revised timetable for the review of the JSP has now been discussed with Members. Meanwhile, the team have 
been working on updating the concept masterplan, the assembly of land and the delivery of enabling basic infrastructure such as the proposed Ashchurch 
Bridge. The Programme continues to be regularly reviewed by Government and remains well regarded, with further capacity funding requests being supported. 
 

13 Non-delivery of the 
Ashchurch bridge 
project.  

The project has a time 
limit of March 2022 for 
funding draw-down. 
(Note: this has been 
formally amended to 
September 2023) 

5 3 15 Grant funding 
agreement 
with Homes 
England 
(2019) 
 
Planning 
permission 
granted 16 
March 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Programme 
Director 

15 A Judicial Review  
submitted by a 
group of local 
parishes was heard 
at the high court in 
November. In 
January 2022, the 
Judicial Review 
ruled robustly in the 
Council’s favour and 
all challenges were 
dismissed. 
However, the 
parishes have now 
lodged a further 
appeal and this will 
be heard in court 
in December 2022. 
 
The project will not 
be able to move to 
construction until 
after this point.   

8 

112



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

17 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
 
Agree 
licence/acces
s with 
landowners 
 
 
 
 
Network Rail 
is an active 
part of the 
project board.  

 
In preparation for 
construction 
however, land 
acquisition and 
access rights are 
in the process of 
being finalised 
with the 
landowners. 
 
Supporting 
transport 
modelling work 
will need to be 
revisited to inform 
the associated 
land assembly and 
wider development 
delivery strategy.  
  

Detail for all the 
consents and 
clearances work 
with NWR for the 
bridge 
construction 
phase are also 
under legal 

113



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

18 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

review by the 
programme 
team’s external 
legal advisers. 

Comments: The HIF grant award of £8,132,465 is under contract. However, due to programme slippage caused by Covid, the project completion date of March 
2022 has been formally amended, with the HIF team at Homes England, to September 2023. The Deed of Variation formalising this amendment is now in place. 
The first tranche of HIF grant funding was successfully drawn down in March 2021, following a positive planning determination. The project team are now 
continuing to press ahead with the project planning for the construction phase due to commence in early 2023, pending a final judgement from the Court of 
Appeal.   

 

14 The resource 
required to 
respond to and 
recover from the 
Covid-19 
pandemic is likely 
to have a 
significant impact 
upon the council’s 
priorities. 

• Non delivery of 
council plan 
ambitions 

 

• Progress stalled in 
delivery of high 
profile projects  

 

• Adverse impact on 
staff health and 
wellbeing  

 

• Financial impact 
upon budget 

5 4 20 ‘prioritisation 
of priorities’  
 
£500k 
recovery 
reserve  
 
HR support 
and wellbeing 
policies  
 
Covid-19 
recovery plan 
 
Recovery 
aligned to 
government 
roadmap 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

16 Utilisation of 
recovery reserve 
to support 
capacity.  
 
Continued 
monitoring of 
workloads. 

 
Annual council 
plan refresh will 
look to absorb any 
outstanding 
recovery actions 
thereby resorting 
back to one key 
strategic 
document – to be 

8 

114



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

19 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

considered by 
Council on 26 
July.  
 
 

Comments: Whilst this is impacting on the council now and technically an ‘issue’ rather than a risk it would be remiss not to include it within the register given 

this is not likely to be a short term issue. Quarterly updates continue to be provided to Overview and Scrutiny Committee through the council plan performance 
tracker and Covid-19 recovery plan. Our ‘return to work’ workstream has been implemented successfully and in line with the government announcement the 
removal of restrictions within the offices – whilst remaining vigilant to increasing cases. During the course of the pandemic, additional resource has been brought 
in across a variety of service areas. The majority of services are now in recovery mode – there are pockets of pressure within certain functions, for example 
within Revenues and Benefits and Finance (overseeing the energy rebate scheme and corporately across a number of services (overseeing support 
to Ukranian refugees).  

15 The climate 

change motion 

approved by 

Council included a 

commitment to 

work with partners 

in Gloucestershire 

to achieve 

countywide carbon 

neutrality aims as 

well as carbon 

neutrality for the 

Council’s own 

services. Both of 

these targets are 

The climate change 

motion approved by 

Council in October 2019 

contained a number of 

points including: 

• Carbon neutral 

status for the 

council offices 

by 2030 

• working with 

partners in 

Gloucestershire 

to achieve 

countywide 

4 5 20 Appointment 

of countywide 

coordinator 

 

Approval of 

action plan for 

Council 

carbon 

neutrality 

 

Grant funding 

secured to 

deliver a new 

solar car 

Head of 

Finance & 

Asset 

Management 

16 Identification of 

specific actions to 

support wider 

carbon neutrality 

of whole council 

and the Borough. 

 

Allocation of 

funding to support 

specific activities, 

both on an on-

going and one-off 

basis 

 

4 

115



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

20 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

likely to require 

significant funding 

in delivering the 

aim. 

carbon neutrality 

aims 

These aims are likely to 

require significant 

change in the council’s 

own service delivery and 

influencing change in the 

wider community. 

The ambitions will also 

require significant 

financial input and 

additional capacity to 

deliver. 

 

 

parking 

canopy. 

 

Appointment 

of dedicated 

Carbon 

Reduction 

Officer. 
 

Allocation of 

£100,000 

reserve to 

support small 

scale 

activities  

Source external 

grant funding 

opportunities 

 

Collaborative 

working with 

partners to 

maximise 

efficiency and 

reduce cost 

 

Assessment and 

delivery of 

capacity and 

resource 

necessary to meet 

the Council’s 

motion. 

Comments: the council has approved significant funding over the last 12 months to support our target including over £400,000 towards the new 

solar canopy, £100,000 for one off support towards delivery of the action plan and £40,000 ongoing for the employment of a new Carbon Reduction 

Officer. However, initial estimates when drawing up our carbon reduction strategy suggested investment of between £10m and £12m would be 

necessary to meet carbon neutrality for the council for 2030. This estimate is likely to have increased given rising costs and does not include any 

support required for the wider agenda outside of the council’s own services. 

16 National driver 

shortage 

There is a national 

shortage of HGV drivers.  

The impact is that across 

4 4 16 Increase the 

market 

supplement 

Head of 

Community 

Services 

16 Apply the 

business 

continuity plan if 

8 

116



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

21 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

the Ubico contracts they 

are struggling to recruit 

and retain RCV drivers.  

The supply of agency 

drivers is a concern.  

The overall impact of this 

is that contract costs 

may increase and waste 

rounds may suffer from 

shortages resulting in 

service suspensions.   

for drivers and 

train more 

loaders to 

become 

drivers. 

services are 

suspended. 

 

Continue dialogue 

with Ubico and 

suggest ideas to 

improve e.g. 

offering a golden 

hand shake / 

incentive for 

referrals of drivers 

from staff etc. 

Comments: Ubico and the council have been managing this risk as best as we can.  Additional budgets have been allocated for driver’s salary enhancements 

and this has an impact on the overall budget. The issue remains a risk for the council.  In addition, we are seeing an increasing number labour disputes 

across the country including in some places waste operatives undertaking industrial action.  Ubico have been contacted to seek assurance that this 

is not the case within their workforce. 

 

17 Waste transfer 

station at 

Wingmoor Farm 

subject to a 

variation of their 

planning, 

The waste transfer at 

Wingmoor Farm is the 

subject of a planning 

variation to enable them 

to continue operating as 

our waste transfer 

station for our residual 

waste.  There is no 

viable alternative within 

4 4 16 Seek to 

influence 

Gloucestershi

re County 

Council 

(GCC) 

planning 

committee 

decision. 

Head of 

Community 

Services 

16 Make 

representation to 

GCC planning 

committee and 

also to TBC 

planning 

committee setting 

out the 

16 

117



Appendix 1 - Tewkesbury Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register (updated July 2022)  
 

  
 

 

22 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-

5
) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

ri
s
k
 s

c
o

re
 Identified risk mgt 

action  points 

T
a

rg
e

t 
ri

s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

a sensible geographic 

area and the only 

alternative would be to 

direct deliver our waste 

to Javelin Park, this 

could result in the 

council needing to put 

new rounds on and 

purchase new vehicles 

and employ more staff.  

This will have significant 

financial implications for 

the council. 

implications for 

the council. 

Comments: A second planning application has been submitted to Gloucestershire County Council to continue this activity until 2025. 

 

118



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Internal Audit Monitoring Report  

Report of: Chief Audit Executive (Head of Corporate Services) 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member Corporate Governance  

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The monitoring report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with an overview of the 
internal work completed in the period. The audit assignment work reported in Appendix 1 
should provide confidence that the internal audit service is operational now resources have 
been released from the COVID-19 business cell.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the Internal Audit work undertaken and the assurance given on the 
adequacy of internal controls operating in the systems audited.  

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) state that the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) 
must report functionally to the board. This includes reporting on internal audit’s activity relative 
to its plan.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising directly from this report.   

Legal Implications: 

By monitoring the implementation of their recommendations, internal audit assists the Council 
to minimise risk areas and thereby reduce the prospects of legal challenge. 

Risk Management Implications: 

If the CAE does not report functionally to the board then this does not comply with PSIAS.  If 
there are delays in response to the acceptance or implementation of internal audit 
recommendations, this potentially increases the risk of fraud, error, inefficiency or areas of 
non-compliance within the systems audited.  

 
 
 
 

119

Agenda Item 10



Performance Management Follow-up: 

All internal audit recommendations are followed-up within appropriate timescales to give 
assurance they have been implemented. Where a recommendation has not been implemented 
and it has missed two agreed implementation dates then a responsible officer must attend 
Committee to answer any questions that arise.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 It is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that the Chief 
Audit Executive (Head of Corporate Services) reports formally to the ‘board’ (Audit and 
Governance Committee) on the work of internal audit.  The monitoring report provides 
the Audit and Governance Committee with an overview of the work completed by 
internal audit. This includes a level of assurance as to how well the internal control 
environment is managed for each audit assignment undertaken. The work undertaken 
to date should provide confidence to Members that the internal audit service is 
operational now resources have been released from the COVID-19 business cell. 
Attached at Appendix 1 is the work completed in the period.    

2.0 COMPLETED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS FOR THE PERIOD  

2.1 When reporting, a ‘split’ opinion can be given. This means an individual opinion is given 
for each risk category identified. This approach enables internal audit to identify to 
management specific areas of control that are operating or not. Assurance opinions are 
categorised as ‘substantial, reasonable, limited, no assurance’. The audit opinions can 
be found in Appendix 1. There is one ‘limited’ opinion in relation to sundry debtor 
recovery. There were minimal recommendations to be followed up during the quarter – 
of the two that required follow-up this work was undertaken and one recommendation 
confirmed as implemented (project management) and one recommendation as 
outstanding (fraud risk registers). The latter is touched upon within the report of the 
Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit, an Agenda item for today’s meeting.  

2.2 In terms of work in progress, audits currently being undertaken are:  

• Car parks. 

• Test and Trace grant declaration. 

• Winchcombe TIC banking procedures. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 All managers are consulted prior to the commencement of the audit to agree the scope 
and each manager has the opportunity to comment on the draft report and complete a 
client survey at the end of the audit. The status of audit recommendations is reported 
on a regular basis to Corporate Management Team. 

120



5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Annual Plan.  

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.  

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None.  

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 Internal Audit contributes to VFM through their improvement work.  

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10 .1 None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Completed audit opinions   
   
 

121

mailto:Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

 

Audits 

Audit: Contain Outbreak Management Fund 

Introduction: The government has provided a Grant for Contain Outbreak Management (COMF). The grant determination confirmed funding for Tewkesbury Borough Council is 

£109,658.67. The grant scheme notes a set of principles and conditions that must be met. The purpose of the grant is to provide support to the council, towards expenditure lawfully 
incurred, or to be incurred, in relation to the mitigation against and management of local outbreaks of COVID-19. The scheme also provides financial support to be used for contain 
activity, alongside test and trace activity. There is a requirement within the grant conditions that the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor must make a declaration, that the grant 
conditions have been complied with, to the Contain Outbreak Management Fund Team at the following email address, Covid-19LAfundingrequests@dhsc.gov.uk by the 30 June 
2022.  This audit will seek to confirm that the grant monies have been spent in accordance with the grant principles. 

Risk identified: Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Legislative & Policy 
Compliance: 

The grant monies have not 
been spent in accordance 
with the conditions of the 
Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund (COMF) 
Grant Determination 
2021/22 

statutory instrument 
No31/5518  

 

 

Substantial 

 

In 2021-22 the government awarded Local Authorities with a Contain Outbreak Management 
Fund. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council received a grant allocation of £109,658.67. 

The purpose of the grant was to provide financial support to the council, towards expenditure 
lawfully incurred, or to be incurred, in relation to the mitigation and management of local 
outbreaks of COVID-19.  

Attached to the grant were a number of conditions requiring compliance as follows: 

Condition 1: 

In two tier areas, this grant is conditional on upper tier authorities working closely with their 
lower tier partners and ensuring those partners are given opportunities to deliver the outcomes 
this grant is meant to support where delivery by those partners would be the most efficient and 
cost-effective means of delivery. In those cases, it is essential that upper tier authorities 
provide sufficient resources to lower tier authorities within the former’s allocated funding, so 
that the latter can carry out any responsibilities that they are asked to undertake.’ 

Audit findings confirm that this grant condition has been met. 

The resources required to both mitigate against and manage local COVID-19 outbreaks in the 
borough were in place via the provision of Community Protection/ Covid Protection Officers 
(CPO’s), as well as a Covid Compliance Events Officer. These resources were provided via 
Gloucestershire City Council in accordance with the Gloucestershire Safe (Covid-19 Multi 
Agency Project), and via a recruitment agency.  

The resource for the provision of Covid Compliance Events Officer, was provided for the 
period May 2021 to March 2022. Their role was to ensure COVID compliance and asses 
Covid risk regarding events held across the Borough. 

None. 

122

mailto:Covid-19LAfundingrequests@dhsc.gov.uk


In respect of the Community Protection/Covid Protection Officers (CPO’s), these were 
provided 5 days per week from 1 October 2021 to 31 March 2022. The purpose of the role 
was, that whilst they could not enforce the rules regarding COVID during that time, they would 
be able to alleviate certain pressure from both the police and council officers, who did have 
those powers.  

Whilst there is assurance that the hours worked by the individuals undertaking these duties 
were charged correctly, the audit identified that signed terms of agreements/ service 
agreements were not held on file. It would therefore be expected that for any future use of 
contractors via Multi Agency Support such as this, documentation is appropriately and 
accurately recorded. 

The audit confirmed that the full grant fund of £109,658.67 has been spent in funding these 
resources and meeting condition 1. An overspend of £7,654.85 was incurred, however there is 
no requirement for this to be declared.  

Condition 2: 

The Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor are required to sign and return to the Contain 
Outbreak Management Fund Team by 30 June 2022 the following declaration. 

“To the best of our knowledge and belief, and having carried out appropriate investigations 
and checks, in our opinion, in all significant respects, the conditions attached to the LOCAL 
AUTHORITY TEST AND TRACE CONTAIN OUTBREAK MANAGEMENT FUND GRANT 
DETERMINATION 2021/22: No 31/5518 have been complied with.” 

This declaration has been signed and returned.  

Condition 3: 

Local authorities will cooperate with monitoring and evaluation of the scheme where requests 
are made in a reasonable and timely manner by the Department. 

Audit findings confirm that this condition has been met, on the basis that the council has 
submitted the necessary returns as requested. 

There is therefore assurance that all grant conditions attached to the Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund 2021/22 have been complied with and monies have been spent in 
accordance with this.  

 

 

 

 

 

123



Audit: Sundry Debtors Audit 2021-22 

Introduction: This audit is completed as part of the recovery audit action plan for 2021/22. The debtors balancing statements note an arrears brought forward of £1,669,643.84 

from 2020/21, and for the period 01/04/2021 to 31/08/21 receipts of £3,859,084.00.  Debtor invoices are raised directly by the services, with adjustments being made through 
Financial Services.  This audit will look to confirm that invoices are raised promptly and accurately; income is correctly accounted, and effective recovery action is taken when 
required. 

Risk identified: 

 

Level of 
Control: 

 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Legislative & Policy 
Compliance (LPC) 

LPC1: Retention of data 
does not adhere to the 
Council’s retention schedule 
and therefore the service is 
in breach of GDPR 
regulations leading to the 
possibility of prosecution/fine 

 

Reasonable A review of records held within the debtor system found that the majority of data is being 
held for the correct period. There are however some instances where records are being 
retained for longer than the set period within the corporate retention schedule of 6 years plus 
the current year.  

It is also noted that for individual service areas, there is some inconsistency within the 
retention schedule in terms of the retention periods set for invoice associated activities.  

The council’s GDPR action plan includes an action to review the current corporate retention 
schedule, and this is overseen by the Information Board. It has therefore been agreed that 
the findings of this audit will be incorporated into the review.  

Agreed Action: 

The scheduled review of the 
council’s corporate retention 
schedule to incorporate the findings 
of the Sundry Debtors Audit 21-22 
in relation to data held within the 
debtor’s system.  

(Responsible Officer – SPOC)  

Operational (O) 

O1: Sundry debts are not 
raised promptly, accurately 
and income received is not 
accurately accounted, 
resulting in a loss of 
income/misstatement of 
accounts. 

 

.  

 

 

 

 

Reasonable Invoices were found to have been raised correctly and expected income allocated to the 
appropriate cost code within the general ledger. Of the invoices tested, 80% had been raised 
promptly, i.e., within a week of the service being conducted. For the remaining 20%, the 
delay in raising the invoice ranged from 3 months to 24 months. This was primarily due to 
resources being limited or having been re-allocated as a result of COVID duties.   

Adjustments to debtor accounts were found to have been made with sufficient justification 
and the associated changes to the general ledger had been correctly undertaken.  In respect 
of adjustments where the debt was attributed to a contractually agreed price being reduced 
e.g., rent reduction during COVID, the appropriate level of authorisation had not been 
evidenced to Finance prior to the adjustment taking place. A recommendation has therefore 
been made in this respect [R1].   

A process is in place whereby payments receipted for debtor invoices are automatically 
allocated to the appropriate debtor accounts.  Where payments cannot be automatically 
matched these are placed into a debtors suspense account.  Payments in this account are 
reviewed regularly and are promptly allocated to the correct debtor.  The performance of a 
monthly reconciliation between the debtors system and the general ledger provides 
assurance that potential misstatements are identified promptly. 

Recommendation 1 [R1]: 

Recommendation priority:  

Medium 

Recommendation Details: 

Appropriate authorisation should be 
obtained by Finance where 
adjustments relate to a debt 
associated with a contractual 
agreement in place e.g., a service 
already delivered for an agreed 
price, a rent reduction etc. The 
authorisation should be checked 
against the current ‘Authorised 
Signatory List’. 

Implementation date:  

December 2022 

124



 Responsible Officer:  

Accounts Payable and Receivable 

Officer 

Operational (O) 

O2: Debt is not promptly 
recovered potentially 
resulting in a loss of 
income/misstatement of 
accounts 

 

Limited With regards to debt recovery, there is assurance that Financial Services are proactively 
facilitating the recovery of sundry debt through the issue of invoices, reminders and notifying 
services of unpaid invoices through monthly debt analysis reports. 

A sample of outstanding debt noted that some recovery action within service areas had been 
delayed/ suspended due to the council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic. It is also 
acknowledged that Financial Services recently conducted a debt review exercise with service 
areas, this identified a total debt of £8,245 which was written off at year end 2021/22. 

Therefore, the current level of outstanding debt, as at June 2022, is £2,005,337. 60% of 
which is noted as being set up to be paid on an instalment basis. The majority of those not 
being paid by instalment relate to debts associated with Licensing, Revenues & Benefits and 
Asset Management. 

Of the total debt currently outstanding, the latest analysis report indicates that £217,934 has 
been owed for in excess of 1 year; the majority of these debts relating to trade waste (31 
accounts) and Licensing (82 accounts). Despite the recent exercise with service areas at 
year end, this level of debt remains high. It is therefore recommended that a further review of 
this debt be carried out by service areas to establish recovery action or to write off debts 
where appropriate to do so. This should include the arrangement of instalments and the 
suspension of the service where it is continuing to be delivered despite non-payment e.g., 
trade waste [R2]. Progress against reducing this level of debt should be reported to the 
appropriate senior management body on a six-monthly basis [R3]. It is acknowledged that 
service reviews within Licensing and Trade Waste are due to be undertaken and will 
encompass the process of debt recovery.  

 

Recommendation 2 [R2]: 

Recommendation priority:  

High 

Recommendation Details: 

A further review of outstanding debt 
within each service area should be 
carried out to establish recovery 
action or to write off debts where 
appropriate. Proposed action should 
be documented against each debt.  

Implementation date:  

August 2022 

Responsible Officer:  

Operational Managers 

Recommendation 3 [R3]: 

Recommendation priority:  

Medium 

Recommendation Details: 

Progress against reducing the level 
of outstanding debt should be 
reported to the appropriate senior 
management body on a six-monthly 
basis. 

Implementation date:  

November 2022 

Responsible Officer:  

Finance Manager  
 

 

125



Audit: Homelessness Prevention Grant 

Introduction: This audit is completed as part of the 2021/2022 audit plan. The Homelessness Prevention Grant scheme notes a set of principles and conditions that must be met.  

In essence, the grant was provided to the Council to help vulnerable households and those at risk of rough sleeping with rent arrears and so reduce the risk of them being evicted and 
becoming homeless.  The grant monies must be committed by 31 March 2022.  There is a requirement within the conditions that the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer or Chief 
Internal Auditor must make a declaration, that the grant conditions have been complied with, to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (formerly Ministry of 
Housing Communities and Local Government) by the 6 April 2022 for the Main Grant and 14 April 2022 for the Top Up Grant. As of 17 March 2022, a follow up instruction was 
received from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities that the declaration for both grants must be retuned and submitted via an online portal by 14 April 2022. 

Risk identified: Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Legislative & Policy 
Compliance: 

The grant monies have not 
been spent in accordance 
with the following principles, 
as stated within the 
Homelessness Prevention 
Grants of; 

*Main 33-5546 (£210890) 

*Top Up 31-5863 

(£44219) 

That there is non-
compliance to the grant 
conditions relating to the 
Homelessness Prevention 
Grant Schemes leading to 
repayment in whole or any 
part of the grant 

 

Reasonable In 2021-22 the government awarded Local Authorities with Homelessness Prevention Grants. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council received a grant allocation of £210,890 and an additional top 
up grant of £44,219. 

The core purpose of the grant was to provide the council with the financial ability to help 
vulnerable households and those at risk of rough sleeping with rent arrears, and to reduce 
the risk of them being evicted and becoming homeless. In line with the scheme, the grant 
monies were committed by 31 March 2022, with 25% of the total spend being attributed to 
directly support homelessness applicants with rental costs. The remaining 75% being 
attributed to the delivery of the council’s statutory duties to prevent homelessness.   

The grant conditions requiring compliance were as follows. 

Condition 1 

a) To fully enforce the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 and contribute to ending 
rough sleeping by increasing activity to prevent single homelessness.  

b) Reduce family temporary accommodation numbers through maximising family 
homelessness prevention and reduce the use of unsuitable B&Bs for families.  

c) Ensure service financial viability of services by contributing to the costs of statutory 
duties, including implementing the Homelessness Reduction Act and supporting 
with the costs of temporary accommodation. 

Audit findings confirmed that grant condition 1 has been met and that Housing Services are 
fulfilling the duty of homelessness prevention requirements. 

In some homelessness cases sampled, pre-requisite documentation was not always 
available within the Housing Services Locata database. To ensure the process is consistently 
documented, a recommendation has been made to ensure all applicant evidence is 
accurately recorded. The importance of consistent documentation being recorded ensures 
compliance with the Housing Reduction Act 2017 (for example providing Personal Housing 
Plans to all applicants) and to ensure that there is constant service for the applicant (for 
example if a Housing Officer is off on holiday or sickness absence, having all the documents 

Recommendation 1 [R1] 

Recommendation priority: Medium 

Recommendation Details: 

A clear audit trail is required in 
respect of records/case reference 
numbers contained in Locata and 
Creditors in respect of Homeless 
Prevention cases. Sample checking 
should be regularly conducted by 
the Housing Manager. This check 
should include that there has been 
accurate completion (including 
signatures and dates) of:- 

a) Rent deposit/rent in 
advance agreements for all 
individuals 

b) Personal housing plans 

c) Homeless prevention duty 
letters 

d) The retention of supporting 
documents in respect of 
the rent agreements 

Agreed implementation date: 
November 2022 

Responsible Officer: Housing 
Services Manager  

126



and letters stored on Locata will ensure that any Officer can assist). This will also enable 
accurate financial reconciliations to take place as documentation (such as rental agreements, 
purchase orders and rent advances) can be easily traced from the finance system back to the 
housing system [R1]. 

Condition 2 

The Chief Executive, Section 151 officer or Chief Internal Auditor were required to sign and 
return to the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government, a declaration 
confirming compliance by 14 April 2022. 

This was completed and submitted by The Chief Executive on 13 April 2022.  

Condition 3 & 4  

The authority agrees to produce and agree a B&B elimination plan with at any time during the 
funding period should they have more than 5 families in B&B accommodation for longer than 
6 weeks and should they be requested to do so.   

Tewkesbury Borough Council did not have any families residing in B&B accommodation for 
longer than 6 weeks and therefore does not have a B&B elimination plan in place in 
accordance with the 2021-22 period. 

To summarise, the conditions attached to the 2021/22 homelessness prevention grant have 
been complied with and monies have been spent in accordance with this.  

In respect of the projected 2022/23 Homelessness Prevention grant funding of circa 
£210,000; this will be subject to a formal report, submitted to the Executive Committee along 
with an associated project/action plan prior to any grant monies being spent. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

127



Audit: Complaints 

Introduction: This audit is completed as part of the 2022/2023 audit plan. The council has a Complaints policy, where there is a requirement for data in relation to Complaints to be 

collated and reported, including the capturing of any lessons learnt. Where relevant, the council will acknowledge faults, explain what went wrong, what will be done to prevent it 
happening again and if appropriate will provide a remedy in the form of a specific action. All lessons learnt should be considered and implemented by the appropriate service area. An 
annual report of complaints is presented to the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee. It was verbally reported to this committee, that the intention would be to use 
internal audit as independent assurance that lessons learnt had actually been implemented. Days would be allocated in each audit plan to accommodate this work. The report to O&S 
Committee in October 2021 confirmed that for 2020/21, there had been a total of 144 complaints received. 59 of these were justified and 43 were partially justified. 

Risk identified: 

 

Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Operational: 

If lessons learnt have not 
been implemented this 
contributes to the failure of 
customer related 
improvements and 
customer expectations and 
fails to potentially mitigate 
the receipt of future 
complaints. 

Reasonable The council has an approved Complaints Policy, where there is a requirement for data in 
relation to complaints to be collated and reported, including where relevant the recording of 
any lessons learnt.  

Customer complaints are managed within the Council’s digital platform, Liberty Create, where 
all information is held within one database and is fully automated. The complaints framework 
is overseen by the corporate team and complaints are allocated by Customer Services.   

Complaints are allocated to the appropriate Operational Manager who is responsible for 
acknowledging the complaint with the customer and providing a response. This is tracked 
and recorded within the Liberty Create portal.  

In respect of any lessons learnt from complaints, audit testing considered the following: 

- Are lessons learnt being identified and implemented? 

- Where the council is at fault, is this being acknowledged to the customer? 

- Does the customer receive an apology? 

- Is it being explained to the customer what went wrong? 

- Is the customer being notified of what will be done to prevent the issue happening 
again? 

- Are appropriate remedies being put in place?  

Audit testing confirmed that the overall majority of lessons learnt have been implemented and 
actions put into place accordingly. From those tested, just one complaint had not had a 
lesson learnt implemented and this was due to an administration error. The outcome should 
have been recorded as ‘none’, as no lesson learnt was due, given that the reply provided to 
the customer was sufficient. This related to a customer who had complained due to the fact 
that they could not be issued with a new bin lid to do DIY repairs to their bin. In their 
response they had been notified that due to the national standards that would need to be 
adhered to, it was not something that the council would be able to support at the current time.  

Recommendation 1 [R1] 

Recommendation priority:  
Medium 

Recommendation Details 

To ensure a complete record of 

each complaint is held within the 

Liberty Create Portal, Operational 

Managers should be required to 

record any evidence relating to 

lessons learnt within the system. 

Where a lesson learnt has not been 

implemented, a note should be 

placed on the complaint file 

explaining the reason for this. 

Implementation date:  

December 2022 

Responsible Officer:  

Corporate Services Officer in 
conjunction with Operational 
Managers 

128



In all cases sampled, the fault had been acknowledged and an apology given to the 
customer.  

When explaining to the customer ‘what went wrong’ and had the customer been notified of 
the actions taken to prevent the issue from happening again, the majority of responses met 
the requirements. Where these statements were not adhered to is because the Operational 
Manager had either directly spoken with the customer to seek clarity that the matter had been 
resolved, or it had not been applicable due to the nature of the incident that led to the 
complaint. For example, regarding the delayed delivery of a garden waste bin, the customer 
had been telephoned to explain the reasons for this and to advise when delivery would be 
expected.  

In the majority of the cases sampled, the lessons learnt were considered to be fairly stated 
and appropriate. Whilst in some cases, although successful outcomes were still delivered, a 
more appropriate lessons learnt type could have been selected within the system to better 
reflect the actions taken. For example, a complaint relating to the post handling process and 
the return of original documents had a lesson learnt of ‘better communication’, whereas the 
error had been due to the increase in external mail and subsequently the process had been 
reviewed and the necessary changes applied. Therefore, a lesson learnt of ‘review/ update 
system or process’ would have been more appropriate.   

In carrying out the audit testing, Operational Managers were contacted to seek documentary 
evidence in relation to the lessons learnt held within their service area. It is recommended 
that for all future complaints this documentation is saved centrally with the complaint record 
within the Liberty Create Portal [R1].  

In summary there are reasonable assurances that lessons learnt are being discussed and 
implemented accordingly, and that in the majority of cases, the most applicable lesson learnt 
is being selected.  Where a lesson learnt has not been applied there is sufficient justification 
as to why this was not required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



Follow-ups 

Outstanding audit recommendations- implemented  

Service and 
Responsible 
Officer(s) 

Audit &  

Recommendation: 

Rec. 
Rating 

Expected 

Implement-
ation date: 

Findings 

Service: 
Corporate 
Services- 
Corporate 
Services Team 

 
Responsible 
Officer(s): 
Head of Corporate 
Services in 
conjuction with 
Corporate 
Services Manager 

 

 

 

Audit Title:  

Project Management Framework Audit 2018-19 

Recommendations. 

An annual review of service plans should be carried out in 
order to ensure all potential projects are identified and 
horizon forms should be completed in all cases 

 Low 

 

 Mar-22 A review of 2022/23 service plans has been undertaken and 
potential projects noted. These will be discussed with relevant 
managers and where relevant brought forward as horizon 
projects.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

130



Outstanding Recommendations –not implemented with revised target dates/ 

Service and 
Responsible 
Officer(s) 

Audit &  

Recommendation: 

Rec. 
Rating 

Expected 

Implement-
ation date: 

Findings New 
implement- 

ation date 

Service: 

 Financial & Asset 
Management 
Services – 
Counter Fraud Unit 

Responsible 
Officer(s): 

Head of Counter 
Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit  

Audit Title:  

Risk Management Audit 2019-20 

Recommendations. 

An operational fraud risk register should be 
developed; to include consideration of risks in relation 
to serious and organised crime. 

Medium Mar-22 Recommendation status: 

Not Implemented 

Summary: 

This recommendation has not yet been 
completed and a fresh implementation date 
has been agreed for December 2022. Non-
implementation is due to the resources of the 
CFEU being deployed to support such work 
as business grant assurance.  

Dec 2022 

 

 

 
Recommendations Rating 
 

Priority: Definition: 

1 High A fundamental weakness in the system that puts the Authority at risk. This might include non-compliance with legislation or 
council policy,or may result in major risk of loss or damage to council assets, information or reputation. Requires action as 
a matter of urgency; to be addressed within a 3-6 month timeframe wherever possible or within an extended time frame as 
agreed with Internal Audit if the recommendation requires extensive resources or time. 

2 Medium Observations refer mainly to issues that have an important effect on the system of internal control but do not require 
immediate action. Legislation or policy are unlikely to be breached as a consequence of these issues, although could 
cause limited loss of assets, information or adverse publicity or embarrassment. Internal audit suggest improvement to 
system design to minimise risk and/or improve efficiency of service. To be resolved within a 6-9 month timescale.  

3 Low Observations refer to issues that would if corrected, improve internal control in general and ensure good practice, but are 
not vital to the overall system of internal control. A desirable improvement to the system, to be introduced within a 9-12 
month period. 

 
 

131



Level of control  
 

Level of control: Definition: Guidance: 

Substantial  Substantial assurance- A sound system of governance, risk 
management and control exists, with internal controls 
operating effectively and being consistently applied to 
support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

No audit recommendations or no more than 3 low priority 
(3) recommendations. 

Reasonable Reasonable assurance- There is generally sound system of 
governance, risk management and control in place.  Some 
issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

No more than 2 medium priority (2) recommendations, 
possibly with some low (3) recommendations. 

Limited Limited assurance- Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-
compliance were identified.  Improvement is required to the 
system of governance, risk management and control to 
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in 
the area audited. 

Between 1 and 3 high priority (1) and possibly several 
other priority recommendations OR 3 or more medium 
(2) recommendations. 

No Assurance No Assurance- Immediate action is required to address 
fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance 
identified.  The system of governance, risk management 
and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited.   

4 or more Priority 1s OR 6 or more medium priority (2) 
recommendations. 

 

132



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Report 

Report of: Head of Service, Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit  

Corporate Lead: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

To provide the Audit and Governance Committee with assurance over the counter fraud 
activities of the Council. 

Work plans are presented to the Audit and Governance Committee detailing progress and 
results for consideration and comment as the body charged with governance in this area. 

The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit will continue to provide Audit and Governance 
Committee with direct updates biannually, for Tewkesbury Borough Council this will be at the 
July and November meetings. 

The report also provides the annual update in relation to the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA), the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA) and the Council’s existing 
authorisation arrangements.     

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the annual update on the work of the Counter Fraud and Enforcement 
Unit. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Audit and Governance Committee oversees the Council’s counter fraud arrangements and 
it is therefore appropriate for the Committee to be updated in relation to counter fraud activity.   

In administering its responsibilities, this Council has a duty to prevent fraud and corruption, 
whether it is attempted by someone outside or within the Council such as another organisation, 
a resident, an employee or Councillor. 

The Council is committed to an effective counter fraud and corruption culture, by promoting 
high ethical standards and encouraging the prevention and detection of fraudulent activities, 
thus supporting corporate and community plans. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

The report details financial savings generated by the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit. 

  

133

Agenda Item 11



Legal Implications: 

In general terms, the existence and application of an effective fraud risk management regime 
assists the Council in effective financial governance which is less susceptible to legal 
challenge.     

The Council is required to ensure that it complies with the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000, the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 and any other relevant/statutory 
legislation regarding investigations.  Any authorisations for directed/covert surveillance or the 
acquisition of communications data undertaken should be authorised by the appropriate 
Officer and recorded in the Central Register.   

Risk Management Implications: 

The Council is required to proactively tackle fraudulent activity in relation to the abuse of 
public funds. The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit provides assurance in this area.  

Failure to undertake such activity would accordingly not be compliant and expose the 
authority to greater risk of fraud and/or corruption.  If the Council does not have effective 
counter fraud and corruption controls it risks both assets and reputation. 

The RIPA and IPA Policies demonstrate the Council’s consideration of necessity, 
proportionality and public interest when deciding on surveillance activity or the decision to 
obtain personal communication data.  The application of the policies and procedures to 
govern surveillance and the obtaining of personal communications data minimises the risk 
that an individual’s human rights will be breached.  Furthermore, it protects the Council from 
allegations of the same. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Regular updates are provided to the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the Head 
of Corporate Services.  Biannual reports in relation to counter fraud work will be made to the 
Audit and Governance Committee. 

Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit have a formalised protocol and 
meet to review the current work plan and assess any areas of risk. 

Policy documentation will be presented when required to the Management Team. 

Environmental Implications:  

Not applicable. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Audit and Governance Committee oversees the Council’s counter fraud 
arrangements, it is therefore appropriate for the Committee to be updated in relation to 
counter fraud activity. 

1.2 Work plans have been agreed with the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the 
Head of Corporate Services.  The Audit and Governance Committee, as the body 
charged with governance in this area, is presented with a copy of the work plan for 
information.   

1.3 Attached at Appendix 1 is the work plan for 2021/2022 and for 2022/2023. 

 

 

134



2.0 WORK PROGRAMME RESULTS 

2.1 The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit has been supporting work streams created as 
a consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by providing advice relating to fraud risk and 
abuse, most significantly in relation to the Business Grant Schemes.  The Counter Fraud 
and Enforcement Unit has received 10 referrals.  Of these referrals, one case was 
confirmed as eligible; two cases of loss prevention, in that grant monies totalling £2,668 
were not paid, have been referred back to the team; and two cases were deemed to be 
ineligible - £21,326 is being pursued.  Five cases are still under review.   

2.2 All local authorities participate in the Cabinet Office’s National Fraud Initiative, which is a 
data matching exercise to help prevent and detect fraud nationwide.  The use of data by 
the Cabinet Office in a data matching exercise is carried out with statutory authority 
under Part 6 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  It does not require the 
consent of the individuals concerned under Data Protection Legislation.  The team is 
processing the following: 

• 21 matches have been received which has collated and compared business grant 
data nationwide in relation to the original schemes paid during the first lockdown.  
These are under review. 

• The team has reviewed 672 matches relating to single person discount anomalies.  
310 accounts were identified as requiring further enquiries with the liable parties.  110 
accounts have been referred to the Revenues Department requiring action.  
Increased revenue figures and penalty details are pending.  A further 480 matches 
have been received and will be reviewed in quarter 3. 

• 264 matches relating to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Housing Benefit.  
122 matches have been reviewed to date. 

• 72 matches have been reviewed relating to the housing waiting list.  15 discrepancies 
have been referred to the Housing Team.  This is in addition to the general review of 
the Housing Waiting List undertaken by the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit. 

2.3 The results relating to the review of the housing list silver band applications have been 
received.  The team reviewed 580 applications and referred 207 discrepancies to the 
team.  71 applications have been removed from the waiting list and six were 
downgraded.  Each cancelled housing application represents a property which can be 
reallocated to another eligible family.  The National Fraud Initiative applies a figure of 
£3,240 for each application removed to represent the value of future losses prevented as 
a result of removing an applicant.  This represents a saving on the cost of temporary 
accommodation.  In addition, the result of the band re-prioritisation is that those families 
who are correctly banded have a greater chance of being housed and housed more 
speedily.  The loss avoidance figure for this piece of work is £230,040.  Results relating 
to emergency and gold band applications were reported to Audit and Governance 
Committee in July 2021.   

2.4 In relation to work streams detailed on Appendix 1, a review of the Gifts and Hospitality 
procedure has been completed.  A revised online form, which focusses more on intent 
rather than just value, will be introduced and staff awareness raised.   

2.5 The CFEU issued a Vetting and Recruitment Risk Report to HR for consideration of the 
risks associated with employing new staff and best practice to mitigate these.  The report 
was issued for assurance purposes and the HR and OD Manager has confirmed that 
there are robust processes embedded within the service.  

 

135



2.6 In addition to the work carried out under the annual work plan attached at Appendix 1, as 
a dedicated investigatory support service, the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit 
undertakes a wide range of enforcement and investigation work according to the 
requirements of each Council.  This includes criminal investigation and prosecution 
support for enforcement teams, investigations into staff/Member fraud and corruption, or 
tenancy and housing fraud investigation work.   

2.7 During 2021/2022, the team received 15 referrals from across the Council and closed 16 
cases.  Since 1 April 2022, the team has received a further two referrals.  This excludes 
referrals relating to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 

2.8 The team assisted the Planning team with a successful prosecution relating to 
unauthorised work to a listed building.  The individual pleaded guilty and received a 
£1,107 Fine.  Costs of £613 were also awarded.   

2.9 The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit has been tasked with undertaking the 
investigation of alleged fraud and abuse in relation to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
(Council Tax Support) and is the single point of contact for Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) Housing Benefit investigations. During 2021/2022, the team received 28 
referrals and closed 21 cases.  Since 1 April 2022, a further six referrals have been 
received.  The team issued a caution, as an alternative to prosecution, relating to a case 
of undeclared employment.  12 Civil Penalties have been applied totalling £700 and 
increased Council Tax revenue of £16,782 has been raised. The team processed 42 
enquiries for the Department for Work and Pensions and sent / received 16 joint working 
requests. 

3.0 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) / INVESTIGATORY 
POWERS ACT 2016 (IPA) UPDATE 

3.1 1.1. The Council’s policies are based on the legislative requirements of these Acts and the 
Codes of Practice relating to directed surveillance and the acquisition of communications 
data.   

3.2 1.2. The Polices were reviewed and presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in 
September 2020; these were adopted by Executive Committee in November 2020.   

3.3 1.3. The RIPA Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Source Policy was recently 
updated to reflect the new Covert Human Intelligence Sources (Criminal Conduct) Act 
2021 which makes provision for those acting as covert agents to commit crime whilst 
undertaking their duties does not apply to the Council. 

3.4 1.4. The Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement Policy was 
drafted and presented to Audit Committee in November 2021 and adopted by Cabinet in 
December 2021. 

3.5 1.5. The Council must have a Senior Responsible Officer and Authorising Officers to approve 
any applications for surveillance or the use of a Covert Human Intelligence Source, 
before the Court is approached.  The Senior Responsible Officer is the Corporate 
Director, and the Authorising Officers are the Head of Finance and Asset Management 
and the Head of Community Services. 

3.6 1.6. All applications for communications data are made online via the National Anti-Fraud 
Network (NAFN) which acts as the single point of contact for Councils.  There is a 
requirement for the Council to nominate a Designated Senior Officer who will confirm to 
NAFN that the Council is aware of any request and approves its submission.  This role is 
undertaken by the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit. 

136



3.7 1.7. The CFEU will be delivering refresher training to all enforcement staff.  All Authorising 
Officers received training in January 2022. 

3.8 1.8. The Council takes responsibility for ensuring its procedures relating to surveillance and 
the acquisition of communications data are continuously improved and all activity is 
recorded. 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Work plans have been agreed with the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the 
Head of Corporate Services.  

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Whistle Blowing Policy   

Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Penalty and Prosecution Policy  

Corporate Enforcement Policy 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Surveillance and CHIS) Policy 

Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (Acquisition of Communication Data) Policy 

Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement Policy 

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  None 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 The promotion of effective counter fraud controls and a zero-tolerance approach to 
internal misconduct promotes a positive work environment. 

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 This is a positive example of joint working across the county.  The existence of counter 
fraud activity acts as a deterrent to the abuse of public funds which impacts positively on 
the economy and local demographic. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 The service is a shared one across the county, as such, overheads and management 
costs are also shared equally meaning there is increased value for money.  

 

 

 

 

137



11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11.1 None  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: Report to Council - January 2017; Counter Fraud Business Case 
 
Contact Officer:  Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Head of Service 
 Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk  
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Work Plans 2021/2022 and 2022/23 

138

mailto:Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk


Tewkesbury Borough Council Work Plan 2021/2022             Appendix 1 
 

Area of Work Task 

Governance Delivery of two reports for Audit and Governance Committee 

Governance Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally - Checklist Compliance 

Governance Government Functional Standard 013: Counter Fraud - Compliance  

Policy Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Policy Corporate Enforcement Policy  

Policy Council Tax, Council Tax Reduction Scheme & Housing Benefit Penalty and Prosecution Policy 

Policy Proceeds of Crime & Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

Policy Whistle-Blowing Policy 

Policy Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Surveillance & Covert Human Intelligence Source) 

Policy Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (Acquisition of Communications Data) 

Policy Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement 

Bribery and Corruption Assessment Template Review 

Bribery and Corruption Policy and Procedure: Staff Declarations of Interest / Conflicts of Interest 

Bribery and Corruption Review of the Gifts and Hospitality Policy and Procedure 

Serious and Organised Crime Checklist Review 

Serious and Organised Crime Proactive Fraud Drive - transient / cash businesses 

Statutory / Regulatory Collation and Publication of Fraud Transparency Data 

Statutory / Regulatory RIPA / IPA - Annual Report to Members / Advisory / Inspection Contact  

Strategy : Detection Housing Waiting List review 

Strategy : Detection National Fraud Initiative Match Reviews - Revenues / Benefits / Housing  

Strategy : Detection Procurement - Supplier Payment Review 

139



Tewkesbury Borough Council Work Plan 2021/2022             Appendix 1 
 

Area of Work Task 

Strategy : Detection Charity Shop Exemption Review 

Strategy : Detection Housing Benefit Matching Service Referrals - triage and recommendations 

Strategy : Detection Business Grants - Assurance and Enforcement Activities 

Strategy : Prevention Development / Review of Fraud Response Plan 

Strategy : Prevention Development of Fraud Awareness Literature (staff) 

Strategy : Prevention Development of Right to Buy Debt Recovery Process 

Strategy : Prevention Development of Service Specific Fraud Risk Register 

Strategy : Prevention Training Members / Staff - Fraud Awareness / RIPA & IPA / CPIA, PACE, Disclosure Training 

Strategy : Prevention Review of HR Recruitment and Vetting Policy and Procedures 

Strategy : Prevention Fraud Awareness - Procurement Activities 

 
 
RIPA = Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
IPA = Investigatory Powers Act 2016 
CPIA = Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996 
PACE = Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 

140



Tewkesbury Borough Council Work Plan 2022/2023             Appendix 1 
 

Area of Work Task 

Bribery and Corruption Assessment Template Review 

Bribery and Corruption Gifts and Hospitality Policy and Procedure Rollout / Awareness  

Bribery and Corruption Policy and Procedure: Staff Declarations of Interest / Conflicts of Interest 

Governance Delivery of two reports for Audit and Governance Committee 

Governance Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally - Checklist Compliance 

Governance Government Functional Standard 013: Counter Fraud - Compliance  

Governance Development of Service Specific Fraud Risk Register (High Risk Service Areas - TBC) 

Governance Development / Review of Fraud Risk Strategy  / Response Plan 

Policy Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Policy Corporate Enforcement Policy  

Policy CTAX, CTRS & HB Penalty and Prosecution Policy 

Policy Proceeds of Crime & Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

Policy Whistle-Blowing Policy 

Policy RIPA (Surveillance & CHIS) 

Policy IPA (Acquisition of Communications Data) 

Policy Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement 

Procedure Development and roll out of Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Procedure 

Procedure 
Development and roll out of Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and 
Enforcement Procedure 

Serious and Organised Crime Checklist Review 

Serious and Organised Crime Proactive Fraud Drive - transient / cash businesses 

141



Tewkesbury Borough Council Work Plan 2022/2023             Appendix 1 
 

Department / Contact Task 

Statutory / Regulatory Collation and Publication of Fraud Transparency Data 

Statutory / Regulatory RIPA / IPA - Annual Report to Members / Advisory / Inspection SPoC  

Strategy : Detection Housing Waiting List review (Silver Band only) 

Strategy : Detection National Fraud Initiative Match Reviews - Revenues / Benefits / Housing  

Strategy : Detection Business Rates Review Self Catering Accommodation - Assurance and Enforcement Activities 

Strategy : Detection HBMS referrals – triage and recommendations 

Strategy : Detection Council Tax Reduction Scheme Proactive Fraud Drive (High Risk Claims) 

Strategy : Detection Procurement - Supplier Payment Review 

Strategy : Detection Council Tax £150 Rebate - Assurance and Enforcement Activities 

Strategy : Detection Business Grants - Assurance and Enforcement Activities 

Strategy : Prevention Development of Fraud Awareness Literature (staff) 

Strategy : Prevention Development of Right to Buy Debt Recovery Process 

Strategy : Prevention Training Members / Staff - Fraud Awareness / RIPA & IPA / CPIA, PACE, Disclosure Training 

Strategy : Prevention Fraud Awareness – Procurement Activities 

 
 
RIPA = Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
IPA = Investigatory Powers Act 2016 
CPIA = Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996 
PACE = Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 

142



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Fraud Risk Stategy 

Report of: Head of Service, Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit 

Corporate Lead: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 4 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

To provide assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee that approach taken by the 
Counter Fraud Partnership with regard to the risks of fraud committed against the Council are 
recognised, managed and mitigated for in accordance with Council priorities, and changing 
fraud trends. 

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the Fraud Risk Strategy and associated work streams. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Audit and Governance Committee oversees the Council’s counter fraud arrangements and 
it is therefore appropriate for the Committee to consider an overarching strategy in relation to 
fraud prevention and risk mitigation.   

In administering its responsibilities, this Council has a duty to prevent fraud and corruption, 
whether it is attempted by someone outside or within the Council such as another organisation, 
a resident, an employee or Councillor. 

The Council is committed to an effective counter fraud and corruption culture, by promoting 
high ethical standards and encouraging the prevention and detection of fraudulent activities, 
thus supporting corporate and community plans. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

There are no direct financial implications relating to this report however the workstreams 
associated with the Fraud Risk Strategy will help identify loss avoidance measures. 

Legal Implications: 

The Fraud Risk Strategy suppprts the application of an effective fraud risk management 
regime  and assists the Council in effective financial governance which is less susceptible to 
legal challenge.     

 
 

143

Agenda Item 12



Risk Management Implications: 

The Council is required to proactively tackle fraudulent activity in relation to the abuse of 
public funds.  The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit provides assurance in this area.  

Failure to undertake such activity would accordingly not be compliant and expose the 
authority to greater risk of fraud and/or corruption.  If the Council does not have effective 
counter fraud and corruption controls it risks both assets and reputation. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Regular updates are provided to the Head of Finance and Asset Management and the Head 
of Corporate Services. Internal Audit will support the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit to 
develop service specific fraud risk registers that will be reviewed regularly to ensure they 
remain effective and relevant. 

Environmental Implications:  

Not applicable 

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Risk Management is used to identify, evaluate and manage the range of risks facing an 
organisation.  This includes consideration relating to the risk of fraud. Fraud is the most 
common crime in the UK and costs many billions of pounds to private companies, 
individuals and the public sector.  Within Local Government this is estimated to be in the 
region of £2.1 billion per year.  Local authorities have a responsibility to promote and 
develop high standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisations.  This 
supports good governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong 
public financial management. 

2.0 FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 

2.1 The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit (CFEU) has developed a Fraud Risk Strategy 
for implementation across the Counter Fraud Partnership, which includes Tewkesbury 
Borough Council.  The strategy, attached at Appendix 1, has been developed to comply 
with Government Functional Standards relating to counter fraud activities. 

2.2 The strategy sets out the definitions and motivations for fraud and the principles of risk 
management.  Risk management and being ‘risk aware’ are vital to ensure the effective 
operation of the Council.  The risk of fraud is ever present and it is impossible to identify 
or mitigate against all risks; however, by being risk aware the Council is in a better 
position to avoid threats, develop processes that reduce the loss or impact, and increase 
its ability to recover. 

2.3 The strategy identifies the high risk areas that Local Government is susceptible to, both 
internally and externally.  It also details the types of response methods and refers to the 
specific fraud response recommended for Local Government.  These principles underpin 
the Council’s plan. 

2.4 As set out within the Strategy, the CFEU works with Internal Audit to provide resilience 
and resource in prevention, detection, response and review of detected fraud and fraud 
risks.  

144



2.5 Annexed to the strategy, and attached to this report as Appendices 2 and 3, are the 
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Checklist and the Government Functional 
Standard GovS 013 Checklist which set out best practice recommendations.  The CFEU 
will complete these in consultation with the Corporate Governance Group  to inform 
areas for improvement or for inclusion on the work plan.  

2.6 In addition to the completion of the checklists, the CFEU will implement a series of 
service area reviews to identify specifc fraud risks within each Council service area.  This 
will include considering national and local emerging fraud risks, good practice in 
processes and procedure, and possible areas of risk mitigation.   

2.7 A service specific risk register will then be developed with overall risks score that can be 
assessed, monitored and reviewed.  This element of the CFEU annual work plan will be 
developed according to priority – high risk service areas will be addressed first. The work 
will be proportionate to the size of the council and, historically, the risk of fraud is low.  

2.8 The CFEU and officers from the Council’s Corporate Governance Group reviews and 
updates a Serious and Organised Crime Checklist annually, the latest version is attached 
at Appendix 4.  Elements of this checklist are no longer applicable to the Council, and 
awareness relating to the risks posed by Serious and Organised crime is now embedded 
within the organisation.   

2.9 It is therefore proposed that the service specific Serious and Organised Crime risks will 
be transferred to the relevant service or departmental risk registers and the overarching 
principles will be considered within the Fraud Risk Strategy.  The Serious and Organised 
Crime checklist will be discontinued as it is no longer required. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 The Fraud Risk Strategy has been shared with Governance Group. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Whistle Blowing Policy 

Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Penalty and Prosecution Policy.  

Corporate Enforcement Policy 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  Government Functional Standard: GovS 013: Counter Fraud 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 The promotion of effective counter fraud controls and a zero-tolerance approach to 
internal misconduct promotes a positive work environment. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 The existence of counter fraud activity acts as a deterrent to the abuse of public funds 
which impacts positively on the economy and local demographic. 

145



9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 The service is a shared one across the county, as such, overheads and management 
costs are also shared equally meaning there is increased value for money.  

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None. 
 
Contact Officer:  Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Head of Service 
 Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Fraud Risk Strategy 

Appendix 2 -  Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Checklist (blank) 

Appendix 3 - Government Functional Standard – GovS 013: Counter 

Fraud Checklist (blank) 

Appendix 4 – Serious and Organised Crime Checklist 

 

146

mailto:Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk


Fraud Risk Strategy 

2022 

FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
COUNTER FRAUD AND ENFORCEMENT UNIT 

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  a c r o s s  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  a n d  W e s t  O x f o r d s h i r e  t o  

p r e v e n t  f r a u d  a n d  l o s s  

Appendix 1

147



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

Table of Contents 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Key Definitions- ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

Why do people commit fraud? ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Pressure/Motivation ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Opportunity ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Rationalisation ................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Risk Management ........................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Identifying the risk - Local Government fraud risk areas: ........................................................................................... 5 

External High-Risk Areas- ............................................................................................................................ 5 

Internal fraud risks - .................................................................................................................................... 6 

Understanding and assessing the risk ............................................................................................................. 6 

Risk Response Strategy .................................................................................................................................... 7 

Anti-Fraud Strategy ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Approach ......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Planning and Resourcing ................................................................................................................................. 9 

Prevention ..................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Detection ....................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Response ....................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Review ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t   

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k              T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  a n d  l o s s  

148

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

Introduction 
 

Fraud is now the most common crime in the UK and costs many billions of pounds every year to 

private companies, individuals and to the public purse.  The impact of fraud and related offences 

can be devastating.  Impact ranges from unaffordable personal losses, suffered by vulnerable 

victims, to the ability of organisations to stay in business.   

Although fraud is not an issue that any organisation wants to deal with, or possibly admit to, the 

reality is that most organisations will experience fraud to one degree or another; within Local 

Government it is widespread and pervasive.  Surveys worldwide relating to fraud have found that 

the government and public administration sector was the second most represented sector, after 

banking and financial services within the private sector.   

The Government estimates that fraud costs the public sector between £31bn and £53bn per year.  

Fraud in Local Government is estimated to account for around £2.1bn of this sum per year; this is 

money that could be better spent on the provision of services.  The Councils and Publica, which 

make up the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Partnership, have a duty to ensure they protect 

public money from the risk of fraud and whilst it is impossible to eliminate all fraud, must have a 

sufficiently robust control framework in place to reduce these risks. 

Local Authorities have a responsibility to promote and develop high standards for countering fraud 

and corruption in their organisations.  This supports good governance and demonstrates effective 

financial stewardship and strong public financial management.  Local Authorities face significant 

challenges in relation to fraud mitigation whilst providing front line services and protecting large 

vulnerable groups with ever decreasing resources and income streams.   

In compliance with the Government Functional Standard GovS013: Counter Fraud this strategy sets 

the direction and desired outcomes for the partnership. 

An important part of this approach is the anti-fraud culture and practices which are adopted to 

advise and guide members and staff on the approach to the serious issues of fraud and corruption.  

This document provides an overview of our policy in this matter and links to the Counter Fraud and 

Enforcement Unit response which works to prevent, detect and deter fraud and corruption. 

 

Key Definitions 

Bribery Bribery is defined as offering, promising, agreeing to receive or giving of a 

financial or other advantage to induce or reward improper functions or activities 

and/or the request or receipt of such an advantage. 

149



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

Corruption For the purposes of this document, corruption in the public sector including 

Central and Local Government can be defined as the abuse of power by an 

official (or any employee entrusted to carry out the functions of government, 

including contractors) for personal gain. 

Fraud The term ‘Fraud’ is used to define offences contrary to the Fraud Act 2006 based 

on false representation, dishonesty, financial gain or loss and associated 

offences, which include bribery and money laundering.  Fraud essentially 

involves using deception to dishonestly make a personal gain for oneself 

and/or create a loss for another. 

 

Why do people commit fraud? 

The appeal of fraud is the perceived ‘low risk / high reward’ opportunities it presents.  The offence 

can be committed with relative ease and at a distance from the victim and the authorities.  Within 

the public sector, the lack of an identifiable victim only aids the fraudster further.  Fraud may also 

be committed by serious organised crime groups who are capable of orchestrating large scale fraud 

across international boundaries, but also by otherwise law abiding individuals looking to make an 

opportunistic gain.    

 

 

 

 

 

150



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

The fraud triangle is the framework commonly used to explain the reason behind an individual’s 

decision to commit fraud.  This outlines three components that contribute to increasing the risk of 

fraud – opportunity, incentive and rationalization.  These apply equally to any sector organisation 

and can form part of the risk management approach but there should be recognition that the 

opportunities and the incentives to commit fraud are wide ranging within Local Government.   

Pressure/Motivation  

In simple terms, motivation is typically based on either greed or need.  Other causes cited 

include problems and pressures caused by debts and gambling.  Many people are faced with the 

opportunity to commit fraud, and only a minority of the greedy and needy do so.  Personality and 

temperament, including how frightened people are about the consequences of taking risks, play a 

role.  Some people with good objective principles can be influenced or coerced by others or 

develop unaffordable habits, which tempts them to fraudulent activities.  Others are tempted only 

when faced with financial ruin.   

Opportunity  

In terms of opportunity, fraud is more likely in organisations where there is a weak internal 

control system, poor security, little fear of exposure and likelihood of detection, or unclear 

policies with regard to acceptable behaviour.  Research has shown that some employees are 

totally honest, some are totally dishonest, but that many are swayed by opportunity.   

Rationalisation  

Many people obey the law because they believe in it and/or they are afraid of being shamed or 

rejected by people they care about if they are caught.  However, some people may be able to 

rationalise fraudulent actions as:  

• Necessary – especially when done for the business  

• Harmless – because the victim is large enough to absorb the impact, or is a faceless 

organisation  

• Justified – because ‘the victim deserved it’ or ‘because I was mistreated.’  

 

151



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

 

Risk Management 

 

Risk Management Cycle 

 

Identifying the risk - Local Government fraud risk areas 
The threat of fraud not only comes from the general public (external) for whom Local Authorities 

provide and administer many different services, but also employees and contractors (internal), 

employed in a wide range of roles across a breadth of service areas.  Tax is synonymous with Local 

Authorities and it is therefore unsurprising that losses to tax fraud in this area are significantly 

higher than from fraud in other areas.  The below list details some of the types of fraud/corruption 

that Local Authorities are susceptible to:   

External High-Risk Areas 

• Social Housing Tenancy Fraud (false applications, sub-letting for profit, right to buy fraud, 

abandonment, allocations)  

• Council Tax Fraud (Discounts & Exemptions i.e. Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS), Single 

persons discount)  

• Business Rates (NNDR) Fraud (Fraudulent applications for exemptions & relief)  

• Procurement, Purchasing and Contract Management Fraud (constantly changing 

environment and fraud can occur at any point throughout the cycle) 

Identify 
risk areas

Assess 
the risks

Develop Risk 
Management 

plan

Implement 
Risk 

Management 
plan

Re-
evaluate

Review

152



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

• Adult Social Care (care workers claiming money for time they have not worked, payments 

not being used to pay for care) 

• Identity Fraud 

• Blue Badge Scheme Abuse 

• Grant Fraud 

• Cyber Crime - Phishing Emails, Viruses, Payment Fraud (managed by ICT) 

• Serious and Organised Crime (Licensing, contracts, Housing Right to buys, Cuckooing, online 

payment/payment card fraud)  

Internal Fraud Risks 

• Payroll Fraud  

• Fraudulent claims for expenses and allowances 

• Bribery, Corruption and Abuse of Position 

• Failure to declare conflicts of interest 

• Pre-employment fraud – provision of false information 

• Misallocation of social housing to friends/family 

• Procurement Fraud  

• Theft 

• Manipulation of Benefits systems, Grants or Council Tax accounts for personal gain 

• Asset Misappropriation 

• Misuse/Manipulation of Systems 

Understandably, ‘external’ fraud poses a much greater risk to Local Authorities with Business Rates 

fraud identified as the largest growing fraud type in recent years.  Other areas perceived to be of 

the greatest fraud risk to Local Authorities are in Procurement, Council Tax (CTax) ‘Single 

Occupancy Discount’ and adult social care (CIPFA – The Local Government Counter Fraud and 

Corruption Strategy). 

Understanding and assessing the risk 

Once risks have been identified, an assessment of possible impact and corresponding 

likelihood of occurrence should be made using consistent parameters that will enable the 

development of a prioritised risk analysis.  The assessment of the impact of the risk should not 

simply take account of the financial impact but should also consider the organisation’s viability 

and reputation, and recognise the political sensitivities involved. 

 

 

 

 

153



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 (

B
) 

Almost Certain / 
Very Likely 

5 

5 10 15 20 25 

Likely 

4 

4 8 12 16 20 

Possible / Feasible 

3 

3 6 9 12 15 

Unlikely / Slight 

2 

2 4 6 8 10 

Rare / Very 

Unlikely 

1 

1 2 3 4 5 

 Negligible / 

Insignificant 

1 

Minor 

2 

Moderate / 

Significant 

3 

Major 

4 

Critical 

5 

IMPACT RISKS (A) 

 

Risk Response Strategy 

Strategies for responding to risk generally fall into one of the following categories:  

• Risk Retention (e.g. choosing to accept small risks).  

• Risk Avoidance (e.g. stopping use of certain products to avoid the risk to occurring).  

• Risk Reduction (e.g. through implementing controls and procedures). 

• Risk Transfer (e.g. contractual transfer of risk; transferring risks to insurers).  

There is good assurance that the Partnership has an appropriate control framework in place to 

mitigate the risk of fraud.  It is impossible to eliminate the risk completely and there are areas 

where continuous monitoring is required. 

154



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

 

Anti-Fraud Strategy 

Approach 

The changing context in which Local Government services are delivered, the increasing risk of fraud 

by motivated offenders, reduced Local Authority resources and associated changes to existing local 

control frameworks together create a pressing need for a new approach to tackling fraud 

perpetrated against Local Government.  Given the substantial financial losses to Local Authorities it 

was imperative a plan was put in place to combat fraud.  In 2011, the first counter fraud strategy 

for Local Authorities was produced in the form of the ‘Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally’ 

strategy (FFCL).  The strategy was based on the following three principles:  

• Acknowledge – Acknowledge and understand fraud risk. 

• Prevent – Prevent and detect more fraud. 

• Pursue – More robust in punishing fraud and the recovery of losses. 

 

 

More recently a further two principles have been introduced: 

• Govern – Setting the tone from the top and ensuring robust arrangements to ensure 

counter fraud and anti-corruption activities are embedded within the organisation. 

• Protect – Protecting against serious and organised crime, protecting individuals from 

becoming victims and protecting against the harm fraud can do to the community.  For Local 

Government, this includes protecting public funds, protecting the Local Authority against 

fraud and cyber-crime and itself from future frauds. 

155



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

These principles are underpinned by the following: 

 

The strategy was a collaborative effort between Local Authorities and key stakeholders from across 

the fraud arena and was designed to assist Local Authorities understand their fraud risk, assist in 

developing and maintaining a culture in which fraud and corruption are understood to be 

unacceptable, and to provide a blueprint for a tougher response (CIPFA – The Local Government 

Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy). 

The framework for the Council’s fraud and corruption control plan includes: 

• Planning and resourcing 

• Prevention 

• Detection 

• Response 

The strategy has been designed to recognise the evolving and changing risks within the public 

sector.  Unexpected events alter the service delivery landscape and also the type and level of 

associated fraud risks to both public sector finances and structures.  For example, the Covid-19 

pandemic led Local Authorities to implement wide scale home and remote working practices 

swiftly.  For many these service delivery changes will be permanent and the associated risks relating 

to cyber security or staff work integrity must be addressed.  Other risks identified during the 

pandemic – such as the increased requirement for urgent decision making and the financial risks 

associated with the Business Grant payments for example – may be time limited, but can still 

influence and inform ongoing systems and procedures meaning there is a continued need to ensure 

internal controls remain effective. 

Planning and Resourcing 

The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit (CFEU) is a corporate resource with annual work plans 

designed to promote awareness and deploy resource according to identified areas of weakness. 

156



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

This also allows the department to provide capacity for proactive and reactive investigations in the 

areas that have been highlighted as high-risk. 

Service specific fraud risk reviews are to be completed and reviewed annually to help identify new 

and emerging risks and high risk areas that require more resource.  This in turn informs the CFEU 

annual work plans, which together comprise the CFEU fraud response plan.  

The levels of fraud, statistics and reliable information available informs risk management 

approaches.  It can provide evidence for necessary internal controls in particular areas known to be 

high risk, support a change in culture and inform best practice.  The CFEU provide quarterly reports 

to Corporate Management and bi-annual reports direct to Audit Committees detailing work 

streams and outcomes.  This ensures Councillors are briefed in relation to fraud risk.  By having a 

dedicated team collecting and recording this data, the partnership is ensuring a well-rounded risk 

management approach which is working to continuously review and improve internal controls. 

The CFEU works closely with Internal Audit to identify internal control weaknesses and to ensure 

review and implementation of any necessary follow-up action. 

Prevention  

The CFEU is responsible for developing, reviewing, and updating the Counter Fraud and Anti-

Corruption, Whistleblowing and Money Laundering Policies and for any procedures linked to 

counter fraud or criminal investigation.  

The CFEU has targeted raising awareness and changing the culture of the organisations through 

online training and in person awareness sessions.  In basic terms, public sector staff are more 

concerned about the provision of frontline services to the general public and less about financial 

losses and fraud.  The team have worked hard to inform staff so that they have a better 

understanding of fraud risks and how best to mitigate them.  Significantly, though with public 

bodies and the large scale diverse nature of them, it is important that any awareness training is 

relatable to the audience or individual staff member to gain maximum benefit. 

The CFEU also introduced a revised and updated Whistle-Blowing Policy to support the fraud 

awareness session and ensure staff were confident in referring allegations of wrong doing to the 

team who specialise in protecting the identity of referral sources. 

Work plans are developed annually in consultation with Internal Audit to include proactive fraud 

drives in high risk areas, deterrent activity and the resource for reactive case investigation work.   

As Local Government continues its use of outsourcing, management should ensure that the 

contractors employed are aware to the principles of the Whistleblowing, Money Laundering and 

Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policies.   

157



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

The partnership is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in its 

supply chains or in any part of its activities.  

Detection 

The CFEU provide trained and dedicated resource for departments in the following high risk areas:- 

Council Tax Discounts: – Assistance with processing National Fraud Initiative data matching, specific 

fraud drives and reviews, sanctions and penalty application. 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme: – Authorised Officers under the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 

(Detection of Fraud and Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013 to investigate cases of fraud and 

apply criminal sanctions, and work jointly with the DWP. 

National Non Domestic Rates: – Assistance with reviews on specific exemptions and reliefs, visiting 

high-risk properties and business types, assistance with tracing and cross-checking data. 

Procurement: – Fraud drives relating to high risk areas, review of processes and paperwork to 

mitigate risk and improve control mechanisms; fraud awareness training for specific officers; advice 

on the impact of Serious and Organised Crime and how to develop controls.  

Housing Allocation, Housing and Tenancy Frauds: – Regular reviews of housing waiting lists, 

dedicated Housing Investigation Officers, work with Registered Social Landlords / Housing 

Providers, Authorised Officers under the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act, the ability to 

prepare cases for both criminal and civil action. 

Internal Reactive Cases: – Undertaking disciplinary investigations involving allegations of staff or 

member corruption, fraud or other serious misconduct.  

Annual Work Plans: - focussing on high risk areas nationally, or locally identified areas of risk 

according to the local demographic. 

Fraud Risk Registers: – Development of risk registers for the Councils / Publica as a whole and for 

individual service areas. These are to be continually reviewed and updated. 

Response 

To provide both detection and an appropriate response, the Council’s dedicated Counter Fraud and 

Enforcement Unit is staffed by qualified Investigation & Intelligence Support Officers with a 

commitment to undertaking criminal prosecutions. 

 

 

 

 

 

158



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council websites have a dedicated counter fraud page with information on how to make 

referrals and a summary of the work the Unit undertakes.  This includes links to the relevant 

Policies which the individual Councils adhere to. 

Internally departments can refer direct to the CFEU, and where necessary can make referrals in 

confidence.  The CFEU works directly for the Chief Finance Officer and can liaise with any staff 

necessary without alerting specific individuals.  In relation to sensitive whistleblowing referrals the 

CFEU can undertake fully confidential operations with limited notification.  

The CFEU works across its partners and the wider criminal enforcement community to share good 

practice, develop knowledge and improve detection and prevention.  Where appropriate the CFEU 

will refer matters to the Police or body with relevant jurisdiction.  

The CFEU work to ensure that fraud awareness is maintained through regular training for staff and 

Members, reporting successful court cases in the media, and communicating positive outcomes 

with staff.  

Review 

Following any proactive drive or fraud investigation, the work is subject to review and management 

oversight.  Local Authorities have both Internal and External Audit functions and their activities, 

especially in key control areas, mean that they are more adaptive to the changing risk environment 

and are able to continuously monitor and improve any deficiencies.  The CFEU and Internal Audit 

meet quarterly to discuss any low assurance areas and/or emerging fraud risk areas which can then 

be added to the work plans.  Where an investigation has taken place, any areas of risk or poor 

control identified will be reported to the appropriate manager with recommendations for remedial 

action.  In addition, where fraud is found during any audit work a referral is issued to the CFEU, and 

conversely where the CFEU has identified concerns, a report is issued to inform the Internal Audit 

Plan.  The CFEU will also provide a report to the appropriate manager with recommendations when 

areas of weakness or risk are recognised, Internal Audit can also consider these recommendations 

and whether a follow-up Audit is required. 

159



FRAUD RISK STRATEGY 
 
 

Policies are reviewed regularly to ensure they are relevant, in line with current good practice and 

legislatively up to date. Any update training this necessitates is then provided. 

Service specific risk registers are reviewed regularly with the service area manager, and CFEU 

annual work plans are overseen by Corporate Management. 

 

ANNEX 1   - Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Checklist 

ANNEX 2 - Government Functional Standard – GovS 013: Counter Fraud Checklist 

160



Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t  

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k  T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  

a n d  l o s s

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 

What should Senior Stakeholders do? 

The Chief Executive 

• Ensure that your authority is measuring itself against the checklist for FFCL.

• Is there a trained counter fraud resource in your organisation or do you have access
to one?

• Is the audit committee receiving regular reports on the work of those leading on fraud
and is the external auditor aware of this?

The S.151 Officer. 

• Is there a portfolio holder who has fraud within their remit?

• Is the head of internal audit or counter fraud assessing resources and capability?

• Do they have sufficient internal unfettered access?

• Do they produce a report on activity, success and future plans and are they
measured on this?

The Monitoring Officer 

• Are members, audit committees and portfolio leads aware of counter fraud activity
and is training available to them?

• Is the fraud team independent of process and does it produce reports to relevant
committees that are scrutinised by members?

The Audit Committee 

• Should receive a report at least once a year on the counter fraud activity which
includes proactive and reactive work.

• Should receive a report from the fraud leads on how resource is being allocated,
whether it covers all areas of fraud risk and where those fraud risks are measured.

• Should be aware that the relevant portfolio holder is up to date and understands the
activity being undertaken to counter fraud.

• Should support proactive counter fraud activity.

• Should challenge activity, be aware of what counter fraud activity can comprise and
link with the various national reviews of public audit and accountability.

The Portfolio Lead 

• Receives a Regular report that includes information, progress and barriers on the
assessment against the FFCL checklist Fraud risk assessment and horizon
scanning.

Appendix 2

161

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t  

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k  T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  

a n d  l o s s

Checklist 

• The local authority has made a proper assessment of its fraud and corruption risks,
has an action plan to deal with them and regularly reports to its senior board and its
members.

• The local authority has undertaken a fraud risk assessment against the risks and has
also undertaken horizon scanning of future potential fraud and corruption risks. This
assessment includes the understanding of the harm that fraud may do in the
community.

• There is an annual report to the audit committee, or equivalent detailed assessment,
to compare against FFCL 2020 and this checklist.

• The relevant portfolio holder has been briefed on the fraud risks and mitigation.

• The audit committee supports counter fraud work and challenges the level of activity
to ensure it is appropriate in terms of fraud risk and resources.

• There is a counter fraud and corruption strategy applying to all aspects of the local
authority’s business which has been communicated throughout the local authority
and acknowledged by those charged with governance.

• The local authority has arrangements in place that are designed to promote and
ensure probity and propriety in the conduct of its business.

• The risks of fraud and corruption are specifically considered in the local authority’s
overall risk management process.

• Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraud-proof new policies, strategies and
initiatives across departments and this is reported upon to committee.

• Successful cases of proven fraud/corruption are routinely publicised to raise
awareness.

• The local authority has put in place arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and
corruption and a mechanism for ensuring that this is effective and is reported to
committee.

• The local authority has put in place arrangements for monitoring compliance with
standards of conduct across the local authority covering:

o codes of conduct including behaviour for counter fraud, anti-bribery and
corruption.

o register of interests.
o register of gifts and hospitality

• The local authority undertakes recruitment vetting of staff prior to employment by risk
assessing posts and undertaking the checks recommended in FFCL 2020 to prevent
potentially dishonest employees from being appointed.

162

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t  

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k  T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  

a n d  l o s s

• Members and staff are aware of the need to make appropriate disclosures of gifts,
hospitality and business. This is checked by auditors and reported to committee.

• There is a programme of work to ensure a strong counter fraud culture across all
departments and delivery agents led by counter fraud experts.

• There is an independent and up-to-date whistleblowing policy which is monitored for
take-up and can show that suspicions have been acted upon without internal
pressure.

• Contractors and third parties sign up to the whistleblowing policy and there is
evidence of this. There should be no discrimination against whistleblowers.

• Fraud resources are assessed proportionately to the risk the local authority faces
and are adequately resourced.

• There is an annual fraud plan which is agreed by committee and reflects resources
mapped to risks and arrangements for reporting outcomes.  This plan covers all
areas of the local authority’s business and includes activities undertaken by
contractors and third parties or voluntary sector activities.

• Statistics are kept and reported by the fraud team which cover all areas of activity
and outcomes.

• Fraud officers have unfettered access to premises and documents for the purposes
of counter fraud investigation.

• There is a programme to publicise fraud and corruption cases internally and
externally which is positive and endorsed by the council’s communications team.

• All allegations of fraud and corruption are risk assessed.

• The fraud and corruption response plan covers all areas of counter fraud work:
prevention, detection, investigation, sanctions and redress.

• The fraud response plan is linked to the audit plan and is communicated to senior
management and members.

• Asset recovery and civil recovery are considered in all cases.

• There is a zero tolerance approach to fraud and corruption that is defined and
monitored and which is always reported to committee.

• There is a programme of proactive counter fraud work which covers risks identified in
assessment.

• The counter fraud team works jointly with other enforcement agencies and
encourages a corporate approach and co-location of enforcement activity.

• The local authority shares data across its own departments and between other
enforcement agencies.

163

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t  

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k  T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  

a n d  l o s s

• Prevention measures and projects are undertaken using data analytics where
possible.

• The counter fraud team has registered with the Knowledge Hub so it has access to
directories and other tools.

• The counter fraud team has access to the FFCL regional network.

• There are professionally trained and accredited staff for counter fraud work. If
auditors undertake counter fraud work they too must be trained in this area.

• The counter fraud team has adequate knowledge in all areas of the local authority or
is trained in these areas.

• The counter fraud team has access (through partnership/ other local authorities/or
funds to buy in) to specialist staff for surveillance, computer forensics, asset recovery
and financial investigations.

• Weaknesses revealed by instances of proven fraud and corruption are scrutinised
carefully and fed back to departments to fraud-proof systems.

164

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


Cou nter  Fr au d an d En for c ement  U ni t  

C o t s w o l d  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  T r i n i t y  R o a d  |  C i r e n c e s t e r  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 7  1 P X    

C h e l t e n h a m  B o r o u g h  C o u n c i l  |  M u n i c i p a l  O f f i c e s  |  P r o m e n a d e  |  C h e l t e n h a m  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 5 0  9 S A  

F o r e s t  o f  D e a n  D i s t r i c t  C o u n c i l  |  H i g h  S t r e e t  |  C o l e f o r d  |  G l o u c e s t e r s h i r e  |  G L 1 6  8 H G   

E - m a i l  –  f r a u d . r e f e r r a l s @ c o t s w o l d . g o v . u k  T e l  –  0 1 2 4 2  2 6 4 2 1 5  

W o r k i n g  i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  C o u n c i l s ,  S o c i a l  H o u s i n g  P r o v i d e r s  a n d  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  d e t e c t  c r i m e  a n d  p r e v e n t  f r a u d  

a n d  l o s s

Government functional Standard GovS 013 

• Do we have an accountable individual at Member/Senior exec level who is
responsible for counter fraud, bribery and corruption?

• Do we have a counter fraud, bribery and corruption strategy that is submitted to the
centre?

• Do we have a fraud, bribery and corruption risk assessment that is submitted to the
centre?

• Do we have a policy and response plan for dealing with potential instances of fraud,
bribery and corruption?

• Do we have an annual action plan that summarises key actions to improve capability,
activity and resilience in that year?

• Do we have outcome based metrics summarising what outcomes we are seeking to
achieve each year? (For organisations with ‘significant investment’ in counter fraud
or ‘significant estimated’ fraud loss, these will include metrics with a financial impact.

• Do we have well established and documented reporting routes for staff, contractors
and members of the public to report suspicions of fraud, bribery and corruption and a
mechanism for recording these referrals and allegations?

• Do we report identified loss from fraud, bribery, corruption and error, and associated
recoveries, to the centre in line with the agreed government definitions?

• Do we have access to trained investigators that meet the agreed public sector skill
standard?

• Do we undertake activity to try and detect fraud in high-risk areas where little or
nothing is known of fraud, bribery and corruption levels, including loss measurement
activity where suitable?

• Do we ensure all staff have access to and undertake fraud awareness, bribery and
corruption training as appropriate to their role?

• Do we have policies and registers for gifts and hospitality and conflicts of interest?

Appendix 3

165

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT 

OFFICIAL 

LOCAL AUTHORITY SERIOUS AND ORGANISED CRIME CHECKLIST 

The Threat 

Local Authority (LA) procurement is at risk of infiltration from serious and organised crime and organised crime groups could be 

benefitting from public sector contracts. In 2013 it was estimated that £2.1 billion of fraud was perpetrated against local government 

(National Fraud Authority Annual Fraud Indicator 2013).  

Serious and organised crime is a threat to our national security and the Government’s Serious and Organised Crime Strategy  

published in 2013 reported that it costs the UK more than £24 billion a year.  Organised crime includes drug trafficking, human 

trafficking, child sexual exploitation, high value fraud and cyber-crime. Organised crime groups may seek to benefit from public 

services in different ways, including to raise money through fraudulent activity and to use businesses / services used by LAs to 

launder criminal proceeds. In this way public money can be lost to LAs and can ultimately fund other illegal activity. 

Responding to the Threat 

Assessing the risk from serious and organised crime and corruption is essential in allowing you to identify areas of concern within 

your business, potential vulnerabilities and to take action to strengthen processes and structures that safeguard public money.  

How to use this Serious and Organised Crime Checklist 

The checklist is intended to be used as an internal, self-assessment tool by the Chief Executive and the senior management team 

to provide a high level overview of the serious and organised crime risks that relate to your business. It can be carried out quickly 

with relevant heads of departments to make a high level, but balanced assessment of your exposure to the risks and in response 

develop an improvement plan for managing that risk, as well as capturing areas of good practice to replicate more widely across 

the LA and with neighbouring LAs. 

Appendix 4

166

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/annual-fraud-indicator--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/serious-organised-crime-strategy


ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Serious and Organised Crime Checklist 

GOVERNANCE AND STRATEGY 

1. Awareness, Strategy, Guidance and Training 
 Question Response / Action taken Assessment of current arrangements 
a. How aware are the senior management team and 

Elected Members of the Government’s 2013 
Serious and Organised Crime Strategy, the LGA’s 
guide Tackling Serious and Organised Crime – A 
Local Response  and DCLG’s, Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Locally Strategy?  
 

The CFEU Head of Service attends Management 
Team meetings at least every 6 months which 
raises awareness generally.  SOC is included on 
the CFEU work plan which is reported to Audit and 
Governance Committee biannually when providing 
an update on all CFEU activity. SOC overview 
also formed part of member training / induction. 
Ongoing work around SOC is included within the 
CFEU work plan.  FFCL strategy and checklist 
included within the CFEU Risk Strategy 
Document.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

b. Do you have a dedicated serious and organised 
crime Single Point of Contact in place and are they 
able to liaise to good effect with local police?  
 

The CFEU Head of Service was attending 
quarterly SOCSP meetings however these have 
been disbanded.  Liaison and relationship with 
Glos Police is currently not effective. Police are 
not engaging at a local level across Glos.  
However, the CFEU officers do work with Glos 
Police where necessary on targeted operations. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

c. Do you have an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
and how effective is it? 
 

Strategy reviewed, updated and approved by 
Executive Committee on 16 October 2019. This 
was supported with refresher training for all staff. 
Over the last 18 months the profile and role of the 
CFEU has decreased within the council due to the 
Pandemic. Post Pandemic the CFEU are working 
to engage with employees and members at TBC 
and will be providing refresher training and/or new 
starter training.  The Counter Fraud and Anti-
Corruption Policy has been reviewed and is due to 
be presented to Audit and Governance / Executive 
Committees in July and August 2022. 
The CFEU has introduced a specific Fraud Risk 
Strategy, to be presented to Audit and 
Governance Committee in July 2022. There will be 
specific fraud risk registers for each service area 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

167

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/serious-organised-crime-strategy
http://www.local.gov.uk/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/7463605/PUBLICATION
http://www.local.gov.uk/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/7463605/PUBLICATION
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally-2016-to-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally-2016-to-2019


ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

completed following on from this, which will 
include SOC risk where appropriate. 

d. Is your Code of Conduct compliant with the seven 
Nolan principles  and how robust are arrangements 
to investigate all allegations of breaches? 
 

The principles are listed in the Counter Fraud and 
Anti-Corruption Policy.  Every two years all staff 
are required to sign a code of conduct. This also 
forms part of induction supported with regular 
reminders. All breaches investigated in line with 
policy.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

e. How effectively do you maintain your public register 
of Members pecuniary interests? 
 

On the first working day of each month members 
are reminded via email of the need to ensure that 
their register of interests is up to date. Additionally 
a further annual reminder is sent individually to 
members attaching a copy of their current 
Register of Interests together with an amendment 
form to be completed should any changes be 
necessary. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

f. How well do you raise awareness of the threat that 
serious and organised crime poses to LAs and its 
services 
 

Internal audit and the CFEU have undertaken 
work around the areas of audit activity suggested 
within the framework e.g. licensing, 
whistleblowing, HR. These have been reported to 
Audit and Governance Committee. There is also a 
full review of the Licensing service in progress 
with one of the work streams focussed on policy 
and governance.  
 
The CFEU provided all staff sessions relating to 
SOC and how the Council is affected and can 
mitigate the risks. Awareness training required for 
new staff however the profile will be raised 
significantly with the introduction of the fraud risk 
register which will be service specific and detail 
SOC risks.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

2. Risk Management 
a. How far have the risks posed by serious and 

organised crime and corruption been reflected 
within relevant risk registers? 
 

The CFEU are implementing a fraud risk register 
to identify service specific risks which will include 
any risks posed by SOC. The CFEU are currently 
implementing a Fraud Risk Strategy and will then 
roll out service specific fraud risk reviews and 
maintain a comprehensive fraud risk register to 
include the risk of SOC which will significantly 
raise awareness. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

168

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life


ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

 
Corporately, the risk is deemed low and therefore 
not recognised within the corporate risk register. A 
wider risk on fraud and corruption was previously 
reported within the risk register – this too was 
subsequently removed given the adequacy of 
arrangements in place.  

b. How effectively do you mitigate and manage the 
serious and organised crime risks identified?  
 

The work of internal audit and the CFEU 
contributes to mitigating and managing the risks 
e.g. recommendations relating to HR Recruitment 
and Vetting procedures, review of policies such as 
Whistleblowing, Counter Fraud and Anti-
Corruption also provide assurance in this area. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

c. How confident are you that you could deal with / 
recover from a scenario involving loss or 
reputational harm as a result of serious and 
organised crime? 
 

May depend upon the nature of the loss e.g was it 
an external perpetrator or internal e.g. if it was an 
employee this may have more of an impact 
regarding morale and the risk may have been 
within our control meaning reputational risk would 
also be a consideration. Either way, a proactive 
communication strategy would aid recovery.    
CFEU and Internal Audit would manage 
investigation / disciplinary / prosecutions with 
Police and a review of any internal control 
breaches.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

d. How aware are your staff of the risks of cybercrime 
and that they know how to respond effectively to 
those risks. 
 

Awareness of cybercrime has increased through 
the pandemic and recent local events.  The ICT 
strategy approved in February 2020 included 
actions around improving the security of the 
network, for example, implementation and testing 
of a new firewall, review of disaster recovery 
procedures, undertake a new program of phishing 
awareness.  This is an area which is high profile 
and is therefore being managed accordingly. Staff 
briefings have also taken place with cyber security 
featured.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

3. Communication and Information / Intelligence Sharing 

a. How effective are your arrangements for both 
internal and external data sharing? 
 

NFI – legislative. 
GDPR programme.  
The CFEU has a number of procedures and data 
sharing agreements in place. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

169



ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

b. Do you and / or your serious and organised crime 
Single Point of Contact have regular meetings with 
the local police to discuss the sharing of information 
/ intelligence? How constructive are these 
meetings? 

Disbanded, alternative yet to be arranged. Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

c. How effective are your arrangements for sharing 
information and intelligence with your local police 
force? 

Not very effective. Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

d. How active a participant are you in the local serious 
and organised crime multi-agency partnership and 
do you attend / contribute regularly? 

No longer exists. Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

4. Whistleblowing  
a. How effective are your whistle-blowing 

arrangements? 

 

An updated policy was approved by Executive 
Committee on 5 February 2020.  Awareness 
sessions for staff have taken place and the Policy 
was publicised internally.  Further reminders 
would be of benefit post-pandemic. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

b. Is guidance on reporting easily accessible for staff 
and is it straight-forward to follow? 
 

Reporting procedure is clear within the policy.  
Flow chart summarising the process to be added 
to the intranet for more succinct instruction. 
Internal posters on who to contact are in the 
process of being produced.  

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

5. Assurance 

a. How confident are you that you are able to provide 
assurance to your Elected Members that you and 
your management team are aware of, and are 
managing, the risks posed by serious and organised 
crime? 
 

Assurance given through the work of Internal Audit 
and CFEU. This completed assessment is also a 
source of assurance. The service specific fraud 
risk register will also include SOC risk and this will 
be highlighted to Elected Members increasing the 
assurance significantly. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

b. Do your Internal and External Audit teams play an 
appropriate and useful role in this assurance 
process? 
 

Both are able to provide assurance but only if their 
work is targeted at the specific risks posed by 
serious crime. Quarterly meetings are held 
between internal audit and CFEU. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

Operational Controls 

1. Licensing (alcohol, taxi and other) 
a. How confident are you that your LA has not granted 

a licence to an individual or organisation linked to 
serious and organised crime in the last 12 months? 
On what basis have you reached this conclusion? 
 

 Taxi /private hire driver licences have Disclosure 
Barring Service (DBS) checks for existing and 
previous convictions. 
All new and renewals are checked against the 
NR3 (National Register of Refusals and 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

170



ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Revocations) for information over and beyond a 
DBS check. 
All licences and policies are in keeping national 
guidance. 
Fraud risk register will include SOC risk and 
mitigation for this 
 

2. Planning / Development management 
a. How confident are you that no planning or 

development management decision made by your 
LA over the last 12 months has been exploited by 
organisations with links to organised criminals? On 
what basis have you reached this conclusion? 

All planning decisions are made in accordance 
with statutory regulation guidance. CFEU through 
their intelligence liaise with other agencies and 
have the potential to flag any issues. Fraud risk 
register will include SOC risk and mitigate for this. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

3. Social Housing 

a. How confident are you that no property used for 
social housing is being used by, or sub-let to, an 
individual or organisation with links to serious and 
organised crime (e.g. drugs, prostitution, sub-letting, 
people trafficking, counterfeiting)? 
 

N/A – TBC do not own stock however 
consideration of these risks will be included in the 
fraud risk register for Housing so staff are 
confident should they become concerned 
regarding these risks. 

Good Acceptable Needs improvement 

b. How confident are you able to be that those 
providing maintenance and repair services for social 
housing have no links to serious and organised 
crime? 
 

N/A – TBC do not own stock however 
consideration of these risks will be included in the 
fraud risk register for Housing so staff are 
confident should they become concerned 
regarding these risks. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

4. Procurement 
a. Are all your procurement, contract management and 

due diligence procedures robust and fully 
implemented? Are they regularly reviewed?  

Procurement strategy was reviewed and approved 
by Executive Committee in January 2022. The 
strategy is supported by established Financial 
Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. 
2016. Due diligence includes company checks 
and request for references on larger 
procurements.  Fraud risk register will include 
SOC risk and mitigate for this. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

b. Are effective policies or protocols in place to ensure 
that supplier checks are carried out in higher risk 
supplier sectors during procurement? 

Due diligence checks are consistent throughout 
the buying sectors. The Council also uses a 
number of frameworks for its purchasing where 
supplier checks are undertaken by the framework 
holder. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

171



ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

c. How confident are you that your LA is not at risk of 
purchasing goods or services from organisations 
with links to serious and organised crime? How 
have you reached this conclusion? 

Limited procurement in areas of high risk and use 
of frameworks for high value procurement limit the 
Council’s potential exposure.  Fraud risk register 
will include SOC risk and mitigate for this. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

d. Are your records of supplier details reliably 
maintained and are they checked and verified 
sufficiently? 

Finance system is central point for supplier 
records and finance team have robust processes 
in place for verifying details. Intelligence briefings 
from NAFN on supplier fraud are shared internally. 
Recent internal audit on supplier controls was 
positive. Post pandemic, the CFEU will undertake 
their own supplier checks.  
 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

e. Are you confident that your staff with purchasing 
responsibilities are aware of the risks of transacting 
with an organisation linked to serious and organised 
crime? 

Updated Proceeds of Crime and Money 
Laundering Policy was approved by Executive 
Committee in September 2021 and a related 
procedure is being finalised and will be introduced 
with training for appropriate staff. The procedure 
will include the SOC risk and training will be given 
to staff in finance and procurement. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

f. Are you confident that staff with purchasing 
responsibilities know how to raise any potential 
concerns about organisations with which your LA 
transacts?  

Fraud awareness training for all staff included 
arrangements for referral. Internal CFEU web 
page details how to refer concerns internally which 
will lead to onward referrals to the appropriate 
bodies. 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

Insider Threat 
a. How far do you think your LA could be at risk from 

employees who have links to serious and organised 
crime? 

Employment checks carried out in accordance 
with legislation and where appropriate DBS 
checks undertaken for specific roles. Reference 
guide on HR Vetting and Recruitment Risk Report 
provided to HR recently detailing checks to 
mitigate for these risks.  Fraud risk register will 
include SOC risk and mitigate further. Overall, risk 
deemed low.  

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

b. How confident are you that you have effective and 
fully publicised processes in place for the following 
mechanisms aimed at minimising the ‘Insider 
threat’? 

- Officer / Member vetting (on recruitment 
and at intervals thereafter) 
 

- Officer / Member external interests register 

 
Members are elected – there are RPA 
disqualification criteria but they are not vetted.  
Members external interests are recorded as 
required by the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Updated annually and recorded. 
 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

172



ANNEX A TO THE ORGANISED CRIME PROCUREMENT PILOTS – FINAL REPORT  
 

OFFICIAL 
 

 
- Gifts and hospitality register 

A g&h register is held centrally for all staff 
declarations. Awareness on declarations has been 
communicated to staff.  
 
 

c. Is there clear and effective accountability for the 
correct operation of these processes? 

Yes.  
 
 

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

d. How easily can a member of your staff, or another 
LA stakeholder (e.g. member of the public, supplier, 
etc.) report suspected or alleged malpractice to 
you? Are reporting processes clearly set out and 
publically available? 

Can be reported in accordance with the 
Whistleblowing Policy, Counter Fraud and Anti-
Corruption Policy, CFEU internal web page, 
complaints framework or even through the ‘report 
it’ system.  

Good Acceptable  Needs improvement 

 

173



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Report of: Head of Service, Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit  

Corporate Lead: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

It is prudent to review the policy given it was last considered by Audit and Governance 
Committee in September 2019 and approved by Executive Committee in October 2019.The 
proposed policy at Appendix 1 is subject to some minor amendments which are referenced 
within the document itself. Part of the review is to ensure the content reflects current legislation 
and aligns with other Council’s policies and procedures. The Council has a zero-tolerance 
attitude to such matters and this policy is an essential part of the Council’s anti-fraud and 
corruption framework.  

To RECOMMEND TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 

1. That the Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy, as attached at Appendix 1, be 
APPROVED. 

2. That authority be delegated to the Head of Finance and Asset Management, in 
consultation with the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit, One Legal and the 
Lead Member for Corporate Governance, to approve future minor amendments to 
the Policy. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

To introduce an updated Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy to reflect key legislation 
and Council responsibilities.  In administering its responsibilities, this Council has a duty to 
prevent fraud and corruption, whether it is attempted by someone outside or within the Council 
such as another organisation, a resident, an employee or Councillor – this policy is an 
essential part of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption framework. The Council is committed 
to an effective counter fraud and corruption culture, by promoting high ethical standards and 
encouraging the prevention and detection of fraudulent activities.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.  The support of the 
Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy will help to support the prevention and detection of 
misuse of public funds and fraud therefore reducing potential financial loss to the Council. 

174

Agenda Item 13



Legal Implications: 

In general terms, the existence and application of an effective fraud risk management regime 
assists the Council in effective financial governance which is less susceptible to legal 
challenge.     

The legislation utilised by the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit and other service areas 
within the Council is identified within the Policy and the Council must comply with all 
legislative requirements. 

The Council must also ensure that authorisations obtained under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 or the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 are appropriately 
logged, maintained and updated on the central register. 

Risk Management Implications: 

The Council is required to proactively tackle fraudulent activity in relation to the abuse of 
public funds. Failure to undertake such activity would accordingly not be compliant and 
expose the authority to greater risk of fraud and/or corruption.  If the Council does not have 
effective counter fraud and corruption controls, it risks both assets and reputation. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit report to Audit and Governance Committee on a 
six monthly basis.   

Environmental Implications:  

Not applicable. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit is tasked with reviewing the Council’s Counter 
Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy.  It is recommended good practice that the policy is 
updated and reviewed at least every few years in line with any legislative changes. 

2.0 COUNTER FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY 

2.1 The Council’s existing Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy was developed to 
reflect (i) latest legislation and (ii) the changes from the creation of the Single Fraud 
Investigation Services (operated by the Department for Work and Pensions) which 
subsumed the Council’s responsibilities for investigating Housing Benefit Fraud. 

2.2 The Policy was last reviewed following the changes brought about by data protection 
legislation / regulations and highlights the key legislation and roles and responsibilities 
of Members, Officers and other parties. 

2.3 The Audit and Governance Committee last considered the policy in September 2019, 

and it was subsequently approved by Executive Committee in October 2019.   
Attached at Appendix 1 is the updated policy. There are no material amendments to 
the previous policy and proposed changes are highlighted.  

2.4 A section has been inserted relating to Money Laundering and Proceeds of Crime and 
relating to Modern Slavery, detailing the Council’s responsibilities. The policy has also 
been refreshed to reflect the growth of the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit work 
streams and responsibilities relating to risk. 

175



2.5 Awareness will be raised with all staff following the approval of the policy. This is one 
of a number of fraud related work streams which sits within the Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit’s 2022/23 work programme.  

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 The policy has been reviewed and agreed by the Council’s Corporate Governance 
Group.  

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy. 

Whistle Blowing Policy   

Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Penalty and Prosecution 
Policy.  

Corporate Enforcement Policy. 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Surveillance and CHIS) Policy 

Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (Acquisition of Communication Data) Policy 

Use of the Internet and Social Media in Investigations and Enforcement Policy 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 The promotion of effective counter fraud controls and a zero-tolerance approach to 
internal misconduct promotes a positive work environment. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 This is a positive example of joint working across the county.  The existence of counter 
fraud activity acts as a deterrent to the abuse of public funds which impacts positively 
on the economy and local demographic. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 The service is a shared one across the county, as such, overheads and management 
costs are also shared equally meaning there is increased value for money.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

176



 

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: Audit and Governance Committee Report – September 2019 

Executive Committee Report – October 2019  
 
Contact Officer:  Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Head of Service 
 Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

177

mailto:Emma.Cathcart@cotswold.gov.uk


Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy       

Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy Version 2  Page 1 of 15 
May 2022 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

Version: 2 

Responsible Officer: Emma Cathcart, Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit 

Approved by: Executive / Cabinet 

Next Review Date May 2025 

Retention Period: N/A 

Revision History 

Revision date Version Description 

August 2019 1.1 Update following changes to data protection legislation 

May 2022 2 Review and Update 

Consultees 

Internal External 

CFEU Lead 

One Legal / Legal Services 

Distribution 

Name 
All Staff 

Appendix 1

178



Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                  Page 2 of 15 
May 2022 
 

CONTENTS 
  

1. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY .................................................... 3 

2. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 FRAUD .................................................................................................................. 4 

2.4 CORRUPTION ....................................................................................................... 4 

2.5 THEFT ................................................................................................................... 4 

2.6 MONEY LAUNDERING ......................................................................................... 4 

2.10 BRIBERY ............................................................................................................... 5 

2.13    MODERN SLAVERY……………………………………………………………………..6 

3. SCOPE ......................................................................................................................... 6 

4. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES .............................................................................................. 6 

5. PRINCIPLES ................................................................................................................. 6 

6. RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................................................................... 8 

7. APPROACH TO COUNTERING FRAUD .................................................................. 111 

7.2 DETERRENCE .................................................................................................... 11 

7.5 PREVENTION ..................................................................................................... 11 

7.8 DETECTION ........................................................................................................ 12 

7.12 INVESTIGATION ................................................................................................. 12 

7.18 SANCTIONS ........................................................................................................ 13 

7.19 REDRESS ........................................................................................................... 13 

7.20 CONTROL FAILURE RESOLUTION ................................................................... 13 

8. REPORTING, ADVICE AND SUPPORT ..................................................................... 13 

9. FURTHER INFORMATION ......................................................................................... 15 

10. STRATEGY AND POLICY REVIEW ........................................................................... 15 

  

179



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 3 of 15 
May 2022 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY 

1.1. In administering its responsibilities; this Council has a duty to prevent fraud and 
corruption, whether it is attempted by someone outside or within the Council such as 
another organisation, a resident, an employee or Member. The Council is committed 
to an effective Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption culture, by promoting high ethical 
standards and encouraging the prevention, detection and investigation of fraudulent 
activities. 

1.2. The Section 151 Officer has a statutory responsibility under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to ensure the proper arrangements for the Council’s financial 
affairs to include the development of financial codes of practice and accounting 
instructions.  Through delegation of duties, the Officer ensures appropriate controls 
are in place.   

1.3. The Monitoring Officer has a statutory responsibility to advise the Council on the 
legality of its decisions and to ensure that the Council’s actions do not give rise to 
illegality or maladministration. It is therefore essential for employees to follow the 
Council’s policies and procedures to demonstrate that the Council is acting in an 
open and transparent manner. 

1.4. The Council has a statutory duty to undertake an adequate and effective internal 
audit of its accounting records and its system of internal controls. The Council’s 
Financial Rules state that ‘whenever a matter arises which involves, or is thought to 
involve irregularities concerning cash, stores or other property of the Council, or any 
suspected irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the Council, the Director, 
Head of Service or equivalent Senior Officer has a duty to immediately notify the 
Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer, who shall take steps as the consider 
necessary by way of investigation and report’. Furthermore the Financial Rules also 
state that each Director, Head of Service or equivalent Senior Officer is responsible 
for ‘notifying the Section 151 Officer and the Chief Audit Executive immediately of 
any suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, improper use or misappropriation of the 
Council’s property or resources. 

1.5. The Council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud committed or attempted by any 
person against the organisation or any of its partner agencies.  The Council will 
thoroughly investigate all suggestions of fraud, corruption or theft, from within the 
Council and from external sources which it recognises can:  

 Undermine the standards of public service that the Council is attempting to 
achieve by diverting resources from legitimate activities.  

 Reduce the level of resources and services available for the residents of the 
borough, district or county as a whole. 

 Result in consequences which damage public confidence in the Council and / or 
adversely affect staff morale.  

1.6. Any proven fraud will be dealt with in a consistent and proportionate manner. 
Appropriate sanctions and redress for losses will be pursued, to include criminal 
proceedings against anyone perpetrating, or seeking to perpetrate, fraud, corruption or 
theft against the Council.    

1.7. The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity, 
honesty, integrity and accountability. The Council expects all Officers, Members and 
partner organisations to observe these standards and values, which are defined 
within the Code of Conduct for Employees and the Members Code of Conduct, to 
help achieve the Council’s over-arching priority for the continued delivery of 
outcomes and value for money for local tax-payers. 

180



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 4 of 15 
May 2022 
 

2. DEFINITIONS 

2.1. FRAUD  

The term “fraud” is usually used to describe depriving someone of something by deceit, 
which might either be misuse of funds or other resources, or more complicated crimes 
like false accounting or the supply of false information.  In legal terms, all of these 
activities are the same crime, theft, examples of which include deception, bribery, 
forgery, extortion, corruption, theft, conspiracy, embezzlement, misappropriation, false 
representation, concealment of material facts and collusion. 

2.2 Fraud was introduced as a general offence and is defined within The Fraud Act 2006.  
The Act details that a person is guilty of fraud if he commits any of the following: 

 Fraud by false representation; that is if a person:  

(a) dishonestly makes a false representation, and 
(b) intends, by making the representation: 

(i) to make a gain for himself or another, or  
(ii) to cause loss to another or to expose another to a risk of loss.  

 Fraud by failing to disclose information; that is if a person:  

(a) dishonestly fails to disclose to another person information which he is under a 
legal duty to disclose, and  

(b) intends, by failing to disclose the information:  
(i) to make a gain for himself or another, or  
(ii) to cause loss to another or to expose another to a risk of loss.  

 Fraud by abuse of position; that is if a person: 
(a) occupies a position in which he is expected to safeguard, or not to act against, 

the financial interests of another person, 
(b) dishonestly abuses that position, and 
(c) intends, by means of the abuse of that position: 

(i) to make a gain for himself or another, or  
(ii) to cause loss to another or to expose another to a risk of loss.  

2.3 In addition the Act introduced new offences in relation to obtaining services 
dishonestly, possessing, making, and supplying articles for the use in frauds and 
fraudulent trading applicable to non-corporate traders. 

2.4. CORRUPTION  

Is the deliberate use of one’s position for direct or indirect personal gain. “Corruption” 
covers the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward, which 
may influence the action of any person to act inappropriately and against the interests 
of the organisation. 

2.5. THEFT  

Is the physical misappropriation of cash or other tangible assets.  A person is guilty of 
“theft” if he or she dishonestly appropriates property belonging to another with the 
intention of permanently depriving the other of it. 

2.6. MONEY LAUNDERING 

Money laundering is the process by which criminals attempt to 'recycle' the proceeds of 
their criminal activities in order to conceal its origins and ownership whilst retaining use 
of the funds. 

2.7 The burden of identifying and reporting acts of money laundering rests within the 
organisation.  Any service that receives money from an external person or body is 

181



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 5 of 15 
May 2022 
 

potentially vulnerable to a money laundering operation.  The need for vigilance is vital 
and any suspicion concerning the appropriateness of a transaction should be reported 
and advice sought from the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer or Chief Audit 
Executive.  A failure to report a suspicion could compromise an individual and they 
could be caught by the money laundering provisions.  All employees are therefore 
instructed to be aware of the increasing possibility of receiving requests that are not 
genuine and are in fact for the purpose of money laundering.   

2.8 The Council recognises its responsibilities under Money Laundering and Proceeds of 
Crime Legislation.  These responsibilities are adhered to in line with the Council’s 
Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Policy and the related Procedures.  
The Council is required to have a designated Officer for money laundering reporting 
purposes. 

2.9 Both Financial and Legal Officers working for the Council also have their own 
professional guidance in relation to money laundering which places a duty on them to 
report any suspicions. These suspicions may override their legal professional privilege 
and confidentiality. 

2.10   BRIBERY  

The Bribery Act 2010 introduced four main offences, simplified below.  Please note, a 
‘financial’ or ‘other advantage’ may include money, assets, gifts or services within the 
following:  

 Bribing another person: a person is guilty of an offence if he offers, promises or 
gives a financial or other advantage to another person.  Further if he intends the 
advantage to induce a person to perform improperly a function or activity or if he 
knows or believes the acceptance of the advantage offered constitutes improper 
activity.   

 Offences relating to being bribed: a person is guilty of an offence if he requests, 
agrees to receive, or accepts a financial or other advantage intending that as a 
consequence an improper activity or function will be performed improperly or if he 
knows or believes the acceptance of the advantage offered constitutes improper 
activity.  Where a person agrees to receive or accepts an advantage as a reward 
for improper activity or function that has been performed.  It does not matter 
whether the recipient of the bribe receives it directly or through a third party, or 
whether it is for the recipient's ultimate advantage or not.  

 Bribery of a foreign public official: a person who bribes a foreign public official is 
guilty of an offence if the person’s intention is to influence the foreign public 
official in their capacity, duty or role as a foreign public official.  A person must 
also intend to obtain or retain business or an advantage in the conduct of 
business and must offer, promise or give any financial or other advantage.  

 Failure of commercial organisations to prevent bribery: organisations, which 
include the Council, must have adequate procedures in place to prevent bribery 
in relation to the obtaining or retaining of business associated with the business 
itself.  

2.11 The Council is committed to ensuring the prevention of corruption and bribery and sets 
out its policy in relation to the acceptance of gifts and hospitality within the Code of 
Conduct for Employees and the Members Code of Conduct.  Receipt of any gifts or 
hospitality should be recorded by Officers and Members in the appropriate register.  
Officers and Members are also required to declare any outside interests that they have 
which may result in a conflict of interest in respect of transactions and dealings with the 
Council.  Again, any such interests will be recorded in an appropriate register.   

182



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 6 of 15 
May 2022 
 

2.12 Prior to entering into any business arrangements, all Council Officers and/or business 
units should ensure that they have taken all reasonable steps to identify any potential 
areas of risk relating to bribery or corruption.  If an Officer has any concerns they must 
raise them with The Chief Audit Executive. 

2.13. MODERN SLAVERY  

Modern Slavery takes a number of forms but all relate to the illegal exploitation of 
people for personal or commercial gain.  The Council recognises its responsibilities as 
outlined within the legislation and is committed to promoting transparency in supply 
chains to prevent modern slavery and to take appropriate action to identify and 
address those risks. 

3.  SCOPE 

3.1 In relation to any of the above mentioned offences, this policy applies to:  

 All employees, including shared service employees, casual workers and agency 
staff. 

 Members. 

 Committee Members of Council funded voluntary organisations. 

 Partner organisations, where the Council has a financial or statutory 
responsibility. 

 Council Suppliers, Contractors and Consultants. 

 The general public. 

4. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 

4.1 The aims and objectives of the Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy are to: 

 Ensure that the Council has measures in place to guard against fraud and loss 
and that the Council maximises revenue recovery.  

 Safeguard the Council’s valuable resources by ensuring they are not lost through 
fraud but are used for providing services to the community as a whole.  

 Create a ‘counter fraud’ culture which highlights the Council’s zero tolerance to 
fraud, corruption, bribery and theft, which defines roles and responsibilities and 
actively engages everyone (the public, Members, Officers, managers and policy 
makers).  

4.2 The Council aims to: 

 Proactively deter, prevent and detect fraud, corruption, bribery and theft. 

 Investigate any suspicions of, or detected instances of fraud, corruption, bribery 
and theft. 

 Enable the Council to apply appropriate sanctions, to include prosecution, and 
recovery of losses.  

 Provide recommendations to inform policy, system and control improvements, 
thereby reducing the Council’s exposure to fraudulent activity.  

5. PRINCIPLES 

5.1 The Council will not tolerate abuse of its services or resources and has high 
expectations of propriety, integrity and accountability from all parties identified within 
this policy.  Maintaining this policy supports this vision.   

5.2 The Council has a documented Constitution, Scheme of Delegated Powers and 
Financial Regulations to give Members and Officers clear instructions or guidance for 

183



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 7 of 15 
May 2022 
 

carrying out the Council’s functions and responsibilities.  Responsibility for ensuring 
compliance with these documents rests with management with adherence being 
periodically monitored by Internal Audit Services; where breaches are identified these 
will be investigated in accordance with this policy and the Council’s Financial Rules. 

5.3 The Council expects that Members and Officers will lead by example in ensuring 
adherence to rules, procedures and recommended practices.  A culture will be 
maintained that is conducive to ensuring probity.  Members and Officers should adopt 
the standards in public life as set out by the Nolan Committee, known as the Nolan 
Principles: 

 Selflessness – to take decisions solely in terms of the public interest and not in 
order to gain for themselves. 

 Integrity – not to place themselves under any obligation to outside individuals or 
organisations that may influence the undertaking of their official duties. 

 Objectivity – when carrying out any aspect of their public duties, to make 
decisions and choices on merit. 

 Accountability – to be accountable, to the public, for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the appropriate scrutiny. 

 Openness – to be as open as possible about the decisions and actions they take 
and the reasons for those decisions and actions.  The dissemination of 
information should only be restricted when the wider public interest clearly 
demands it. 

 Honesty – to declare any private interests which relate to their public duties and 
take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a manner which protects the public 
interest. 

 Leadership – to promote and support these principles by leadership and 
example. 

5.4 The Council will ensure that the resources dedicated to counter fraud activity are 
appropriate and any officers involved in delivering these services are trained to deliver 
a professional counter fraud service to the correct standards ensuring consistency, 
fairness and objectivity. 

5.5 All fraudulent activity is unacceptable, and may result in consideration of legal action 
being taken against the individual(s) concerned.  In addition, the Council has in place 
disciplinary procedures which must be followed whenever Officers are suspected of 
committing a fraudulent or corrupt act.  These procedures are monitored and managed 
by the Human Resources Team and may be utilised where the outcome of an 
investigation indicates fraudulent or corrupt acts have occurred. 

5.6 The Council may pursue the repayment of any financial gain from individuals involved 
in fraud, malpractice and wrongdoing.  The Council may also pursue compensation for 
any costs it has incurred when investigating fraudulent or corrupt acts. 

5.7 This policy encourages those detailed within this document to report any genuine 
suspicions of fraudulent activity.  However, malicious allegations or those motivated by 
personal gain will not be tolerated and, if proven, disciplinary or legal action may be 
taken.  Reporting arrangements in relation to incidents of fraud or irregularity are 
detailed below. 

5.8 The Council will work both internally across different departments and with external 
organisations such as the Police, HM Revenue and Customs and other Councils to 
strengthen and continuously improve its arrangements to prevent fraud and corruption. 
The Council is committed to assisting the Police in fighting Serious and Organised 

184



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 8 of 15 
May 2022 
 

crime and will implement measures and share data to ensure the Council is not 
engaging with organised crime gangs when procuring goods and services. 

5.9 The Council collects and stores data within multiple departments to enable data 
cleansing, data sharing and data matching.  This process can be utilised for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and the Council will pursue this where appropriate.  
The Council applies fair processing practices and these are reflected within data 
collection documents, stationery and other data collection processes such as those 
required for the National Fraud Initiative. 

6. RESPONSIBILITIES 

OFFICER / DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES  

Head of Paid Service / Chief 
Executive 

Ultimately accountable for the effectiveness of the 
Council’s arrangements for countering fraud and 
corruption.  

Chief Finance Officer 

(Section 151 Officer)  

To ensure the Council has adopted an appropriate 
Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy.  That 
there is an effective internal control environment in 
place and resources to investigate allegations of 
fraud and corruption.  

Monitoring Officer  To advise Members and Officers on ethical issues, 
conduct and powers to ensure that the Council 
operates within the law and statutory Codes of 
Practice.  

Audit Committee/ Audit and 
General Purposes Committee 
/ Audit and Governance 
Committee 

To receive formal assurance from an appropriate 
representative at meetings and an annual opinion 
report in relation to the Council’s control measures 
and counter fraud activity. 

The Audit Committee also receives assurance from 
external audit on the Council’s Annual Accounts and 
Annual Governance Statement.  

Councillors / Members  To comply with the Members Code of Conduct and 
related Council policies and procedures. 

To be aware of the possibility of fraud, corruption, 
bribery and theft and to report any genuine concerns 
to the Chief Audit Executive.  

External Audit / Internal Audit Has a duty to ensure that the Council has adequate 
arrangements in place for the prevention and 
detection of fraud, corruption, bribery and theft.  

Has powers to investigate fraud and the Council may 
invoke this service. 

185



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 9 of 15 
May 2022 
 

OFFICER / DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES  

Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit  

Responsible for assisting the development and 
implementation of the Counter Fraud and Anti-
Corruption Policy.  The Counter Fraud Unit have a 
duty to monitor the investigation of any reported 
issues of irregularity. 

To ensure that all suspected or reported irregularities 
are dealt with promptly and in accordance with this 
policy. 

That action is identified to improve controls and 
reduce means, opportunity and the risk of 
recurrence.  

Reporting to the appropriate Senior Officer(s) 
(Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, Chief Audit 
Executive) with regard to the progress and results of 
investigations. 

Reporting annually to the Audit Committee on proven 
frauds. 

Counter Fraud Provision / 
Services  

To proactively deter, prevent and detect fraud, 
corruption, bribery and theft within or against the 
Council. 

To work on behalf of charities, Social Housing 
Providers and other organisations to proactively 
deter, prevent and detect fraud, bribery, corruption 
and theft for the benefit of local residents and the 
public purse. 

To investigate all suspicions of fraud, corruption, 
bribery or theft, within or against the Council, in 
accordance with the Criminal Procedures and 
Investigations Act 1996 (CPIA).  

To consider reputational damage and the public 
interest test when investigating any instances of 
fraud, corruption, bribery or theft. 

To conduct interviews under caution when 
appropriate in accordance with the Police and 
Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE). 

To undertake any surveillance operation or obtaining 
any communications data, adhering to the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 
and the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 – this is 
applicable when undertaking criminal investigations 
only. 

To comply with Data Protection Legislation (and the 
General Data Protection Regulations) when 
obtaining or processing personal data. 

186



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 10 of 15 
May 2022 
 

OFFICER / DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES  

To report to the appropriate Senior Officer(s) for 
decisions in relation to further action.   

To enable the Council to apply appropriate 
sanctions, to include criminal proceedings, and to 
assist in the recovery of losses in accordance with 
the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy. To 
include prosecutions on behalf of Social Housing 
Providers, Charities, and other organisations where it 
is in the public interest and for the benefit of the local 
residents. 

To prepare Witness Statements and prosecution 
paperwork for the Council’s Legal Department.   

To attend and present evidence in the Magistrates 
Court, the Crown Court and Employment Tribunals. 

To provide recommendations to inform policy, 
system and control improvements.   

To provide fraud awareness training and updates for 
Members and Officers. 

To publicise successes where appropriate. 

Human Resources  To report any suspicions of fraud, corruption, bribery 
or theft to the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer 
or Counter Fraud representative if reported directly 
to HR or if identified during any disciplinary or 
internal procedures. 

To ensure recruitment procedures provide for the 
obtainment and verification of significant information 
supplied by applicants in accordance with the HR 
Vetting and Recruitment Fraud Risk Report.   

Strategic Directors, Heads of 
Service, Service Managers or 
equivalent Senior Officers 

The primary responsibility for maintaining sound 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and 
corruption rests with management.  

To promote awareness and ensure that all 
suspected or reported irregularities are immediately 
referred to the appropriate Senior Officer.  

To ensure that there are mechanisms in place within 
their service areas to assess the risk of fraud, 
corruption, bribery and theft.  To reduce these risks 
by implementing internal controls, monitoring of 
these controls by spot checks and to rectify 
weaknesses if they occur.  

187



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 11 of 15 
May 2022 
 

OFFICER / DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES  

Staff / Employees / Officers To comply with Council policies and procedures 
when conducting their public duties. 

To be aware of the possibility of fraud, corruption, 
bribery and theft and to report any genuine concerns. 
Officers may report suspicions as detailed below. 

Referrals can also be made in confidence in 
accordance with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.  

Public, Partners, Suppliers, 
Contractors and Consultants  

To be aware of the possibility of fraud and corruption 
within or against the Council and to report any 
genuine concerns or suspicions as detailed below. 

 

7. APPROACH TO COUNTERING FRAUD 

7.1 The Council has a responsibility to reduce fraud and protect its resources by enabling 
counter fraud services to complete work in each of the following key areas:  

7.2     DETERRENCE 

The best deterrent is the existence of clear procedures and responsibilities making 
fraud and corruption difficult to perpetrate and easy to detect.  As detailed already 
within this policy, the Council has a number of measures in place to minimise risk: 

 Clear codes of conduct for Officers and Members. 

 Register for declarations of interest / gifts and hospitality for Members and 
Officers. 

 Clear roles and responsibilities for the prevention and detection of fraud, 
corruption, bribery and theft including an Audit Committee, an appointed 
Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and trained Counter Fraud Officers. 

 Effective ICT security standards and usage policies. 

 The application of appropriate sanctions and fines as detailed below. 

7.3 The existence of an effective Counter Fraud Team is a prime deterrent for fraud and 
corruption.  Counter Fraud Officers and the Internal Audit Team analyse and identify 
potential areas at risk of fraudulent abuse with the assistance of the Council’s 
Corporate Management, efficient and effective audits of principal risk areas can then 
be conducted. 

7.4 The Council will promote and develop a strong counter fraud culture, raise awareness 
and provide information on all aspects of its counter fraud work.  This may include 
advice on the intranet, fraud e-learning tools, publicising the results of proactive work, 
investigating fraud referrals and seeking the recovery of any losses.   

7.5     PREVENTION 

The Council will strengthen measures to prevent fraud ensuring consideration of the 
Fraud Risk Strategy, associated documents and fraud risk register.  Counter Fraud 
Officers will work with management and policy makers to ensure new and existing 
systems, procedures and policy initiatives consider any possible fraud risks.  Any 

188



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 12 of 15 
May 2022 
 

internal audit conducted will also consider fraud risks as part of each review and 
ensure that internal controls are in place and maintained to combat this. 

7.6 Important preventative measures include effective recruitment to establish the propriety 
and integrity of all potential employees as set out within the HR Vetting and 
Recruitment Fraud Risk Report.  Recruitment is carried out in accordance with the 
Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy and provides for the obtainment and 
verification of significant information supplied by applicants. 

7.7 The Council will undertake any internal remedial measures identified by any 
investigation to prevent future recurrence at the first opportunity.     

7.8     DETECTION 

A record of fraud referrals received will be maintained by Counter Fraud Officers (and 
other departments as applicable).  This record helps to establish those areas within the 
Council most vulnerable to the risk of fraud.  In addition, a consistent treatment of 
information and independent investigation is ensured. A Council wide fraud profile is 
created which then informs any detailed proactive work. 

7.9 The Council is legislatively required to participate in a national data matching exercise; 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI).  Particular sets of data are provided and matched 
against other records held by the Council or external organisations.  Where a ‘match’ is 
found it may indicate an irregularity which requires further investigation to establish 
whether fraud has been committed or an error made.  An officer within the authority is 
designated as the ‘Key Contact’ for this process.  The initiative also assists in 
highlighting areas which require more proactive investigation.  The Council may 
engage in other data matching/sharing for the purposes of fraud prevention and 
detection, and for the recovery of monies owed.    

7.10 Safeguarding and deterrent internal controls and monitoring procedures are 
established for financial and other systems within the Council, for example those set 
out within the Council’s Financial Rules / Contract Rules.    

7.11 The Council relies on employees, Members and the public to be alert and to report any 
suspicions of fraud and corruption which may have been committed or that are 
allegedly in progress.  Managers should be vigilant and refer any matters which may 
require additional monitoring to a senior representative within the Human Resources 
Department for guidance and further action. 

7.12  INVESTIGATION 

The Council will investigate all reported incidents of fraud or irregularity using its 
counter fraud resources.  The Council will ensure the correct gathering and 
presentation of evidence in accordance with the Criminal Procedures and 
Investigations Act 1996. 

7.13 Investigations will make due reference to Employment Law as necessary and be 
conducted within a reasonable time in accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998.  
Investigations will also adhere to and comply with other applicable legislation such as 
the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984, Data Protection Legislation and the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 as appropriate.  

7.14 Officers may utilise investigative tools and gain intelligence utilising a number of legal 
gateways and data sharing agreements.  This may include membership to third party 
organisations such as the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN). 

7.15 When investigating allegations of fraud and corruption, the Council may be required to 
conduct surveillance.  The Council must comply with the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 which ensures that investigatory powers are used in accordance with 
human rights.  To ensure compliance the Council has a written procedure detailing 

189



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 13 of 15 
May 2022 
 

who may authorise covert surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence 
sources.  Standard documentation has been adopted which must be used by an 
Officer when seeking such authorisation. 

7.16 Officers may also need to acquire communications data when conducting an 
investigation.  This is permissible however; the Council must adhere to the 
Investigatory Powers Act 2016 when applying for this information and the correct 
nominated single point of contact must be used.  As above, specific details are set out 
within the written procedures. 

7.17 The Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Officers adhere to the appropriate legislation 
when investigating irregularities and allegations of fraud.  This includes the need to: 

 Deal promptly with the matter. 

 Record all evidence received. 

 Ensure that evidence is sound and adequately supported. 

 Conduct interviews under caution when necessary. 

 Ensure security of all evidence collected. 

 Contact other agencies if necessary e.g. Police, Trading Standards, HM 
Revenue and Customs. 

 Notify the Council’s insurers. 

 Implement Council disciplinary procedures where appropriate.  

 Attend court and present evidence. 

7.18   SANCTIONS 

The Council will apply considered sanctions to individuals or organisations where an 
investigation reveals fraudulent activity.  This may include: 

 Appropriate disciplinary action in line with the Disciplinary Policy. 

 Fines and penalties. 

 Criminal proceedings. 

 Civil proceedings to recover loss. 

7.19   REDRESS 

A crucial element of the Council’s response to tackling fraud is seeking financial 
redress.  The recovery of defrauded monies is an important part of the Council’s 
strategy and will be pursued in line with internal debt recovery processes and legal 
redress i.e. Confiscation Orders and the application of the Proceeds of Crime Act 
2002.  

7.20   CONTROL FAILURE RESOLUTION 

In addition to the above, Internal Audit also prepares a risk based annual Audit Plan 
that details the key objectives and areas of work for the year.  Within these work areas 
indicators for fraud are considered. Internal Audit will also respond to requests from 
management and Counter Fraud Officers where there may be concerns over the 
effectiveness of internal controls.  The work plan is agreed and monitored by the Audit 
Committee and Section 151 Officer.  

8. REPORTING, ADVICE AND SUPPORT  

8.1 The Council’s expectation is that Members and managers will lead by example and 
that employees at all levels will comply with the Constitution, Council Policies, 
Financial Regulations, Procurement Regulations, Financial and Contract Procedure 
Rules, codes of conduct and directorate procedures. 

8.2 The Council recognises that the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection 
of fraud rests with management.  It is essential that employees of the Council report 

190



 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 14 of 15 
May 2022 
 

any irregularities, or suspected irregularities to their Line Manager and if this is not 
appropriate then to a Counter Fraud representative.   

8.3 The Council must create the right environment so that anyone can raise concerns in 
respect of irregularities with the knowledge that they will be treated seriously and 
confidentially.  The Council will provide all reasonable protection for those who raise 
genuine concerns in good faith, as confirmed in the Council’s Whistle-Blowing Policy. 

8.4 If the informant is a member of the public or external contractor, they can contact a 
Counter Fraud Officer at the Council to report the suspicion.  This can be done 
anonymously.  A hotline number for reporting suspicions may also be established and 
if so, can be found on the Council’s website.  The Council’s complaint procedure may 
also be utilised but may not be the most appropriate channel. 

8.5 The above process does not relate to reporting Housing Benefit Fraud allegations 
(which are now dealt with by the Department for Work and Pensions) or to Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme offences.  The informant should contact the Officer nominated to 
deal with this; details can be found on the Council’s website within the Revenues and 
Benefit Section information.    

8.6 The Officer who receives the allegation (whether from a Member or a Council 
employee) must refer the matter to a Counter Fraud representative within the Council, 
to determine how the potential irregularity will be investigated and to whom the 
allegation should be discussed within the Council.  This is to ensure correct 
investigative procedures are adhered to and that any potential fraud enquiry is not 
compromised.   

8.7 As appropriate, reports will be issued to the Monitoring Officer, Head of Paid Service, 
Section 151 Officer, Senior Officers, and Cabinet Members etc. where the irregularity is 
material and/or could affect the reputation of the Council.  Decisions will then be made 
with regard to the most appropriate course of action.  Communications and publicity 
will also be managed if the matter is likely to be communicated externally.  

8.8 If the investigation relates to an employee then Human Resources will be engaged and 
the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure will also be considered however this will be 
managed carefully to ensure any criminal investigation is not compromised. 

8.9 The Council will also work in co-operation with the following bodies (and others as 
appropriate) that will assist in scrutinising our systems and defences against fraud, 
bribery and corruption: 

 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

 External Audit. 

 The National Fraud Initiative. 

 Central Government Departments. 

 HM Revenue and Customs. 

 The Police. 

 Trading Standards. 

 The Department for Work and Pensions. 

 Immigration Services. 

 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

 The Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation (IRRV). 

  Social Housing Providers and Charitable Bodies 
 

8.10 As detailed within this document and the Council’s Whistle Blowing Policy, any 
concerns or suspicions reported will be treated with discretion and in confidence.  
Referrals can be made in confidence to the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit at 
fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk who work on behalf of Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

191

mailto:fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk


 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy        

Counter Fraud and Anti- Corruption Policy Version 2                                Page 15 of 15 
May 2022 
 

Borough Councils and Cotswold, Forest of Dean and West Oxfordshire District 
Councils.  Concerns can also be raised via Internal Audit.  

 
9. FURTHER INFORMATION  

9.1 Further information on Council policy can be found in the following documents (or 
equivalent documentation / codes): 

 The Constitution. 

 Code of Conduct for Employees and the Members Code of Conduct which 
include information in relation to gifts and hospitality and declaring and 
registering interests. 

 Whistleblowing Policy. 

 Corporate Enforcement (Prosecution) Policy. 

 Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Policy. 

 Recruitment and Selection Processes. 

 RIPA / IPA Policies, Procedures and Guidance. 

 Financial Rules. 

 Contract Rules or equivalent. 

 Fair Processing Statement. 

 Disciplinary Procedure. 

10. STRATEGY AND POLICY REVIEW 

10.1. The appropriate department will review and amend this strategy as necessary to 
ensure that it continues to remain compliant and meets legislative requirements and 
the vision of the Council in consultation with the S151 Officer, the Legal Department 
and Members. 

10.2. Review frequency as required by legislative changes / every three years. 

192



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

Report of: Chief Audit Executive (Head of Corporate Services)  

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member – Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: None  

 
 

Executive Summary:  

To fulfil the requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) the Chief Audit 
Executive (CAE) is required to issue an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and control. This 
opinion is in turn one of the sources of assurance that the council relies on for its Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).  

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) recognise that local 
government bodies face significant challenges with regards to the response to and the 
recovery from COVID-19; however, the professional and regulatory expectations on local 
government bodies to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform with PSIAS have 
not changed. In this difficult situation, the CAE needs to consider whether they can still issue 
the annual opinion or whether there will need to be a limitation of scope.  

With regards to the work of the Council’s Internal Audit team, very limited audit work was 
undertaken during 2021/22 as the team remained deployed within the business cell to support 
the administration and payment of business grants.  

At the time of writing this report, it is positive that the Internal Audit team is operational with a 
number of audit assignments underway. This will ensure that the CAE can give a meaningful 
audit opinion for 2022/23.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the limitation of scope regarding independent assurance from internal 
audit on the adequacy of the Council’s governance, risk management and control 
environment for 2021/22 and to note that the internal audit team is now operational and 
a meaningful audit opinion will be reached for 2022/23.   

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require that the Chief Audit Executive 
(CAE) reports functionally to the board. For the purposes of the Council, the CAE is defined as 
the Head of Corporate Services and the board is the Audit and Governance Committee. These 
roles are defined in the Internal Audit Charter. The charter has been approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee. One example of functional reporting is the Internal Audit Annual 
Report. PSIAS also requires that the CAE delivers an annual audit opinion and report that can 
be used to inform the annual governance statement.  

193

Agenda Item 14



 
 

Resource Implications: 

None directly related to this report other than within the recovery plan for the Internal Audit 
team is additional resource to support the team moving forward.  

Legal Implications: 

The Committee will need to be satisfied that the proposed steps will be sufficient to address 
the CAE’s limitation of scope regarding independent assurance from internal audit on the 
adequacy of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control 
environment.  

Risk Management Implications: 

If the CAE does not report functionally to the board then this does not comply with PSIAS.  

If the Council does not have in place a framework of sound governance, risk management and 
control then there is a risk it will not achieve its objectives.  

The limitation of scope opinion may draw adverse comment from the Council’s external 
auditors when assessing the council’s value for money arrangements. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

This is an annual report from the CAE which summarises the work undertaken during the year.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed 
to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) requires that the Chief Audit 
Executive (CAE) delivers an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by 
the organisation to inform its Annual Governance Statement (AGS). For Tewkesbury 
Borough Council, the CAE role is fulfilled by the Head of Corporate Services.  

1.3 In normal circumstances, internal audit work is informed by a six monthly Internal Audit 
Plan. Each plan is approved by Audit and Governance Committee. For each individual 
audit assignment within the plan, an opinion is given on various elements of the control 
environment and these opinions are reported to Committee. From the work undertaken in 
the year an overall opinion should be concluded on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the council’s framework of governance, risk management and control. It should be noted 
that internal audit is only part of the Council’s assurance framework and therefore the 
annual audit opinion is only reflective and restricted to the areas audited during the year. 

 

 

 

194



1.4 As reported extensively to this Committee and to Members generally, over the last two 
years the impact of COVID-19 on all public services has been significant. For internal 
auditors it has raised the question of whether they have been able to undertake sufficient 
internal audit work to gain assurance of the adequacy of the internal control environment 
and report accordingly.  To fulfil the requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is required to issue an annual 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. This opinion is in turn one of the sources of 
assurance that the Council relies on for its Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) recognise that local 
government bodies face significant challenges with regards to the response to and the 
recovery from COVID-19; however, the professional and regulatory expectations on local 
government bodies to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform with PSIAS 
have not changed. In this difficult situation, the CAE needs to consider whether they can 
still issue the annual opinion or whether there will need to be a limitation of scope. A 
limitation of scope arises where the CAE is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to 
issue a complete annual opinion in accordance with the professional standards. This is 
an issue not only for the CAE but also for the leadership team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee which normally rely on that opinion. A limitation of scope should 
not be confused with an adverse internal audit opinion. 

1.6 With regards to the work of the Council’s Internal Audit team, very limited audit work was 
undertaken during 2021/22. As reported to Committee, similar to 2020/21, the team 
remained deployed within the business cell to support the administration and payment of 
business grants. The Internal Audit team has played a crucial role in the payment of 
grants and the development of payment assurance plans. They have a detailed and 
unrivalled knowledge of what is required to deliver the tasks set out by the government 
and worked with colleagues in Finance and Revenues to hone the approach. Given the 
complexity of the grants framework it was not practical to parachute additional resource 
into the business cell to enable the internal audit team to return to business as usual.  

1.7 At the time of writing this report, it is positive that the Internal Audit team is operational 
with a number of audit assignments underway. The recovery of the team was reported to 
Audit and Governance Committee in March 2022 and is covered in greater detail within 
the report. This will ensure that the CAE can give a meaningful audit opinion for 2022/23.  

2.0 IMPACT OF COVID-19 - BUSINESS GRANT ADMINISTRATION 

2.1 With the cessation of business grants, after two years, the business cell has now been 
stood down, albeit there remains some limited post grant assurance work to be 
undertaken. The work of the team has been phenomenal, delivering over 19 different 
grant schemes, resulting in over 6,000 payments, totalling in excess of £31 million. As a 
service being delivered by the Council on behalf of the Government, this activity, in 
financial terms alone, dwarfs all other activities of the Council (it is 2.5 times bigger than 
housing benefit payments) and was therefore subject to significant risk. The urgency for 
deployment of these schemes to support business very much aligned with the skillset of 
the internal audit team. It has also been necessary to redeploy other key members of 
staff for significant periods of time including both the Financial Services Manager and the 
Revenues and Benefits Manager in order to successfully manage and deliver these 
schemes.  

 

 

 

195



2.2 Given the activity undertaken with grants of up to £25,000, there was a significant risk of 
the schemes being abused and fraudulent claims being made, as has been proven 
nationally. A robust internal process was required to ensure the public purse was 
protected with internal audit best placed to design, deliver and monitor that process. The 
Government also had its own requirements to provide assurance on the process 
undertaken by each authority and the validity of every grant that has been paid. 
Significant skill, resource and diligence was required to meet these requirements, with 
internal audit staff being at the forefront of designing and delivery the checks and 
reporting required. The Government has been clear that grants paid in error or 
fraudulently claimed will be the responsibility of the Council, therefore, having in place 
robust system, overseen by the appropriate staff, should reduce the risk of the Council 
potentially needing to cover significant costs.  

3.0 LIMITATION OF SCOPE OPINION  

3.1 A limitation of scope arises where the CAE is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to 
issue a complete annual opinion. This should not be confused with an adverse opinion   
which arises when sufficient work has been completed to enable the CAE to conclude 
that arrangements are not adequate and effective. A limitation of scope opinion for 
2020/21 was presented at Audit and Governance Committee on 21 July 2021. Given the 
Internal Audit team’s continued deployment to the business cell for the bulk of 2021/22, 
for the second year running a limitation of scope opinion is given; however, at this point 
in time, which was not the case last year, the Internal Audit team is now operational.  

3.2 The redeployment of the Internal Audit team to support the Council’s response to 
COVID-19 has been updated to Audit and Governance Committee throughout the period 
of the pandemic and the approach supported by the Committee. The status of the 
Internal Audit team was flagged in the external auditor’s 2020/21 annual report which 
was presented at Audit and Governance Committee on 24 March 2022. This was raised 
as a significant governance risk. Whilst Officers recognise the risk, a robust management 
response was given due to the mitigating circumstances. Succinctly, the management 
response covered the following: 

• Historically the Council’s internal control environment, particularly financial 
management controls are well managed. 

• The value of the business grants and the speed at which they were expected to 
be paid were of a significant risk to the Council.  

• The attributes of the Internal Audit team were an ideal fit to support the business 
cell. 

• Excluding internal audit, the ongoing systems and processes to evaluate and 
manage risk, controls and governance remained in place.  

• For additional assurance, each Head of Service produced a management 
assurance statement on the adequacy of the control environment within their 
service area. 

• The development of a recovery plan for the Internal Audit team. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

196



3.3 The primary consequence of the limitation is that the leadership team and those charged 
with governance do not receive independent assurance that the framework of 
governance, risk management and control is adequate and effective. Without this 
assurance the organisation should consider the risk of significant control weaknesses, 
inefficiencies or poor performance remaining unidentified. In addition, opportunities for 
improvement may be lost. While internal audit can only offer reasonable assurance, not a 
100% guarantee, the presence of that reasonable assurance is rightly valued. 

3.4 Other consequences to consider are as follows:  

- The Council will need to highlight the limitation in its Annual Governance 
Statement when referring to the CAE opinion.  

- The internal audit service as a whole for 2021/22 does not conform with PSIAS. 
The continued recovery of the internal audit function during 2022/23 will need to 
be identified as a Significant Governance Issue within the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

- As for 2020/21, the Council’s external auditor may take the limitation on the audit 
opinion or non-conformance with PSIAS into account when reviewing overall 
governance arrangements.  

- Outside bodies or persons who may have looked to the internal audit opinion as 
evidence for the organisation’s sound governance may draw an adverse 
inference from the reported opinion. 

- The delivery of the management assurance report has created additional work to 
compensate for the lack of an audit opinion.  

4.0 INTERNAL AUDIT RECOVERY 

4.1 The recovery of the internal audit function is reflected within the Council’s corporate 
COVID-19 recovery plan. This plan was approved in August 2020 and has been 
monitored on a quarterly basis by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Confirmation 
that internal audit is now operational was confirmed at both Audit and Governance 
Committee on 24 March 2022 and at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7 June 2022.  

4.2 Assurance that the team is operational can be evidenced through the following: 

• Completed assignment reports on the creditor’s system (supplier payments) and 
certification of the Local Authority Compliance & Enforcement Grant were 
reported to Audit and Governance committee on 24 March 2022. 

• The suite of all outstanding internal audit recommendations has been reviewed 
and revised implementation dates agreed with relevant managers. A report on 
this was presented to Audit and Governance Committee on 15 December 2021. 

• An Internal Audit Work Plan for the period April 2022-September 2022 was 
approved by Audit and Governance Committee on 24 March 2022. Work has 
commenced on that plan with assignments completed in relation to sundry 
debtors and complaints. Additional certification work is also nearing completion in 
relation to further COVID-19 grants. An assignment brief has been approved for 
the commencement of a car park’s audit.  

• Quarterly meetings have commenced with the Chair of the Committee and Lead 
Member for Corporate Governance.  

• The approval of a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) for 
2022/23 - in layman’s terms, a service plan. 

• Commitment from Corporate Leadership Team to further invest in the team for 
the second half of the year.  

197



4.3 The implementation of these recovery actions gives assurance that for 2022/23, the CAE 
will be able to issue an audit opinion that will fulfil the requirements of PSIAS. This 
assurance is aligned to the management response given to the concerns raised by the 
external auditors. 

5.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

5.1 None. 

6.0 CONSULTATION  

6.1 Corporate Leadership Team. 

7.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

7.1 Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Work Plan.  

8.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

8.1 None.  

9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

9.1 None.  

10.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

10.1 None. 

11.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

11.1 The work of internal audit supports VFM and informs the external audit annual opinion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

198



12.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

12.1 Audit and Governance Committee 15 December 2021 – minute para 39.2 (status of 
internal audit recommendations) 

Audit and Governance Committee 15 September 2021 – minute para 23.2 (Head of 
Service assurance statements) 

Audit and Governance Committee 21 July 2021 – minute para 16.2-16.3 (CAE annual 
audit opinion confirming limitation of scope opinion) 

Audit and Governance Committee 16 December 2020 – minute para 38.2 (continued 
redeployment of the internal audit team)  

Audit and Governance Committee 4 November 2020 – minute para 29.5 (presentation of 
2019/20 annual opinion and horizon statement that it was unlikely a meaningful opinion 
could be given for 2020/21) 

Audit and Governance Committee 23 September 2020 – minute para 21.1-21.4 (report 
on business grants post payment assurance framework)  

Audit and Governance Committee 29 July 2020 – minute para 9.2 (confirmed 
redeployment of the internal audit team)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: CIPFA Guidance to Internal Auditors and the Leadership Team and 
Audit Committee of Local Government Bodies Head of Internal Audit 
Annual Opinions: Addressing the Risk of a Limitation of Scope 19 
November 2020 

 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services (Chief Audit Executive) 
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  None   
 

199



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2022 

Subject: Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021/22 

Report of: Chief Audit Executive (Head of Corporate Services) 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: One 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The role of the Audit and Governance Committee is to obtain independent assurance of 
the adequacy of the Council’s risk management, governance and internal control 
arrangements. Reporting the work of the Committee through an annual report provides an 
opportunity for both the Council and the public to view the work of the Committee and 
demonstrate it is delivering its Terms of Reference.  

Recommendation: 

To APPROVE the Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021/22.  

Reasons for Recommendation: 

It is within the Terms of Reference of the Committee to produce an annual report. An annual 
report also helps increase the profile of the Committee. It is important to ensure that the work 
of the Committee and the assurance it provides as to how well certain aspects of the Council is 
performing is reported beyond the Committee itself.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None. 

Legal Implications: 

None.   

Risk Management Implications: 

The production of an annual report helps to demonstrate the effectiveness of the Committee 
and minimise the risk it is not fulfilling its approved Terms of Reference.  

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Annual review of the work of the Committee provides transparency and accountability and 
increases the profile of the Committee. The annual report will also be presented at Council by 
the Chair of the Committee.   

200

Agenda Item 15



 

 

Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Audit and Governance Committee must deliver the work required of it as set out in 
the Council’s Constitution. The Committee undertakes an assurance role to ensure the 
Council’s risk, governance and internal control environment is operating effectively.  The 
Committee has a formal work programme for the year and this programme ensures there 
is adequate coverage of the Council’s activities to fulfil the assurance role.  

2.0 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  

2.1 The production of an annual report is good practice and helps demonstrate the broad 
coverage of activities that the Committee has been informed of, reviewed and challenged 
during the year. Similar to the previous year, the 2021/22 report includes reference to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact on the Committee and the services which report into 
it. Included within the report is reference to:  

• The deployment of the Internal Audit team to support the Business Cell. 

• Positive update on the recovery of the Internal Audit team for 2022/23. 

• Financial reporting including the presentation and approval of the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts. 

• Annual Governance Statement.  

• Overview of the work of the Gloucestershire Counter Fraud Unit.  

• Overview of the work of Grant Thornton (external auditors).  

• Safeguarding arrangements. 

• Health and Safety.  

2.2 Following approval of the report, it will be presented by the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee to Council on 26 July 2022. The proposed 2021/22 annual report 
can be found in Appendix 1. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 None. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 None.  

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.   

 

201



 

 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 None  

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services (Chief Audit Executive) 
 01684 272002      graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021/22 
 

202

mailto:graeme.simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Audit and governance committee

annual report

2021/22

Appendix 1

203



Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

Message from the Chair 1

The role of Audit and Governance Committee 2

Work undertaken by the Committee 2

Internal audit - public sector internal audit standards 3

Service recovery 3

Financial reporting 3

External audit assurance 4

Gloucestershire County Fraud Unit update 5

Risk management 6

Other governance updates 6

Looking forward 7

Committee members 8

contents

204



1

Welcome to the
annual report of the
Audit and
Governance
Committee. Previous
years’ reports have
featured on the
impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic, both
on the committee
needing to meet
virtually and the
overall impact on the
council’s services. It

is positive to see us emerging from the pandemic
and returning to a sense of normality. In particular, it
is encouraging to see the internal audit team
operational again following the winding down of the
business cell as the administration of business
grants has come to an end. The lack of internal audit
activity has been picked up by our external auditors
when concluding their annual audit opinion and a
formal recommendation made. The work of the
internal audit team is the main source of assurance
that the committee relies upon, and I look forward to
receiving their audit reports during the course of the
year.

It would be remiss of me not to mention again the
work of the business cell who administered nearly
£32 million of business grants over the course of the
pandemic. A fantastic effort and much needed
financial support to our business community.
Despite the closedown of the business cell, a
number of officers from this cell are now in the
middle of administering the government’s ‘council
tax/energy rebate scheme’ – another monumental
effort to pay an estimated 32,000 of our residents,
the rebate of £150.  

The committee also receives assurance from our
external auditors, Grant Thornton. They provide an
opinion on the accuracy of the council’s statement
of accounts and on our general value for money
arrangements. In terms of the statement of
accounts, yet again, they provided a glowing
reference for the Finance team. Working in the main
remotely, with resources also deployed to the
business cell, together with the added complexity of
continually monitoring the budget and completing a
plethora of government returns as a result of the
pandemic they still produced an accurate set of
accounts, promptly. A remarkable achievement. 

Looking ahead, it will be refreshing to return to
normality. Face to face meetings recommenced
during the year, as mentioned the internal audit is
back active and the committee’s work programme is
extensive. There is a great opportunity for the
committee to support the council through its future
challenges as it emerges from the Covid-19 

Finally, I thank all the committee and officers for the
support they have provided me during the year.

Best wishes,
Councillor Vernon Smith

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

Councillor Vernon Smith

Message from the Chair of Audit and Governance Committee

205



2

The role of Audit and Governance Committee

The role of the committee is an important one. The key role is that of assurance. The committee needs to be
assured that the council’s risk, governance and internal control environment is operating effectively. Given the
council’s complexity of services, processes, procedures and policies, there will always be occasions where
improvements are required. Where these are identified, then the committee seeks assurance the necessary
improvements are monitored and implemented. The assurance provided to the committee comes from several
sources including internal audit, external audit, the finance team and the Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit.  

Work undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
It is a statutory requirement that the council publishes an AGS and the statement is approved by the committee.
In layman’s terms, the document reflects the state of play in relation to the council’s overall governance
arrangements and a review of these arrangements is undertaken by the internal Corporate Governance Group.
The AGS recognises improvements and initiatives made to the governance framework during the year. This is
not an exhaustive list and for 2021/22 these include: 

- Implementation of a new ‘Have Your Say’ (4 Cs) approach for our residents – compliments, comments, 
concerns and complaints. 

- Review and approval of governance related policies and strategies. For example, procurement strategy, 
social media policy, supporting attendance policy, proceeds of crime and anti-money laundering policy, 
environmental health and enforcement policy etc.  

- Implementation of service-related reviews such as Development Management and Licensing (with 
governance related work streams). 

- Undertaking of a Community Governance review.
- A management assurance report on how the internal control environment, risk and governance has been 

managed during the pandemic – presented at Audit and Governance Committee.
- A lessons-learnt report from the Covid-19 response – presented at Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
- On-going monitoring of the Covid-19 Corporate Recovery Plan and strategic Council Plan.
- Undertaking of a residents’ survey. 

The AGS also identifies any significant governance issues arising. The committee then receives progress reports
on the resultant action plan. For 2020/21, the committee received updates on actions such as the recovery of
internal audit, administration of Discretionary Housing Payments, and implementation of the CIPFA Financial
Management Code. New actions arising from 2021/22 will form the basis on an updated action plan. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

206



Internal Audit - Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards

The work of internal audit is pivotal to the committee
receiving independent assurance on how well the
council’s internal control environment is operating.
All work of internal audit is governed by the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). It is the
responsibility of the Chief Audit Executive (the head
of corporate services is the council’s designated 
CAE) to ensure compliance with these standards. 

As with 2020/21, for 2021/22, the impact of Covid-
19 led to factors outside of the control of the CAE to
ensure this compliance. The deployment of the
internal audit team to the business cell meant there
was no internal audit work undertaken during the
year. The team could therefore not demonstrate
compliance with the standards. The overall
deployment of the team, away from its normal work
activities was also identified within Grant Thornton’s
2020/21 annual report as a significant weakness
within the council’s governance arrangements. A
robust management response was issued explaining
the decision to deploy internal audit within the
business cell and this was supported by the
committee. 

Internal Audit team - recovery of
service

The recovery of the internal audit function is
reflected within the council’s corporate recovery plan
and at the time of writing the team is now
operational, which is positive news. Recovery actions
associated with the wider recovery of the team
include:

3

• The production of a new six-monthly audit plan 
that was approved by Audit and Governance 
Committee in March 2022.

• The production and approval of a new Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP).

• All outstanding recommendations made by 
internal audit have been reviewed and new 
implementation dates agreed with responsible 
officers. 

• For added resilience, to look at the feasibility of 
creating an apprentice position within the team. 

• For future audit planning, to undertake a 
complete risk assessment of the council’s 
internal control environment. 

• Additional resource to be deployed within the 
team for the second half of the year. 

Financial reporting

In addition to governance-related issues, finance is
an integral part of the committee’s remit. In relation
to financial matters, the committee has received and
considered the following reports: - 

• 21 July 2021 - A report from the head of finance 
and asset management on the fee for the audit 
of the 2021/22 accounts. Members were asked 
to consider the fee scale of £37,589. 

• 15 September 2021 - the committee approved 
the 2020/21 letter of representation. The letter 
formally and publicly confirms the accuracy and 
completeness of the presented statement of 
accounts. The letter sets out assurance from the
Council to Grant Thornton that relevant 
accounting standards have been complied with. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

207



4

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

It also gives assurance that the Council has 
disclosed information where to withhold it would
have undermined the accuracy and reliability of 
the statement of accounts.

• 15 September 2021 - the committee considered 
and approved the council’s statement of 
accounts. An excellent training session was held 
for committee members prior to the meeting to 
explain in layman’s terms the technical details of
the financial information. At the meeting itself it 
was explained in preparing the accounts, the 
pandemic brought about specific challenges, 
particularly around the continuation of grant 
schemes, business rate reliefs and other COVID-
19 related returns which added to the technical 
knowledge and resources needed within the 
accountancy team. The Finance team worked 
tirelessly throughout and even agreed to 
complete the accounts earlier than the 31 July 
2021 deadline to facilitate an early audit window 
for Grant Thornton. 

• 15 December 2021 - the committee considered 
and recommended to Council that the Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) invitation to 
‘opt-in’ to the sector-led national scheme for the 
appointment of external auditors for the five 
financial years commencing 1 April 2023 be 
accepted. This was subsequently approved by 
Council. 

• 24 March 2022 - committee approved the 
accounting policies to be used to prepare the 
2021/22 financial statements. The policies used 
comply with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. COVID-
19 has had a significant impact on the wider 
economy and the Council over the last year, 
impacting on the accounts production process 
but has not changed the accounting policies 
directly and the Council has continued to apply 
all policies in the same way.

• 24 March 2022 - the committee was presented 
with an assessment on how as a council we are 
complying with the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code. The code applies a principle-
based approach. It does not prescribe the 
financial management processes that local 
authorities should adopt. Instead, it requires that
a local authority demonstrates that its processes
satisfy the principles of good financial 
management for an authority of its size, 
responsibilities, and circumstances. The 
council’s external auditors will, from 2021/22, 
have regard to the code and will be looking to 
ensure that the council is meeting the 
requirements of the code. If compliance with the
code is not demonstrated, the council’s financial 
sustainability could be brought into question 
which in turn could result in a negative impact 
on its reputation with stakeholders. Committee 
was pleased that good progress is being made 
towards compliance and an annual update will 
be provided moving forward. 

External audit assurance

In addition to the work of internal audit, reliance on
how well the council is performing is given by the
council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton.
Management team and members of the committee
have an excellent and constructive relationship with
the Grant Thornton team. A summary of their
findings during the year were as follows; 

• On 21 July 2021, Grant Thornton presented their 
report ‘Informing the audit risk assessment for 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 2020/21’. The 
purpose of this report is to contribute towards 
the effective two-way communication between 
the council's external auditors and the council’s 
Audit Committee, as 'those charged with

208



5

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

governance'. The report covers some important
areas of the auditor risk assessment where they are
required to make inquiries of the Audit Committee
under auditing standards. The report includes a
series of questions on areas such as accounting
estimates, fraud arrangements, general management
overview etc and require a management response.
The committee considered these responses and
were satisfied they are consistent with its 
understanding of those arrangements. 

• At the same meeting as the above, Grant 
Thornton updated the committee on their audit 
planning process. Their report essentially 
provides an overview of the planned scope and 
timing of the statutory audit.  Following 
questions around the amount of the annual audit
fee, the length of the external assessment and 
pension liability the plan was noted. 

• The audit findings for year ended 31 March 2021
were presented to Audit and Governance 
Committee on 15 September 2021.  This was 
essentially an interim report, as all work had yet 
to be concluded. The report did confirm though 
the accuracy of the year-end financial 
statements and paid compliment to the excellent
engagement with the finance team who 
responded to queries and provided data 
promptly. The whole exercise was completed 
remotely, an excellent achievement from all 
parties. A final report was presented to 
committee in March 2022, which confirmed an 
‘unqualified opinion’ i.e. positive outcome on the 
financial statements. Several recommendations 
were made in relation to the council’s ‘value for 
money assessment’. As highlighted previously, 
the lack of internal audit work was deemed a 
significant governance issue and there was a 
recommendation around the arrangements for 
securing financial sustainability into the medium 
term. Work has already started on their 
implementation, which is positive news. 

Committee also receives progress reports on its work
programme and this includes sector updates. With
regards to the latter, this provides useful research
and reading material on such issues as climate
change, cyber security, Covid-19 recovery etc. With
regards to cyber security, an intended presentation to
committee was extended to all members. This was
well received and expressed the importance for all to
understand the risks and challenges this presents to
the council. 

Counter Fraud Unit and
Enforcement (CFEU) update

The committee receives a six-month update on the
work of the unit, from the head of service. The CFEU
works directly on behalf of all the Gloucestershire
authorities, West Oxfordshire District Council and
other public sector bodies such as Cheltenham
Borough Homes. The updates included: 

• Supporting work streams relating to the COVID-
19 pandemic by providing advice relating to fraud
risk and abuse, most significantly in relation to 
business grants.

• A completed review of the Housing List.
• Processing and investigation of cases identified 

through the National Fraud Initiative. 
• General fraud referral work.
• The unit is also pivotal to the effectiveness of the

policy framework and during the year has 
presented updated policies on proceeds of crime 
and anti-money laundering policy and use of the 
internet and social media in investigations and 
enforcement policy. The CFEU also support the 
council in complying with the government’s 
serious and organised crime checklist.

. 

209



6

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

Risk management  

At each committee, the corporate risk register is
considered. The register is a useful tool to evidence
that corporate risks are evaluated and managed.
There is no statutory requirement to have a register,
but it is seen as good practice and supports the
committee to fulfil its risk management
responsibilities. During the year, members of the
committee have sought assurance that the risks are
being managed effectively. There have been
numerous questions, particularly on; cyber security,
climate change, garden town, waste transfer station
and financial sustainability, plus members putting
forward other risks for inclusion such as the
improvements to the Development Management
review and lack of a five-year land supply. Overall, the
reporting of the register has generated good
discussion and debate and is a welcomed document. 

Other governance updates

Health and Safety Annual Report 

Members were provided with a summary of the
activities carried out to secure health and safety
compliance in the financial years 2019/20 and
2020/21m and were asked to consider the adequacy
of the council’s health and safety arrangements. The
head of community services explained that COVID-19
meant it had not been possible to present this report
to the committee during the previous year, therefore,
the current report covered a two year period.  A
significant number of risk assessments in relation to
COVID-19 had taken place over the period and these
were detailed within the report. These included
assessments on emergency rest centres, polling
stations for elections and significantly, on the return
to the offices and the safe re-opening of council
buildings.    

Members were pleased to hear about the support
given to staff during the pandemic, in particular on
mental health.  Before the pandemic, a lot of work had
been done around mental health and the council had
been given a Workforce Wellbeing Charter
accreditation where it had been evaluated as
‘excellent’ in five of eight workstreams, one of which
was mental health. During the pandemic, this good
foundation has been built upon. For example, a range
of mental health training has been provided over the
last 18 months, a wellbeing zone created on the
intranet, and regular staff ‘pulse’ surveys carried out
etc. Overall, the committee felt the approach was very
positive and wished to thank the staff on behalf of the
committee for their hard work and effort during the
pandemic. The committee felt strongly that it was so
important to look after staff as much as possible,
even more so in the unprecedented circumstances
brought about by the pandemic which continued to
prevail.

Annual Safeguarding Update 

The annual report was presented to members to give
assurance on the level of the council’s compliance
with its safeguarding duty and to note the Section 11
self-assessment submission to the external
assurance panel. The Section 11 process is a
statutory requirement and focuses upon four areas:
leadership and accountability; safe recruitment,
induction, training and development, safeguarding
policies and procedures, and listening to children and
young people. The head of community services
confirmed he had attended the panel on 16 November
2021 where he had been questioned in relation to the
content of the council’s submission and was pleased
to report that no issues had been identified.  

Attention was drawn to the part of the report which
set out that 14 safeguarding cases had been raised
internally during 2020/21: 

210



- Two needed to be referred to social care
- Two had been dealt with in partnership with the 

neighbourhood policing team
- Two multi-agency meetings had been called by the

council in light of the concerns raised
- Four cases had become ongoing child protection 

cases which had been attended by a member of 
staff to advise from the council’s perspective.  

The cases raised came from a good cross-section of
council departments which demonstrated that officers
had a good understanding of their safeguarding
responsibilities.

Data Protection Officer’s Annual Report 

The report provided details of actions undertaken
during the year to ensure broad compliance with the
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).  This
included a lot of work around staff communications,
particularly in terms of preventing and reporting data
breaches. It was noted there had been 20 recorded
breaches during the year, of which 19 were categorised
as low risk and one as medium risk.  In addition, an e-
learning platform has been rolled out to staff and
training provided on the importance of retention and
redaction of information. Given the council’s
transformation ambitions and associated projects,
significant support has been given on the formulation
of Data Protection Impact Assessments. For example,
COVID-19 grant support schemes, digital recruitment,
HR self-service, Land Registry migration, new digital
platform, and paperless billing. 

The report also provided an overview of the excellent
work of the Business Transformation Team. The team
has developed a management system for logging and
responding to data requests from residents. These are
increasing in number with 64 received over the last
year.  Moving forward into 2022, work will be focussed
on activities such as the implementation of the new
website project; implementation of an information

classification project; undertaking a review of key
policies such as the overarching Data Protection Policy
and providing support to ICT related policies e.g. cyber
security; and, for the internal audit team to assess
whether lessons learnt with regard to breaches were
implemented and test that data was being retained in
accordance with the corporate retention policy. 

The borough solicitor explained that ensuring
compliance with data protection requirements was a
continuous process and having a single point of
contact through the Internal Audit and GDPR officer
had been invaluable in securing and monitoring the
council’s development and compliance.  The council’s
record of breaches was low and none had been
categorised as high risk but it was important to ensure
that the arrangements were kept under review and that
the action plan was delivered in order to ensure
continued compliance.  It was an officer view the
action plan was robust and the council was doing the
very best it could. The report was noted. 

Looking forward 

It certainly looks like a case of onward and upwards as
we continue our recovery from the pandemic. As I did
last year, I would personally like to thank all those
officers involved within the administration of business
grants as this has been a significant and prolonged
piece of work. In addition, it will be fantastic to have
the internal audit team back up and running and
support the committee in gaining assurance that our
policies, procedures, systems remain as effective post-
Covid-19 as they did prior to the pandemic

7Audit and Governance Committee annual report

Tewkesbury Borough Council

211



8

Tewkesbury Borough Council

Audit and Governance Committee annual report

2021/22 Audit and Governance Committee members

Cllr Louise Gerrard

(Member until

September 2021)

Cllr Pauline Godwin Cllr Heather McLain

VICE-CHAIR

Cllr Helen Munro

Cllr Cate Cody

Cllr Paul McLain Cllr Mike Sztymiak 

LEAD MEMBER

Cllr Paul Smith Cllr Vernon Smith

CHAIR

Cllr David Gray

212



Produced by Tewkesbury Borough Council. 2022

Alistair Cunningham

Chief Executive

Tewkesbury Borough Council

213


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	A&G Minutes - 17 May 2022 FINAL

	5 Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme
	6 External Auditor's Audit Plan
	7 Informing the Audit and Governance Risk Assessment 2021/22
	8 Annual Health and Safety Report
	Appendix 1 - Health and Safety Annual Report April '21 to March '22  FINAL

	9 Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Risk Register

	10 Internal Audit Plan Monitoring Report
	Audit Opinions - Appendix 1

	11 Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Report
	Appendix 1 - Work Plans

	12 Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit Fraud Risk Strategy
	Appendix 1 - CFEU Partnership Fraud Risk Strategy
	Appendix 2 - Fighting Fraud Checklist
	Appendix 3 - Government functional Standard GovS 013
	Appendix 4 - TBC SOC Checklist June 2022

	13 Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy
	Appendix 1 - Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

	14 Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22
	15 Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021/22
	Appendix 1 - A&G Cttee Annual Report 2021-22




